BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE

MONDAY 6TH NOVEMBER 2017
AT 6.00 P.M.

PARKSIDE SUITE, PARKSIDE, MARKET STREET, BROMSGROVE, B61 8DA

PLEASE NOTE THAT AFTER 5PM, ACCESS TO THE PARKSIDE SUITE IS VIA THE MAIN
ENTRANCE DOOR ON THE STOURBRIDGE ROAD. PLEASE ALSO NOTE THAT THERE IS NO
PUBLIC PARKING AVAILABLE FOR THE NEW PREMISES. THE NEAREST PARKING IS THE
PARKSIDE (MARKET STREET) PAY AND DISPLAY CAR PARK.

MEMBERS: Councillors R. J. Deeming (Chairman), P.L. Thomas (Vice-
Chairman), C. Allen-Jones, S. J. Baxter, M. T. Buxton,
C.A. Hotham, S. R. Peters, S. P. Shannon, M. A. Sherrey,
C. J. Spencer and P. J. Whittaker

Updates to the Reports of the Head of Planning and Regeneration Services will be available in the
Council Chamber one hour prior to Meeting. You are advised to arrive in advance of the start of the
Meeting to allow yourself sufficient time to read the updates.

Members of the Committee are requested to arrive at least fifteen minutes before the start of the
meeting to read any additional representations and to ask questions of the Officers who will also
make themselves available for at least one hour before the meeting. Members are also requested to
give Officers at least forty-eight hours notice of detailed, technical questions in order that information
can be sought to enable answers to be given at the meeting.

AGENDA
1. To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes
2. Declarations of Interest
To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Other
Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm

the nature of those interests.

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Planning
Committee held on 2nd October 2017 (Pages 1 - 6)



4. Updates to planning applications reported at the meeting (to be circulated
prior to the start of the meeting)

5. Tree Preservation Order (11) 2017 - Trees on land adjacent to 73 Linthurst
Newtown, Blackwell (Pages 7 - 132)

6. 2017/00950/FUL - Demolition of existing 2 storey building, The Greyhound
(ph), 30 Rock Hill, Bromsgrove, Worcestershire, B61 7LR - Greyhound Inn
Developments Ltd (Pages 133 - 138)

7. 2017/00968/FUL - Erection of 12 stable blocks (total) 34 loose boxes), 12
sheds, 4 storage containers, 1 pole mounted floodlight and CCTV camera,
ancillary office and manége - Newhouse Farm, Lea End Lane, Hopwood,
Birmingham, Worcestershire, B48 7AX - Mr Philip Michell (Pages 139 - 150)

8. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman considers to be of so
urgent a nature that it cannot wait until the next meeting

K. DICKS
Chief Executive
Parkside
Market Street
BROMSGROVE
Worcestershire
B61 8DA

26th October 2017



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Information for Members of the Public

The Planning Committee comprises 11 Councillors. Meetings are held once a
month on Mondays at 6.00 p.m. in the Parkside Suite, Parkside, Market
Street, Bromsgrove, B61 8DA - access to the Parkside Suite after 5pm is via
the main entrance door on the Stourbridge Road. The nearest available
public parking for the new premises is Parkside (Market Street) Pay and
Display. .

The Chairman of the Committee, who is responsible for the conduct of the
meeting, sits at the head of the table. The other Councillors sit around the
inner-tables in their party groupings. To the immediate right of the Chairman
are the Planning Officers. To the left of the Chairman is the Solicitor who
provides legal advice, and the Democratic Services Officer who takes the
Minutes of the Meeting. The Officers are paid employees of the Council who
attend the Meeting to advise the Committee. They can make
recommendations, and give advice (both in terms of procedures which must
be followed by the Committee, and on planning legislation / policy / guidance),
but they are not permitted to take part in the decision making.

All items on the Agenda are (usually) for discussion in public. You have the
right to request to inspect copies of previous Minutes, reports on this agenda,
together with the background documents used in the preparation of these
reports. Any Update Reports for the items on the Agenda are published on
the Council’'s Website at least one hour before the start of the meeting, and
extra copies of the Agenda and Reports, together with the Update Report, are
available in the public gallery. The Chairman will normally take each item of
the Agenda in turn although, in particular circumstances, these may be taken
out of sequence.

The Agenda is divided into the following sections:-

e Procedural ltems

Procedural matters usually take just a few minutes and include: apologies
for absence, approval of the Minutes of the previous meeting(s) and, where
necessary, election of a Chairman and / or Vice-Chairman. In addition,
Councillors are asked to declare whether they have any disclosable
pecuniary and / or other disclosable interests in any items to be discussed.
If a Councillor declares a disclosable pecuniary interest, he/she will
withdraw from the meeting during the discussion and voting on that item.
However, it is up to the individual Councillor concerned to decide whether
or not to declare any interest.

e Reports of the Head of Planning and Regeneration

() Plans and Applications to Develop, or Change of Use - Reports on
all applications will include a response from consultees, a summary of

-3-



(ii)

any observations received and a recommendation. Recent
consultation responses will be reported at the meeting within the
Update Report.

Each application will be considered in turn. When the Chairman
considers that there has been sufficient discussion, a decision will be
called for. Councillors may decide that, in order to make a fully
informed decision, they need to visit the site. If this is the case, then a
decision on the application will be deferred until the next meeting of the
Committee. Alternatively, a decision may be deferred in order that
more information can be presented / reported. If the Councillors
consider that they can proceed to making a decision, they can either
accept the recommendation(s) made in the report (suggesting any
additional conditions and / or reasons for their decision), or they can
propose an amendment, whereby Councillors may make their own
recommendation. A decision will then be taken, usually by way of a
show of hands, and the Chairman will announce the result of the vote.
Officers are not permitted to vote on applications.

Note: Delegation - All items are presumed to be matters which the
Planning Committee has delegated powers to determine. In those
instances where delegation will not or is unlikely to apply, an
appropriate indication will be given at the meeting.

Any members of the public wishing to make late additional
representations should do so in writing, or by contacting their Ward
Councillor(s) well in advance of the Meeting. You can find out who
your Ward Councillor(s) is/are at www.writetothem.com.

Members of the public should note that any application can be
determined in any manner, notwithstanding any (or no)
recommendation being made to the Planning Committee.

Development Control (Planning Enforcement) / Building Control -
These matters include such items as to whether or not enforcement
action should be taken, applications to carry out work on trees that are
the subject of a Tree Preservation Order, etc.. 'Public Speaking' policy
does not apply to this type of report, and enforcement matters are
normally dealt with as confidential items (see 'Confidential / Exempt
Business' below).

Reports of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services

These reports relate to, for example, cases where authority is sought to
commence legal proceedings for non-compliance with a variety of formal
planning notices. They are generally mainly concerned with administrative
and legal aspects of planning matters. 'Public Speaking' policy does not
apply to this type of report, and legal issues are normally dealt with as
confidential items (see 'Confidential / Exempt Business' below).

Urgent Business

In exceptional circumstances, and at the discretion of the Chairman,
certain items may be raised at the meeting which are not on the Agenda.
The Agenda is published a week in advance of the meeting and an urgent
matter may require a decision. However, the Chairman must give a reason

-4 -



for accepting any "urgent business". 'Public Speaking' policy would not
necessarily apply to this type of report.

e Confidential / Exempt Business

Certain items on the Agenda may be marked "confidential” or "exempt";
any papers relating to such items will not be available to the press and
public. The Committee has the right to ask the press and public to leave
the room while these reports are considered. Brief details of the matters to
be discussed will be given, but the Committee has to give specific reasons
for excluding the press and public.

Public Speaking

Where members of the public have registered to speak on planning
applications, the item will be dealt with in the following order (subject to the
discretion of the Chairman):-

» Introduction of item by the Chairman;

= Officer's presentation;

» Representations by objector;

» Representations by applicant (or representative) or supporter;
» Parish Council speaker (if applicable) and / or Ward Councillor;

= Consideration of application by Councillors, including questions to
officers.

All public speakers will be called to the designated area by the Chairman and
will have a maximum of 3 minutes to address the Committee.

Feedback forms will be available within the Council Chamber for the duration
of the meeting in order that members of the public may comment on the
facilities for speaking at Planning Committee meetings.

NOTES

Councillors who have not been appointed to the Planning Committee but who
wish to attend and to make comments on any application on the attached
agenda are required to inform the Chairman and the relevant Committee
Services Officer before 12:00 noon on the day of the meeting. They will also
be subject to three minute time limit.

Councillors who are interested in the detail of any matter to be considered are
invited to consult the files with the relevant Officer(s) in order to avoid
unnecessary debate on such detail at the meeting. Members of the
Committee are requested to arrive at least one hour before the start of the
meeting to read any additional representations and to ask questions of the
Officers who will also make themselves available for at least one hour before
the meeting. Members are also requested to give Officers at least forty-eight
hours notice of detailed, technical questions in order that information can be
sought to enable answers to be given at the meeting. Councillors should

-5-



familiarise themselves with the location of particular sites of interest to
minimise the need for Committee Site Visits.

Councillors are respectfully reminded that applications deferred for more
information should be kept to a minimum and only brought back to Committee
for determination where the matter cannot be authorised to be determined by
the Head of Planning and Regeneration Services.

In certain circumstances, items may be taken out of the order than that shown
on the agenda and, therefore, no certain advice can be provided about the
time at which any item may be considered. However, it is recommended that
any person attending a meeting of the Committee, whether to speak or to just
observe proceedings and listen to the debate, be present for the
commencement of the meeting at 6.00 p.m.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 -
SECTION 100D

1. All applications for planning permission include, as background papers,
the following documents:-

a. The application - the forms and any other written documents
submitted by the applicant, the applicant's architect or agent, or
both, whichever the case may be, together with any submitted
plans, drawings or diagrams.

b. Letters of objection, observations, comments or other
representations received about the proposals.

C. Any written notes by officers relating to the application and
contained within the file relating to the particular application.

d. Invitations to the Council to comment or make observations on
matters which are primarily the concern of another Authority,
Statutory Body or Government Department.

2. In relation to any matters referred to in the reports, the following are
regarded as the standard background papers:-

Policies contained within the County Structure Plan and Local Plan
below, and Planning Policy Statements, specifically referred to as

follows:-

BDP - Bromsgrove District 2011-2-30

SPG - Supplementary Policy Guidance

SPD Supplementary Planning Document
3. Any other items listed, or referred to, in the report.

Note: For the purposes of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act
1985, unless otherwise stated against a particular report, "background papers"
in accordance with Section 100D will always include the Case Officer's written
report and any letters or memoranda of representation received (including

-6 -



correspondence from Parish Councils, the Highway Authority, statutory
consultees, other 'statutory undertakers' and all internal District Council
Departments).

Further information

If you require any further information on the Planning Committee, or wish to
register to speak on any application for planning permission to be considered
by the Committee, in the first instance, please contact Jan Smyth, Democratic
Services Officer, at jan.smyth@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk, or telephone
(01527) 64252 Extn. 3266.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

Planning Committee
2nd October 2017

BROMSGROVEDISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE

MONDAY, 2ND OCTOBER 2017, AT 6.00 P.M.

PRESENT: Councillors R. J. Deeming (Chairman), P.L. Thomas (Vice-Chairman),
C. Allen-Jones (during Minute No. 36/17), M. T. Buxton, S. R. Peters,
S. P. Shannon, M. A. Sherrey, C. J. Spencer, L. J. Turner (substituting for
Councillor S. J. Baxter) and P. J. Whittaker

Officers: Mr. D. M. Birch, Mr. D. Kelly, Mrs. T. Lovejoy, Mrs. J. Smyth and
Mrs. P. Ross

32/17 APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors S. J.
Baxter, C. A. Hotham and M. A. Sherrey. Councillor L. J. Turner was
confirmed as Councillor Baxter’s substitute for the meeting.

33/17 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were made.
34/17 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 4th
September 2017 were received.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting be approved as a correct
record.

35/17 2017/0761/FUL - RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT OF 148 DWELLINGS
(AMENDMENT TO 2015/0687) - FORMER POLYMER LATEX SITE,
WESTON HALL ROAD, STOKE PRIOR, WORCESTERSHIRE - MR
MARK ELLIOT

Officers provided additional information in relation to the proposed
residential development, with regards to: Highway, Contaminated Land,
Air Quality Matters and Urban Design matters, further to additional
comments received from Highway Consultant Mott McDonald,
Worcestershire Highways Authority and Worcestershire Regulatory
Services; proposals for amending Conditions 6 and 7; with the addition
of seven further Conditions; and amended Section 106 contributions
towards the provision of enhanced education facilities at Stoke Prior
First School, Shared Aston Fields and St John’s Middle and South

1
Page 1



Agenda Iltem 3

Planning Committee
2nd October 2017

Bromsgrove High, all as detailed in the published Update Report, copies
of which were provided to Committee Members and the public gallery
prior to commencement of the meeting. Officers also provided a verbal
update on comments received from the Council’s Drainage Engineers
who had no objections to the development.

The Committee then considered the Application, which had been
recommended for approval by Officers. Having considered the Officer's
report and Update, Members queried why there was no mention in the
Section 106 details for the provision of wheelie bins for the proposed
development; and that funding should be sought from the developer.
Officers explained that this had been omitted from the application as
approved in 2015 but could be rectified through the amended S106
agreement should Members be minded to approve the Application. In
response to Members queries, Officers also provided clarification as to
why the NHS had not sought contributions under the original or this
amended Application.

RESOLVED that

1) Planning Permission be delegated to the Head of Planning and
Regeneration to determine the planning application, subject to the
receipt of a suitable and satisfactory legal mechanism in relation to
the following matters:

i.  the provision of 21 affordable housing units;

ii. a contribution of £285,685.61 towards the provision of
enhanced education facilities at Stoke Prior First School,
Shared Aston Fields and St John’s Middle and South
Bromsgrove High;

iii.  a contribution of £23000 towards public transport improvement
measures including bus stops on Shaw Lane and cycle
provision at Ryefields Road;

iv.  the provision and maintenance in perpetuity of the proposed
on site public open space, Local Equipped Area of Play and
areas for habitat enhancement;

v. the provision of and maintenance in perpetuity of the proposed
drainage facilities on the site (including the balancing ponds
and pumping station); and additionally

vi. a contribution of £61.40 per dwelling for the provision of
wheelie bins and a separate contribution of £1632 per
apartment block for the provision of communal bins.

2) the Conditions as detailed on pages 14 to 18 of the main agenda
report, but with Conditions 6 and 7 being amended to read as
follows:

6. The remediation of the site must be carried out in accordance with
the Georisk Management Geoenvironmental Assessment; Report ref:
14247/1 and the Georisk Management Remediation Method
Statement & Validation Plan; Report ref: 14247/3, Dated: July 2017

2
Page 2



3)

Agenda Iltem 3

Planning Committee
2nd October 2017

prior to the commencement of development, other than that required
to carry out remediation, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority;

7. Following the completion of the measures identified in the Georisk
Management Geoenvironmental Assessment; Report ref: 14247/1
and the Georisk Management Remediation Method Statement &
Validation Plan; Report ref: 14247/3, Dated: July 2017, a validation
report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried
out must be produced, and is subject to the approval of the Local
Planning Authority prior to the occupation of any dwellings.

the following additional Conditions as detailed on pages 4 to 5 of the
Update Report, as detailed below:

14) No other development (hereby permitted) shall commence
until visibility splays have been provided on each side of
the proposed access on a line joining a point 2.4 metres
back from the nearside edge of the adjoining carriageway
measured along the centreline of the access, to a point 54
metres west and 59 metres east measured along the
nearside edge of the carriageway from the centre of the
new access. Nothing shall be planted, erected and/or
allowed to grow which exceeds a height of 0.6metres on
the triangular area of land so formed in order not to
obstruct the visibility described above.

Reason: Required as a pre commencement condition in
the interests of highway safety.

15)  Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling hereby
approved the existing vehicular access onto the adjoining
highway shall be permanently closed. Details of the means
of closure and reinstatement of this existing access shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of work on
the development hereby approved.

Reason: To ensure the safe and free flow of traffic using
the adjoining County highway.

16) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied
until the accesses shown on the approved plan have been
properly consolidated, surfaced, drained and otherwise
constructed in accordance with the Worcestershire
Highways Design Guide and these areas shall thereafter
be retained and kept available for those users at all times.

Reason: In the interests of Highway safety and to ensure
the free flow of traffic using the adjoining Highway.

3
Page 3



Agenda Iltem 3

Planning Committee
2nd October 2017

17) Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling hereby
permitted the residential unit shall be fitted with an electric
vehicle charging point in accordance with details that shall
first be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and thereafter the charging point shall
be keep available for the charging of electric vehicles.

Reason: To encourage sustainable travel and healthy
communities.

18) The development hereby permitted shall not be brought
into use until the applicant has submitted to and have
approved in writing residential travel plan that promotes
sustainable forms of access to the site with the Local
Planning Authority. This plan thereafter will be
implemented and updated in agreement with
Worcestershire County Councils Travel plan co-ordinator.

Reason: To reduce vehicle movements and promote
sustainable access to the site.

19) No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until the
applicant has submitted to and had approved in writing a
welcome pack that promotes sustainable travel for future
residents with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To reduce vehicle movements and promote
sustainable access to the site.

20) During the course of any site clearance and development,
the hours of work for all on-site workers, contractors and
sub-contractors shall be limited to between;

0730 to 1800 hours Monday to Friday

0800 to 1300 hours Saturdays

and NO WORKING shall take place at any time on
Sundays, Bank Holidays or Public Holidays or at any time
outside of the above permitted working hours unless first
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of neighbouring
occupiers.

36/17 ADDITIONAL ITEM - DIVERSION OF PUBLIC FOOTPATH NO. AV-528
(C) - ASH LANE, HOPWOOD, BROMSGROVE

(The Chairman agreed to the consideration of this item as a matter of
urgency because a decision was required thereon before the next
meeting of the Committee.)

The Committee considered a report which detailed the withdrawal of
Public Path Diversion Order 2014 (Bridleway, No AV-528 (C) (Part)),

4
Page 4



Agenda Iltem 3

Planning Committee
2nd October 2017

Ash Lane Bromsgrove (the “Order”) made under s257 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

Members were asked to note that there was a typographical error in the
order in that it should have been Public Path Order 2017 and not 2014.

Officers drew Members’ attention to Appendices 1 and 2 to the report
and provided clarification on matters raised. Officers explained that
because of the scale of amendments required, they were proposing to
deal with the amendment by a new order rather than by modifications at
confirmation stage.

Members were asked to approve the withdrawal of the Order so that it
could be replaced by a more comprehensive order.

RESOLVED that the withdrawal of Public Path Diversion Order 2014
(Bridleway, No AV-528 (C) (Part)), Ash Lane Bromsgrove (the “Order”)
made under s257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, be
approved.

The meeting closed at 6.40 p.m.

Chairman

5
Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 6" November 2017

'TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (No.11) 2017
— Trees on land adjacent to 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell

Relevant Portfolio Holders P J Whittaker (Environmental Services and
Leisure)

Portfolio Holder Consulted No

Relevant Head of Service Head of Environmental Services

Ward(s) Affected Linthurst

Ward Councillor(s) Consulted No

Non-Key Decision

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

1.1 The Committee is asked to consider the confirmation of Tree Preservation
Order (No.11) 2017 relating to trees and woodland on land adjacent to 73
Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Itis recommended that Tree Preservation Order (No.11) 2017 relating to trees
and woodland on land adjacent to 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell (‘the Site’)
is confirmed without modification as shown on the plan and schedule
appendix (1).

3. KEY ISSUES

Financial Implications

3.1 There are provisions for compensation in specified circumstances, if further to
confirmation of the order, consent to carry out works on trees is refused or
granted subject to conditions. There are also provisions for a statutory
challenge against the Order if the order is deemed to be made or confirmed
unlawfully. Officers cannot quantify either the risk of this happening or the
likely expenditure if they do.

Legal Implications

3.3 The Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations
2012 cover this procedure. The power to make a TPO is found at section 198
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Section 198 of the TCPA 1990 provides (emphasis added):
“(2) If it appears to a local planning authority that it is expedient in the

interests of amenity to make provision for the preservation of trees or
woodlands in their area, they qnay foy that purpose make an order with
YBye ¥ et Purp



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 6" November 2017

respect to such trees, groups of trees or woodlands as may be specified in the
order.

(2) An order under subsection (1) is in this Act referred to as a “tree
preservation order”.

Regulation 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England)
Regulations 2012 provides:

“5.— Procedure after making an order

(1) As soon as practicable after making an order, and before confirming it, the
authority which made it shall—

(a) serve on the persons interested in the land affected by the order—
(i) a copy of the order; and
(ii) a notice containing the particulars specified in paragraph (2);

(b) make a copy of the order available for public inspection, in accordance
with paragraph (3); and

(c) in the case of an order made following service of a notice under section
211(3) (preservation of trees in conservation areas), serve on the person who
served that notice the information specified in sub-paragraph (a).

(2) The particulars mentioned in paragraph (1)(a)(ii) are—
(a) the reasons for making the order;

(b) a statement that objections or other representations with respect to any
trees, groups of trees or woodlands specified in the order may be made to the
authority in accordance with regulation 6;

(c) the date, being at least 28 days after the date of the notice, by which any
objection or representation must be received by the authority; and

(d) a copy of regulation 6.

(3) A copy of the order shall be made available for inspection, free of charge,
at all reasonable hours, at the offices of the authority by whom the order was
made; and where an order is made on behalf of an authority, it shall be made
available for inspection also at the offices of the authority on whose behalf it
was made.

Regulation 7 of the Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England)
Regulations 2012 provides (emphasis added):

“7.—(1) The authority shall not confirm an order which they have made
unless they have first considered objections and representations duly
made in respect of it and not withdrawn.

(2) An authority may confirm an order with or without modifications.

Page 8


https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=11&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I11DA0840E44C11DA8D70A0E70A78ED65
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=11&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I11DA0840E44C11DA8D70A0E70A78ED65
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=11&crumb-action=replace&docguid=IAAC751C268EE11E1B3B589914968239E
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=11&crumb-action=replace&docguid=IAAC751C268EE11E1B3B589914968239E

Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 6" November 2017

(3) Where an order is confirmed it shall be endorsed to that effect and the
endorsement shall also indicate—

(a) that the order was confirmed with modifications or without modifications,
as the case may be; and

(b) the date on which it was confirmed.

(4) Where an order is confirmed with modifications, the modifications shall be
indicated in the order by distinctive type or other means.

(5) A modification under paragraph (2) may not add to the Schedule to the
order (and the map) references to a tree to which the order did not previously

apply.”

Service / Operational Implications

Background

3.4 TPO 11 of 2017 consist of a woodland area, 6 groups and 19 individual trees
as shown in the schedule to the order appendices (1). It was made because
there is considered to be a continued threat of trees being removed to
accommodate the potential of development on the site. The area of Blackwell
contains a high volume of mixed species and varied age class trees that add
greatly to the overall character of the area. The trees within this site
contribute to that character of the area in that they are seen from a number of
local properties, and public vantage points off Foxes Close, Linthurst
Newtown and Public Foot Path / Right of Way to the north of the site. Being
visible from these locations, they therefore contribute to the amenity of the
area.

3.5 The PPG states that:

“The woodland category’s purpose is to safeguard a woodland as a
whole. So it follows that, while some trees may lack individual merit, all
trees within a woodland that merits protection are protected and made
subject to the same provisions and exemptions. In addition, trees and
saplings which grow naturally or are planted within the woodland area
after the Order is made are also protected by the Order.” (Tree
Protection Orders, paragraph 028)

The woodland designation was made because In the UK, woodland is defined
by the Forestry Commission and the UK Government in the UK Forestry
Standard and national Forestry Statistics as the following:

land under stands of trees with a canopy cover of at least 20%, including

integral open space. There is no minimum height for trees to form a woodland
at maturity, so the definition includes woodland scrub’

Page 9



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 6" November 2017

The woodland area included within the order clearly has a density of trees that
provide well above the 20% level of canopy cover required therefore the use of this
designation is felt to be appropriate on this site.

3.6  The site was subject to a previous Tree Preservation Order raised in 2016
(Bromsgrove District TPO (13) 2016). This TPO was made in provisional form
on the 3" August 2016 to protect the trees and woodland from being felled or
mismanaged. The order was made in view of concerns having been raised in
previous weeks by local residents who had contacted the Council highlighting
that chainsaw activity was taking place on the site. When officers attended the
site it was found that trees had clearly been felled. On further investigation it
was discovered that Freefield Investments Ltd held an interest in the land.
Freefield Investments Ltd is a property development company who are
understood to specialise in acquisition of land for then onward sale once
outline planning permission has been granted. The site is designated Green
Belt land and is currently under consideration for future removal from the
Green Belt as part of the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment
(SHLAA) process being undertaken by the Council’s Strategic Planning
section.

3.7  The validity of this order was contested and an objection raised by Freefield
Investments Ltd on the grounds listed in their letter to the council reference
code MAF1/JDP dated 08™ August 2016 and supported by the documentation
from Grove Tompkins Bosworth Solicitors, Barton Heyett Arboricultural
Consultants and Jerry Ross Arboricultural Consultants and Cotswold Wildlife
Surveys on behalf of Mr and Mrs Fell as shown in appendix (2). Therefore, in
line with standard procedure where an objection are received at the
provisional stage of a new TPO order it was taken to the January 2017
planning committee meeting to request its confirmation. The planning
committee confirmed the TPO without modification and the order was formally
confirmed on the 12™ January 2017.

3.8  Access Homes LLP then raised further objection to BDC TPO (13) 2016 and
sought to have the TPO quashed by the High Court by way of statutory
challenge. Access Homes LLP is the registered owner of the site and the land
registry documents indicate that they were registered as the freehold owners
in November 2016. The grounds of the challenge were as follows:

e Misdirection as to section 198 of 1990 Act and PPG, or failure to adequately
give reasons

e Flawed approach to “Woodland”/ acting for an improper purpose

e Procedural unfairness based on article 1 and 6 of ECHR made up of:-
1. Flaws in site visit (presence of tree officer and his ability to address
members in private

Page 10



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 6" November 2017

2. Flaws in committee process (inability to be able to address the
committee orally)

3.9 Having fully evaluated the grounds of challenge and having being able to
carried out a more extensive site survey due to an improved level of access to
the site during the winter period allowed by the decline of heavy ground
vegetation cover, the following conclusions were arrived at:

The extent of “Woodland” designation cover within BDC TPO (13) 2016 was
found to be too extensive due to the tree volume in some sections of the site
being lighter in density than first thought.

Also although it is BDC’s usual practice for the Development Control Manager
to lead the site visit (albeit with the tree officer present), on this occasion the
tree officer, who was promoting the TPO was the sole officer in attendance at
the site visit before the committee meeting on 9 January 2017. It was therefore
accepted by the parties that the attendance of the site visit by the tree officer
without the Development Control Manager, as is the usual practice of the
Defendant, was sufficient in the circumstances of this case to give the
impression of procedural unfairness.

Therefore, it was agreed that the best way forward would be to quash the
original order and, accordingly, TPO (13) 2016 was quashed by consent.

3.10 A new provisional order was then raised (Bromsgrove District Tree
Preservation Order (11) 2017) on the 4™ July 2017 as shown in appendix (1).
The new order’s “Woodland” designation is reduced in extent it being
considered that this provided tree protection more relevant to the nature and
density of the tree stock on the site.

3.11 The new order also contains 19 individual trees and 6 groups of trees as
shown in the schedule attached to appendix (1). The revised level of tree
protection within the new order is felt to be accurate and consistent with the
level and density of valuable tree stock on the site and therefore addresses
the argument regarding the inappropriate level of cover within the previous
order.

4.0 The power to make a TPO

4.1 As set out in 3.3 above, the power to make a TPO is found at s.198 of the TCPA
1990. A TPO may be made where it is appears that such an order is ‘expedient in
the interests of amenity to make provision for the preservation of trees or
woodlands’. The question is therefore: is it expedient in the interests of amenity to
confirm this order? As also noted at 3.3 above it is possible for this committee to
confirm this order without modification, confirm the order with modification or not
confirm the order.

Page 11



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 6" November 2017

4.2 The ‘Planning Practice Guidance’ or ‘PPG’ provides guidance on what ‘amenity’
and ‘expedient’ mean in practice (appendix 8).

4.0 Representations Received (Objections)

4.1  The following three objections have been received in respect of the
Bromsgrove District Council TPO (11) 2017.

4.2  Letter from Harrison Clark Rickerbys Solicitors dated 4™ August 2017 as
shown in appendix (3) On behalf of Access Homes.

4.3 My comments in relation to the points raised within the letter are as follows:

The justification and reason the order has been raised is that tree work had
clearly been under taken on the site and was progressing to remove trees and
other vegetation form the land. Also relevant is the nature of the companies
owning the land which are understood to specialise in acquisition of land for
then onward sale once outline planning permission has been granted.
Therefore it was reasonable to assume the site would be largely cleared of
tree stock to accommodate development on the site.

4.4  The large proportion of trees within the site are visible from a number of public
vantage points around the site including Linthurst Road, Foxes Close and
Public Foot Path to the North of the site (see maps appendix (7) highlighting
the location of the public footpath to the North of 73 Linthurst Newtown and
appendix (9) photographs of site). They are also visible from a number of local
properties and gardens. Therefore, | feel that the trees do offer an acceptable
level of visual amenity value and it is appropriate to make the main overriding
reason for the raising of the order being in the interest of amenity.

4.5  Access Homes LLP was not directly served notice of the raising of the new
TPO but Freefield Investments Ltd were and are known to be a linked
company to Access Homes LLP under the management of the Fell Family.
Therefore, | feel that that all parties concerned with this land were made
aware of the TPO at the point it was raised. This would appear to be
confirmed by the objection received. Two notification site notices were also
put up on site on the 5 July 2017.

4.6 Interms of expediency for the raising of the order | feel that the known nature
of the companies who own the land and the evidence of the level of work that
was being gradually undertaken on the site along with the value of the trees in
this setting is adequate justification in term of expediency to the raising of the
order.

4.7  Due to the level of visibility both from public vantage points and local
properties | feel that the loss of any currently protected trees within the site
would undoubtedly have a detrimental influence on the outlook from these

vantage points and the overall character of the area and therefore the
Page 12



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 6" November 2017

enjoyment of passers-by and local residents would be affected. As well as
the visual amenity benefits the tree stock within the site especially the
woodland area also offers a high level of habitat value to the area. If any
major volume of tree stock within the site was lost or it would undoubtedly
have a major impact on the amount of wild life that benefit offered by the
overall tree cover and could drive the wild life from within the site and possibly
wider area of adjoining land. TPO PPG indicates that these other factors are
relevant to an assessment of amenity but they are not alone sufficient to
warrant making an order (see appendix (8) ‘other factors’). TPO PPG also
highlights under the heading “Individual, Collective and Wider Impact” that an
assessment of the particular importance of an individual tree, group of trees or
of woodlands by reference to their characteristics is advised (see appendix
(8)). One criteria under this heading is ‘future potential as an amenity’. |
consider that the trees would have great future potential as an amenity to the
residents, visitors or users of any future development on this site.

4.8 In relation to the other points raised in the letter:

e A copy of the consent order is attached at Appendix 11. The letter
asserts that contrary to the consent order, TPO 11 of 2017 is more
restrictive than the plan attached to the consent order. Officers are of
the view that this matter is not relevant to the committee’s
consideration and in any event, as TPO 11 of 2017 is far less extensive
than the plan attached to the consent order, does not accept Harrison
Clark Rickerbys’ assertion. If it is necessary to make an amendment to
TPO 11 of 2017 because of the consent order, the Council has the
power to vary the order under section 333(7) of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

e As set outin paragraph 3.3 above, regulation 5 of the Tree
Preservation Regulations, the requirement is to make the order
available and to serve the order on people interested in land affected
by the order. In this and other orders, the Council considers that
occupiers of property in the vicinity of the protected trees are
sufficiently affected by the order to warrant a notice.

e The issue of payment of fees and disclosure of information is not
directly relevant to the committee’s decision. For information, the fees
have been paid and disclosure has been made further to the
information request.

Report objection from Barton Hyett Associates Arboricultural Consultants
on behalf of Access Homes LLP dates 28.07.2017 as shown appendix (3).

4.9 My comments in relation to the points raised within the letter are as follows:

4.10 The large majority of trees within the site are visible from a number of public
vantage points around the site including Linthurst Road, Badger Way and
Public Foot Path to the North of the site (see map appendix 7). They are also
visible from a number of local properties and gardens. Therefore the trees do
offer an acceptable level of visual amenity value and it is appropriate to make

Page 13



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 6" November 2017

the main overriding reason for the raising of the order being in the interest of
amenity.

4.11 Itis accepted that the visibility of some trees and certainly trees within the
woodland block is limited. Unsurprisingly, some trees within the woodland
block obscure other trees within the woodland block. TPO guidance under the
heading Visibility see appendix (8) is "The extent to which trees or
woodlands can be seen by the public will inform the authority’s assessment of
whether the impact on the local environment is significant. The trees, or at
least part of them, should be visible from a public place such as a road or
footpath, or accessible by the public”. It is clear that the guidance does not
require that every single tree must be visible from a public place. PPG goes
on to highlight within the next paragraph titled Individual, Collective and
Wider Impact “Public visibility alone will not be sufficient to warrant an Order”.

4.12 The authority is advised to also assess the particular importance of an
individual tree, of groups of trees or woodlands by reference to its or their
characteristics including, size and form, future potential as an amenity, rarity,
cultural or historic value, contribution to and relationship with the landscape
and contribution to the character or appearance of a conservation area”.
Therefore, | feel that even though some trees are not visible from a public
place or individually visible there is justification for their inclusion within the
order in view of the wider collective benefits they given in relation to the points
mentioned in the above paragraphs.

4.13 The TEMPO assessment chart showing how the trees were graded in terms
of condition, longevity, visibility, expediency and other factors are attached in
appendix 10. The TEMPO assessment was sent to Access Homes Limited
on 22 August 2017 further to an information request.

4.14 Email received from Mr Matt Fell dated 4™ August 2017 as shown appendix
(4). My comments in relation to the points raised within the letter are as
follows:

4.15 | feel that the group designation of G1 within the order is appropriate as
although if evaluated individually arguably some trees might not be of
sufficient quality to warrant TPO protection. Together they form a valuable
cohesive group that is highly prominent to users of Linthurst Newtown and
residents opposite the site therefore offering a high degree of visual amenity
value to the area.

4.16 T15 is an appropriate distance from the property and although there is some
minor root plate damage to the local paved area there is no indication that it
might damage the property. There is some squirrel damage within the crown
but there are no obviously over weighted branches this could be managed by
a suitable level of pruning.

4.17 T16 & T17 are partially visible from vantage points on the Linthurst Road and
are highly visible from the gardens and properties to the South Eastern side of

73 Linthurst Newtown offering a high degree of screening and visual amenity
Page 1



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 6" November 2017

value to residents. T17 Willow has received some crown management
pruning to ensure a safe crown distance is maintained from the local power
lines. However, the tree is of a good age and there is a substantial amount of
crown remaining on what is a perfectly viable tree.

4.18 | accept that not all of the trees identified within the new order are visible from
a public place but they merit consideration in view of their future potential as
an amenity, rarity, cultural or historic value, contribution to and relationship
with the landscape and benefit they provide to the character of the area.
Therefore, they should remain within the order.

5.0 Representations Received (Support)

5.1
We have received 22 correspondence of support for the order from local
residents as shown in appendix (6)

There is clearly a very strong local concern regarding the potential threat of
mismanagement or loss of trees on the site as evidenced by the letters of
support we have received for both the previous and revised new order.

6.0 conclusions and recommendations

6.1

Having given full consideration to all the points raised in terms of objection and
extensively surveyed and evaluated the tree stock and its relevance in this setting |
feel that it is worthy of TPO protection. | therefore recommend that the order as
shown in appendix (1) is confirmed without modification.

7. Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

7.1 The customers have been provided with the relevant notification and the
responses received are attached in the appendices. The customers will
receive notification by post of the decision of the committee.

7.2  Equalities and Diversity implications- None

8. RISK MANAGEMENT

8.1  There are no significant risks associated with the details included in this
report.

9. APPENDICES

Appendix 1- Copy of Provisional Order

Appendix 2 — Copy of Objections to BDC TPO (13) 2016
Page 15



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 6" November 2017

Appendix 3 — Letter of Objection from Harrison, Clark and Rickerby Solicitors

Appendix 4 - Report of Objection from Barton Hyett Arboricultural
Consultants

Appendix 5 — Email of Objection from Mr Fell Dated 4™ August 2017

Appendix 6 — Messages of Support

Appendix 7 — Plan showing location of Public Footpath

Appendix 8 — Copy of TPO Guidance notes

Appendix 9 - Photographs of trees from local vantage points

Appendix 10 — TEMPO Assessment

Appendix 11 — Copy of consent order dated 20 June 2017

10. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

11. KEY
TPO - Tree Preservation Order

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name: Gavin Boyes
Email: gavin.boyes@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Tel: 01527 64252 x 3094

Page 16



o Agenda ltem 5
APPENDIX (1)

Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012
Town and Country Planning Act 1990
Tree Preservation Order (11) 2017

Bromsgrove District Council in exercise of the powers conferred on them by section 198 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 make the foliowing Order——

Citation
1. This Order may be cited as Tree Preservation Order (11) 2017

Interpretation

2= (1) In this Order "the authority” means Bromsgrove District Council,
(2) In this Order any reference to & numbered section is a reference to the section so
numbered in the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and any reference to a numbered
regulation is a reference o the regulation so numbered in the Town and Country Flanning
{Tree Preservation)(England) Regulations 2012.

Effect

3.~ (1) Subject to article 4, this Order takes effect provisionally on the date on which it is
made.
(2) Without prejudice to subsection (7) of section 198 (power fo make (ree preservation
orders) or subsection (1) of section 200 (tree preservation orders: Forestry Commissioners)
and, subject to the exceptions in regulation 14, no person shall-- :

(a) cutdown, top, lop, uproot, wilfully damage, or wilfully destroy; or

(b} cause or permit the cutting down, topping, lopping, uprooting, wilful damage or wilful
destruction of,
any tree specified in the Schedule o this Order except with the written consent of the
authority in accordance with regulations 16 and 17, or of the Secretary of State i
accordance with regulation 23, and, where such consent is given subject to conditions, in
accordance with those conditions.

- Application to trees to be planted pursuant to a condition

4. In refation to any tree identified in the first column of the Schedule by the letter “C”, being
a fres to be planted pursuant to a condition imposed under paragraph (a) of section 197
(planning permission to include appropriate provision for preservation and planting of trees),
this Order takes effect as from the time when the tree is planted.

Dated this 4" July 2017

Signed on behalf of Bromsgrove District Council
r’hﬂ‘;;‘:mw
e
o
\CLARE FLANAGAN
Authorised by the Council to sign in that behalf

Page 17



Agenda Item 5

Trees specified individually

(encircled in black on the map)

NGR

399729 - 272428

3908703-272484
399661.272519
399658-272523
399649-272540
399698- 272582
399704272544
389714-272551
399737-272563
399757-272533
399761-272527
399764-272521
399700-272479
309792-272476
399765-272484
399759-272493
399750-272501

399664-272558

399726-272560

Sityation
Mear leff boundary
Centre left side of site
Near left boundary
Mear left boundary
Mear ieft boundary
Near right boundary
Cenire site
Centre site
Right boundary of site
Right boundary of site
Right boundary of site
Right houndary of site
Right boundary of site
Right boundary cf site
Right side of property
Right side of properiy
Rear of property

Centre of plot rear of
Property

Right side of site

Trees specified by reference to an area

Ng. cn Map Description
T4 Ash

T2 Ash

T3 Ash

T4 Ash

T5 Ash

T6 Qak

T7 Silver Birch
T8 Silver Birch
T9 Ash

T10 Ash

T11 Sycamore
T12 Ash

T13 Holly

T 4 Holly

T15 Sycamore
T16 Yew

T47 Willow

T18 Oak

T19 Apple

No. gn Map Description
G

2 x Horse Chestnut,

1 x Oak,

NGR

399743-272428

3 x Lawsons Cypress

1 x Spruce

Page 18

(within a dotled black line on the map)

Situation

Front boundary with
Linthurst Newtown road



Agenda Item 5

G2 3xAsh 399703-272467  Near left boundary
G3 2 x Horse Chestnut
3 x Beech
1 x Birch, 6 x Sycamore 399729-272512 Centre of site
G4 1 x Pear, 4 x Apple 399748-272529 Right side of site
G5 3 x Silver Birch 389697-272574 Near right boundary
Gé 1x Oak, 1x Holiy 399686-272549 Centre of site
1% Ash
Groups of Trees
{(within a broken black line on the map)
Mo, on Map Description NGR Situalion
NONE
Woodlands
(within & continuous black line on the map)
No. on Map Descriplion NGR Situation
W1 Mixed native 399639-272584 North-eastern end of
Species woodland : site

Page 19



g e 220 =
Crtinr S e
el Taef do
T

\nﬁ\“\ﬁw

e,

] Bromagrove Distriet Councit
TEE BAREA Tunel Prejacd: Tmeqi'ﬁrasemvtion Ordar  jPrwn:  G.B, Enginoetilig and Soslgn Servicas
M@"’ m b, {11) 2017 Tewwrt Hill
- . Br OIMSOrove \Walter Steanz Square

O TOIMagi OV Land Adietning 11250 Worss 50 SAH
District Council [orsung 73 Linthurs Nowtown | sauls g
e Blacikwall .

. V't‘WW,t‘I'Gn‘l.‘gI'O“'F.H(K}Vllk @men Copyrighl

" " and databags rights 2017
wwmerndtdlibeh b, pov.nk Crawing blo. PG00/ Daior 20 1 06 £ 21, Ordnance Survey 100024252

Page 20



Agenda Iltem 5

APPEND'X (2) .Objections to TPO (13) 2016

LRef

Name

(on behalf of Freefield Investments Ltd.)

01 | Freefield investments Ltd

02 | Grove Tompkins Bosworth Solicitors _’
(on behalf of Freefield Investments Ltd.)

03 | Cotswold Wildlife Surveys
{on behalf of Freefield Investments Ltd.)

04 | Barton Hyett Arboricultural Consultants
(on behalf of Freefield Investments Led.)

05 | Jerry Ross Arboricultural Consultancy

Page 21



Agenda Item 5

FREEFIELD
INVESTMENTS LTD

POBOX 16864
HENLEY IN ARDEN
B95 8BG
TEL: 01564 792539 FACSIMILE: (1564 898711

08 August 2016 Our ref: MAF1/JDP
Your ref: TPO(13)2016

Mrs R Sultana

Bromsgrove District Council

Parkside

Market Street

Bromsgrove

Worcs

B6l §DA . BY EMAIL ONLY

Dear Madam

Re: Town and Country Planning Act 1990

Bromsgrove District Council Tree Preservation Order (No.13} 2016
Tree/s on land at side and rear of 73 Linthurst Newtown aclovell

We refer to your letter of 3™ inst., enclosing purported Tree Preservation Order on land owned
by this company at Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell. Can you please note the abave address
for all future correspondence with us,

It is clear the Local Authority has acted precipitively and not in accordance either with the
preseribed procedures and regulations or governing statutes. Further, the Local Authority has
misapplied and misinterpreted the relevant law and has acted oppressively demonstraiing
clear prejudice and bias,

The schedule to the purported TPO does not comply with the relevant regulations and
guidelines and wrongly describes the fand as woodland. The Logal Authority’s own records
and a quick glance at the site evidences this Iand is not woodland, Accord ingly, the schedule
is fatally flawed due to the errors and omissions, '

The plan attached ta the purported TPO is also incorrect and to assist we attach a copy of our
Title Plan which shows the extent of and the correct boundary to our land,

For your further information, we would refer you to the Judgement in Evans v Waverley
Borough Council (1995) which specifically nddresses the *woodland’ mis-categorisation.

Taking all the above into account, it is clear the TPO is manifestly wrong and therefore a
nullity,

I

P amlibarad o Coardem:d A 3840164

Page 22

O~



Agenda ltem 5

FREEFIELD
INVESTMENTS LTD

POBOX 16864

HENLEY IN ARDEN
RO& RN

For your further information, your Tree Officer that altended the site on Wednesday last,
serving Notice, ordered our contractors fo immediately cease their maintenance work and
demanded immediate access to pur land. When scoess was TawTully denied, because your
Officer had not given any prior notice, he became belligerent and hostile and threatened to ask
the police to attend., We are disappointed that a Local Authority Officer would endeavour to
unlawfully force entry and prevent our contractors {rom carrying out their lawful work. Asa
gesture of goodwill, our contractors have temporarily ceased thelr maintenarce work to allow
the Local Authority the opportunity to liaise with us and deal with this matter fairly and
objectively.

We have today instructed our solicitors. Grove Tompkins Bosworth, 54 Newhall Street,
Birmingham, B3 3QG, to draft proceedings against the Local Authority to set aside this Order
and to seek casts on an indernity basis and damages for unwarranted interference with the
vights and powers of the landowner.

In the circumstances, we invits the Local Authority to forthwith revoke this purported TPO so
as to avoid unnecessary litigation and wasteful costs,

We also confirm we have instructed an Arboriculturist, Andy Warren of Cotswold Wildlife
Surveys, Withy Way, Charingworth, Ch ipping Camden, Glos, GL55 O6NU, 1o act on our
behalf and to survey any trees on our land that imay merit consideration for 2 TPO. We would
invite the Local Authority’s Tree Officer to meet with Andy Warren in order that this issue is
professionally dealt with in the best interests of all parties.

For the avoidance of doubt, we formally object to this TPO without in any way admitting the
validity of the same,

Finally, as a further gesture of goodwill, we undertake not to cut down any mature frees on
our land pending a site meeting with our Arboriculturist,

Yours faithful lyf

M A Fell

Director

C.C. Clare Flanagan, Principal Solicitor, Bromsgrove District Council
Claire Felton, Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic Sarvices
Kevin Dicks, Chief Exccutive, Bromsgrove District Counci]
Andy Warren, Cotswold Wildlife Surveys
Grove Tompkins Bosworth, Solicitors

Basistavad in Coanlnad Ria IR I8A

Page 23



s

MW Inpwneils

Py

€ oniten
B H Dk

YOUR REw

Agenda ltem 5

O -2

Grove Tompkins Bosworth

= Solicitors -~

SE Newhall Styee
Bromngham 53 3¢
L3 Gtis Baemi

Tt tye 0214, ]
favums'e 950330 S oy

Fistard L R S R
oty JRDMS Freefield vat O3 September 2046
Bromsgrove District Couneil
Parkside
Market Street
Bromsgrove

Wares B&1 8DA
and by email: r.sultana brumsgrmwndredditch,gm;uh

Drear Sirs

Re: Freefield Invesements Eimised
Freels on Land a1 Side & Rear of 73 Linthurst Newfow 71, Bloaelowelt
Tree Preservation Order 1312818

We have been consulted By our elients, Freeficht Tovestments | imited, i relation to the
above Tree Preservation Order which has been issued and in our view jo seif~evidently wrong
in designating the whole of the area us W1 and ix clew abuse of process W deliberately
frustrate Gur-clients' lawiid use of their fand, Canwe ploise invige the focal authority o
revoke the TPO as in the alternative we are instructed to seek Counsel's opinion with 2 view
W claiming costs and damages in accordance with precedenis and cuse luw. Qur chients”
Arboriculturist has been instructed 10 Haise with the local avthority Tree Prevervation

- Officers and fo vioik eonstristively with $iom @ TS NN treds ar groups ot friges that mdy

. ol .|_9/ .
e} F‘g‘;’g’ Convayancing

Thiglivy

be appropriate for TPO protection In view oof the holiday period our clients® Arboriculturist
has not had sufficient time 10 prepare his full protessional report in this matter and we yre
terefore asking for ﬂddi{i{mﬁ“ti{i‘iﬁ:‘riq_!__r.;i};g;{' that this van e prepared and submitted for

consideration and a constructive mesting can fake place with vour Mr Bucklich.
We trust this is in order and no action Wit be tahen wanid ds mecting has taken place,

Yours thithfulhy

P2
GROVE TOAMPK N BOSWORTY

Personal Fmalicird a-gth-solicitors com

RO TN IS AU HRESOAND #T a0 Y e SR TTORN Bl 4 aibom AL Litaety gy A o

LRSI T P Pagez4 Sinel

Crichsinsi

Enfuires Terieo

ﬁg




Agenda Item 5
O-3

30® September 2016

Cotswold Wildlife Surveys

Mrs R Sultana
Bromsgrove District Council
Parkside

Market Street

Bromsgrove

Worcestershire

B61 8DA

Dear Madam,

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER: BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
(No. 13) 2016 - TREES ON LAND AT SIDE AND REAR OF 73 LINTHURST
NEWTON, BLACKWELL, BROMSGROVE, B60 1BS

Further to the formal notice of the above Tree Preservation Order (TPO) on 3"
August 2016, this is to coufirm, that on behalf of my clients Mr M Fell and Ms E
Rosser, I wish to object to the notification of the TPO.

The Council have made the order for the following reason:

The trees provide special amenity value and the Tree FPreservation Order is made in
the interests of amenity.

Whilst we are not opposed to TPOs per se, in this case the TPO appears to have been
hastily applied across part of the garden at No. 73, as well a5 the land on each side and
to the rear of No. 73.

My objection is as follows:

1. The side and rear garden of No, 73 is not woodland, and is not connected in any
way to the works on the adjoining land, Furthermore, No. 73 is in the private
ownership of Mr Fell and Ms Rosser and is used for domestic purposes. As such it
should not have been included in the TPO.

2. The clearance works on the adjoining land actually started about two years ago,
with recent works focusing on tall ruderal vegetation, scrub and previously felled
material, with some small areas of young, self-seeded trees also included,

Cotswold Wildlife Surveys Limited - Company Reg. No. 6864285 (England & Wales)
Withy Way, Charingworth, Chipping Campden, Gloucestershire, GL55 6NU
Tel: 01386 593056,/07879 848449 Email: undv@cofstvoldwiId!ifesurveys.ca.uk
VAT Reg. No, 944 1653 20

Page 25



Agenda Item 5

The latter consisted of Ash Fraxinus excelsior, Sycamore Acer pseudoplatanus,
Domestic Plums Prunus domestica and Goat Willow Salix caprea, whilst the scrub
included Elder Sambucus nigra and Cherry Laurel Prunus lavracerasus.

It is worth noting that most of the young, self-seeded trees to the rear of No. 73 had
previously been severely pruned by the electricity board as part of their cable
wayleave clearance operations.

By designating the whole site as W1, work on clearing the scrub had to cease, leaving
the land around No. 73 in an unkempt state. This is having a negative effect on the
neighbourhood, and is particularly concerning for Mr Fell and Ms Rosser who are
surrounded on three sides by the mess.

3. As the TPO was applied to trees of special amenity value, it is requested that the
TPO is re-issued so that it only applies to those trees of landscape and visual
importance and not the whole site, and not the garden of No. 73,

Indeed, I have walked the site with Andy Bucklitch, the Tree Officer, and I am aware
that he has since re-visited to examine the individual trees in more detail.

During our visit he acknowledged that the woodland TPO is the highest level of
cover, and is designed to protect trees which are potentially at risk, thereby allowing
the Tree Officer sufficient time to review the site and place specific TPOs on
individual trees.

Given that only a small part of the adjoining land is being tidied up, with the majority
untouched, I do not see the justification for a blanket woodland TPO, when there
would appear to be sufficient time to assess the trees on the site on thejr individual
merits as laid out in the Town and Country Planning Act,

I would also suggest that any TPO should not restrict my clients at No. 73 on the
grounds of reasonable tree works, which under the present circumstances this clearty
does. :

Yours sincerely,

Andy Warren BSc (Hons), MA (LM), Tech Cert (Arbor A), MCIEEM, TechArborA

Cotswold Wildlife Surveys Limited - Company Reg. No. 6864285 (England & Wales)
Withy Way, Charingworth, Chipping Campden, Gloucestershire, 6L55 §NU
Tel: 01386 593056/07879 848449 Email: andy@cotswoldwi Idlifesurveys.co.uk
VAT Reg. No. 944 1653 20

Page 26

o s

T A 10 F A - g s

AT SR oA it 85



Agenda Item 5

Barton Hyett

F.73LN | TPQob | PEB| 28.09,2016 !
Arbonculturst Consultants

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJECTION
ON BEHALF OF
FREEFIELD INVESTMENTS LIMITED
RELATING TO
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (NO 13) 2016
AT
LAND AT SIDE AND REAR OF:

73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL

Prepared by: Paul Barton MSc, TechCerr (ArborAf, MArbora
Checked by: ferry Ross, BSc, FArbora
Reference: F.73LN

Barton Hyett Associates

AFDaricuhyg! Cansulrants

Unit 5E, Deer Park Business Centre, Eckington, Pershore, WR10 3DN
Tel: 01386 576161

Emall: eng uiries@barton-hyatt.co.uk

Wishsite: www.barton-hyett.co.uk

Page 27

a=4

e et oy = s, s e i



FREEFIELD INVESTMENTS LIMITED
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBIECTION

CONTENTS:

1. INTRODUCTION
2. GUIDANCE

3. GROUNDS FOR OBIECTION
4. CONCLUSIONS

AR T e e

REVISIONS:

Agenda Item 5

Barton Hyett

Atk cgftal Corduligar 3

Page No:

10

F Date Rey Description of revision Initials
28.09.16 - First issue PEB
IE I i
L | |

E.73LN | TPOob | PEB] 28.09.2015. -

Page 28



Agenda ltem 5

FREEFIELD INVESTMENTS LIMITED
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBIECTION

1 s,

ettt Cor

Saﬁon Hygﬁ

ELREEIEVEN BN A e o e

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 A Tree Prasarvation Order (TPO) has recently been served by Bromsgrove District Cauncil,

1.2 The title of the TPO is:

*  Bromsgrove District Council Trea Preservation Order (No 13) 2016, tree/s on land at side and

rear of 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
13 The above address Is hereafter referred to as ‘the site’,
1.4 The TPO spetifies:
* W1 woodland

15 The stated reasons for serving the Order are as fallows:

*  “The trees provide special amenity value and the Tree Preservation Order is made in the
interests of amenity”
L6 The TPO was served on 3™ August 2016 and takes provisional effect for six months from this date.
After this time, If the TPO has not been formally confirmed by the Local Planning Authority (LPA) its

provisional effect will lapse and a new Order must be served,

1.7 The deadline for objections to be received by the LPA in relation to this Order was stated as 5%
September 2016. Since then, letters have been exchanged between Freefiald Investrments Limited
and the focal planning authority (LPA) and a letter from the LPA dated o' September granted an

extension of time for representations to be made until Friday 30t September 2016.

1.8 I have been instructed to prepare this representation as part of an objection to the TPY by the

Directors of Freefield Investments Limited.

1.9 The abjection |s made in accordance with Regulation 6 of the Town and Country Planning (Tree
Preservation) {England) Regulations 2012. It states the reasons for the objection and specifies the

trees, groups of trees or woodlands in gquastion.

FI3N | Th008 | e b o e 1 T

Page 29

e ey g 5



Agenda Item 5

Barton Hyett

Arbrgricgitug: Corgultanty

FREEFIELD INVESTMENTS LIMITED
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJECTION

2,

2.1

2.2

GUIDANCE

Guldance is pravided to Local Planning Authorities by the Department for Communities and Loeal
Government through the online Planning Practice Guidance Suite
{http://pianninggufdance.planningportal.gov,uk}, which replaced previous guidance contained in the
dacument ‘Tree Preservation Orders: A Gulde to the Law and Good Practice’ commanly referred to as
‘the Blue Book’, This guidance sets out the grounds on which a TPO might be served. For clarity, the

relevant elements of this guidance are reproduced below:

Power to make a TPO;

Local planning authorities can make a Tree Preservation Order if it appears to them to be ‘expedient

in the interests of amenity to make provision for the preservation of trees or woodlonds in thelr

area’,

When deciding whether an Order is appropriate, authorities are advised to take Into
consideration what ‘amenity’ means in practice, what to take Into occount when assessing amenity
value, what ‘expedient’ means in practice, what trees can be protected and how they can he

identified,

‘Amenity” Is not defined in law, so authorlties need to exercise fudgment when deciding whether it

Is within their powers to muke an Order,

Orders should be used to protect selected lroes and woodlands If their removal Vrould have o
significant negative impact on the local environment and its enjoyment by the public. Before
autherities moke or confirm an Order they should be able to show thar protection would bring o

reasanable degree of public benefit in the present or future,

When considering whether trees should be protected by an Order, authorities pre advised to
develop ways of assessing the amenity value of trees in a structured and consistent way, taking into

account the following criteria:

Visibility

The extent to which the trees or woodlands can be seen by the public wilf inform the authority’s
assessment of whether the impact on the local environment is significant, The trees, or at feast part
of them, should normally be visible from a public place, such as a road or footpath, or accessible hy

the public.

Individual, ¢ollective and wider Impact

Public visibility alone will not be sufficlent to warrant an Order. The authority is gdvised to also

F.73LN | TPOob | PEB| 28.09.2016 T

Page 30

R Bt bl e et e

b A it 1 m £ g

i 480 kA e B e,



Agenda Item 5

FREEFIELD INVESTMIENTS LIMITED Ba rto I Hyeﬁ
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL Arbgraaltast Condaiass
‘TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBIECTION

O v

assess the particular importance of an individual tree, of groups of trees or of woodlands by

reference to its or their characteristics Includin g:
*  skze and form;
*  futwre potential as an amenjty;
*  rarity, cultural or historic value;
*  contribution to, and relationship with, the landscape; and

*  contribution to the chargcter or appearance of a conservation greq.

Other factors

Where relevant to an assessment of the amenity value of trees or woadlands, authorities may
consider taking Into account ather factors, such as importance to hature conservation or response

to climate change. These factors alone wauld not worrant making an Order

It may be expedient to make an Order if the authotity believes there is o risk of trees being fefled,

pruned or damaged In ways which would have a significant impact on the amenity of the area.

Page 31



Agenda Item

FREEFIELD INVESTMENTS LIMITED Barton Hyett
LAND AT 72 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL Relige it nz: Sondultaats
TREE PRESERVATION QRDER QBJECTION

3. GROUNDS FOR OBJECTION

3.1 The grounds for objection are as follows:

a.  The use of the wood!and category is inappropriate and unjustified.
b.  The TPO cannot be justified on the grounds of preserving public amenity
€. The plan showing the land covered by the TPO is not of sufficient accuracy.
3.2 Each of the above polnts of ohjection are explained in further detai in the following paragraphs.

lnappropriate use of the woodland category

3.3 The planning policy guidance on making TPQ's states:

‘The woodland category’s Purpose it to safeguard a woodland as ¢ whole, So it follows
that, while some trees may lack individua! merit, all trees within o woaedland that merits
protection are protected and made subjer't to the same provisions and exemptions. In
addition, trees and saplings which grow naturally or are planted within the woodland areg

after the Order is mode are also protected by the Order.
ft Is unlikely to be appropriate to yse the woodland classification in gardens’,

34 The TPO schadule describes the trees to be protected as “all trees of any size and species within W1

on the plan”.

3.5 The land that the Order relates to Is In parts heavlly vegetated with ruderal low-level flora including
brambla, nettles, fern and annual weeds, but devoid of treas. While it is accepted that woodlands
have open areas such as glades and rides, the areas of this site that are devoid of any trees comprise
major proportions of the area as a whole and cannot be described In these terms. The deslgnation of
an area that includes such substantial regions of tree-less land as ‘Woodland’ within a TPO Is
unreasonable and contrary to the intentions of the TPO legislations. The designation of this land
within this provisional TPO as ‘Woodland’ Is interpreted as an atternpt to enforce the conversion of
existing scrubland in to future woodland by protecting all naturally occurring self-set seedling and
sapling growth. In so doing the Local Authority appears to be forcing the landowner to give his land

over for a use for which he has not intended.

F.73LN | TPOob | PEB] 28.09.2016 . 3

Page 32



FREEFIELD INVESTMENTS LIMITED
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWEL,
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBIECTION

NS s ), ARINTSI AL AR 0N T LGt 4§ i L s o

iy BRIt T % 45 4 P I

¥

Agenda ltem 5

o Barton Hyett
Arharicyitansl Cansiltany

G 4

Photos 1 & 2: open scrub aregs to the sldes of no.73 showing barley any trees of significant stature,

3.6 The TPO plan shows that the northeast side of the garden of no.73 Is also included within the

woodland order. As noted above in the planning policy guidance,

used in gardens.

woodland orders should not he

3.7 The northern part of the site contains numerous young trees, including Goat Whllow, Silver and

Downy Birch, Hawthorn, Oak, Sycamore, Beech, Flder and Apple,

These are largely pioneer s pecies of

tree that readlly self-seed and colonise previously disturbed or barren land. This accords with the site

history, which in recent time was a Mink Farm and paddack, not woadland. Indeed there is no

historical evidence that the area Included any woodland: aerlal Imagery shows that in 1945 that the

area was an agricultural field as shown in figure 1 below.

Figure 1: Aeriol image from 1945 with approximate site boundary shown in red {source Google Farth Pro, 2016).

F.73LN | TPOob | PEB{ 28.09.2016

Page 33

st o iy

s 8

T S e L P g




FREEFIELD INVESTMENTS LIMITED
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJECTION

3.8

3.9

F73LN | TPOu | PER] 28.05.90% bt 1 s i s g e 6 S—

Agenda Iltem 5

The LPA’s 2015 ‘Strategic Housing tand Availability Assessment’ Includes the site in its schedule of
‘Green Belt potential’ sites (site reference BDC154). The assessment process involved two strateglc
planning officers undertaking desk-based research and site visits to evaluate the site’s potential for
allocation for housing. The desk-based research inéluded GIS data on conservation sites, the habitat
inventory and the Worcestershire Biodiversity Action Plan. The on-site assessment included a survey
of the site's size, current use, character of surrounding area, physical constraints, boundaries and
surrounding land use, The conclusion of the planning officer’s assessment was that the predominant
land type is ‘agricultural scrubland’ and that ‘landscape and trees’ would not be significantly

impacted hy development of the site. Please see figure 2 below.

In additlon, the sales particulars written to advertise the land for sale In 2005 describe the land as ‘a
valuable piece of accommodation/agricultural fand’. Clearly, the owner did not purchase a woodland

so to classify it as such a short time later is unjustifiable,

Page 34

Barton Hyett

Arbnsivoltus! Coee sants




FREEFIELD INVESTMENTS LIMITED
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL
TREE PRESEHVATION ORDER OBJECTION

AN L A ey A a0

Sitas in Blad(well Burmt and Banley

Agenda Iltem 5

TR G R N e s e

O

Barton Hyett

Arbaeirulturat Corsliant

- SiteReference | BOCE | BDCOO | BDCIOD
appra Critera

T éu (e T

YRS

sﬁasize{m hectare)
St Pobicy
§~ Bodiversty, Seodersty € Hantage

Laod] 3tk eflonding _
T ym—
Bixess s pubite fmpurt

Hecass orpaimary schoek

Aocmsa plocal ol facigies

Aot tofealih farities

ooty oo sile

Lo & ress

Pubic Bghtsof Wy

Poystal corsteatnts

Tpan spaoe & weomation

enghapiventL32

nfisractn gy

Stage B

Highay acouss

%mmmmmqmﬂatdeﬁmﬁiumﬂ
el theprosasivst b type?

mm;mmmsmmmm | | 10 55 | 4

Flgure 2: BDC SHLAA 2015 showing the site details highlighted n red.

Public visual amenity

3.10 Inthe LPA’s reasons for making the TPO s stated that:

‘The trees provide speciol ame:irty value and’the Tree Preservation Order is made in the

interests of amenity’.

F73LN [ TPOob | PEB| 28.09.2016

Page 35

s

e g s Ya b b s o s s



Agenda Iltem 5

FREEFIELD INVESTMENTS LIMITED Barton Hyett
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL ¥ e ,nlf T
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJECTION

3.11 This reason has been applied to all the trees that are the subject of the TPO, Whilst some of the trees
that are present on the site are visible to the general public, notably those along the frontage to
Linturst Newtown, most are not. It cannat be the case that trees have ‘special amenity value’ if they

cannot be seen
3.12 The Planning Palicy Guidance on the making of TPO's states:

The trees, or at least part of themn, should normally be visible from o public place, such as o

road or footpath, or accessible by the public’

3.13 The land covered by the Order adjoins Linthurst Newtown on the southeast side. This Is the only road
that provides views of the trees within the site. It Is accepted therefore that the row of trees along
the roadside do have visual amenity as they are easily seen. Addltionally, maturé trees in the internal
square shaped area Immediately to the rear of the garden can be partially viewed, as the top of their

crowns are visible over the roofs of adjacent houses.

]f; :ﬂw LEpE . e .
; 5 : ; 3

j 4 & : #ra i el e
: }’ £ 3; Y\ ST oy

L
&
Y
&
£
o E‘%.

*{iﬁ
+
;
o
b
1)
t’

wo & ", .
SIS0
1% ;@ ..p.\:;_a:
& L
g v A3 T s :
6§ 8
et Lol ¥ 3! —
"‘ 8
e i 3 ] ' ~
o 15, - : A ) i @ ., i %
TR UEEEIN O 4 -
* ﬂvﬁ“ﬂ'“ % Gm”‘-“'br ' ﬁ'

Figure 2: snapshot of Ordnance Survey plan showing the site in relation to local roads and footpuths. Photos
taken from locations 1, 2 and 2 are provided below,

F73N ) 10095 | Pt B St s s st S 8

Page 36

R A Sl . A b R b 5 o




Agenda Item 5

FREEFIELD INVESTIMIENTS LIMITED Ba rton Hyett
LAND AT 73 INTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL ) Attt Con ottt
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBIECTION )

EaRe

SRR AL e e g, e

Photo 4: view from location 2.

Photo 5: view from location 3.

3.14  The areas of the site that contain more dense tree cover are not visible from public roads or

faotpaths, so have a negligible visual amenity value,

315  No information has been pravided by the LPA to demonstrate how the amenity value of any trees
that are the subject of the TPO were assessed In a ‘structured and consistent way talking into account ;
their visibitity, individual visual Impact and wider visual impact’, as specified within Government

guidance.

Inaccurate TPO plan

3.16 The plan showing the location of W1 in relation to the land has been drawn at 1:1250 scale. The
boundary line appears to have been drawn by hand using a broad-nibbed pen, which when measured
with a scale rule gives a boundary width of 2 metres. This is not sufficiently accurate 1o determine ;

which trees near the boundary of the site are Intluded in the Order,

3.17 Additionally, the drawn boundary line along the northeast boundary of ths garden of no.73 is
approximately 2 metras inside the garden boundary. As noted at 3.6 ahove, this attempt to include

trees within the domestic curtilage of the property as woodland s inappropriate and would lead to

F.73LN | TPOob | PEB} 28.09.201 9

Page 37



FREEFIELD INVESTMENTS LIMITED
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTGWN, BLACKWELL
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBIECTION

Agenda Item 5

ongoing canfusion for the occupant of the house, particularly with regard to naturally occurring

saplings or smalf ornamental garden trees that cauld be planted along the baundary In the future,

4. CONCLUSIONS

4.1 It is requested that TPO No 13 js not conflrmed by the Council for the reasons stated within this
report,

4.2 If, hawever, the councll is minded to confirm the Order {having glven due consideration to the
reasons for objection set out above), it is requested that the TPO be confirmed subject to
maodifications that omit any treeftree group that cannot be demonstrated in a consistant and
structured way to make a significant, long-term, contribution to public visual amenlty as well as s
enjoyment by the public,

4.3 Therefore, in the event of a decision being made by the Council to confirm the Order with
modifications, It is requested that a more detailed asséssment Is made of the trees in order to
ascertain which trees are of significant quality and visibility in order to attract the special amenity
value required for suitability for a TPO, + In order to undeartake such an assessment, some vegetation
clearance will be necessary to gain access through the dense ruderal vegetation,

Paul Bartop, MSc, MArborA
28" September 2016
73N | T900b | PeB] 2808 305 e 50 e e m SRR et

Page 38

Barton Hyett

Arboriedura Jorsaitant s

FAETIRYE 10  SE i 1 et S e i e 1

e e e g e i e it



Agenda Item 5
O~5

Jerry Ross Arboricultural Consultancy
J.P.Ross B.Sc.hons) F.Ambor.A
Tel/Fax: 01989 770383

Mobile: 07860 232308
Email: trees@jerryross.co.uk

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
The Council House,

Burcot Lane

Bromsgrove

Worcestershire
B60 1AA 30 September 2016

FAO C. Felton, Head of Legal Equalities & Democratic Services

Dear Ms Felton

Tree Preservation Order No. 13 {2016)
Land at the side & rear of 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL

Please accept the following as an addendum to be consldered in addition to document no.
F.73LN[TPOQb/PEB/ZB.OQ.ZDlG, being a letter of formal objection to the above TPO by Paul
Barton of Barton Hyett Associates, acting on behalf of Freefield Investments Limited.

There follows an analysis of the area included as ‘woodland W1’ in the Order using the
methodology known as Woodland Evaluation Method for Preservation Orders (“Woodland
TEMPO), This allows for scoring the area in question on a number of criteria with the total score
being used to determine whether a TPO is definitely merited, if a TPO |s clearly defensible or
unlikely to merit TPO protection or if 3 TPO is indefensible or simply inapplicable.

Finclude here a score sheet and a document explaining the system. The system inevitably
assumes that the area in question is recognisably ‘woodland’; Mr Barton’s previous submission
makes clear that this is not the case over much of the area designated as W1, However,
confining the assessment to that part of the site which is at least largely tree covered, the result
is a score of 11, giving a clear indication that the woodland TPO is indefensible,

I trust that this method of providing a disinterested evaluation of the appropriateness of
designating the site as.a wondland TPO will be given due weight.

Yours sincerely

- PRV
J.P. Ross B.sc.(hons) F:r‘bor.@/

lerry Ross Arbaricultural Consultancy #3@
The Old Pound, % -
Llangarrpn,

Ross-on-Wye, N i
Herefordshire. '.:“.g gﬁ’fg',*ﬁ‘f?ﬁ'
HR2 6PG “Iraes arg uk
VAT Ha: 549 5597 83 REGISTERED

CONSULTANT

Page 39



Agenda Item 5

WOODLAND EVALUATION METHOD FOR PRESERVATION ORDERS (WOODLLAND TEMPQ)

SURVEY DAT SHEET AND DECISION GUIDE

LDate 30/09/2016  Surveyor J.P.Ross

Woodland details

TPO Ref (if applicable) TPO 13 (20186) Location: Land adj. to 73 Linthurst Newtown r

REFER TO GUIDANCE NOTES FOR ALL DEFINITIONS

¥

Part 1: Amenity assessment

a) Condition and suitabllity for TPO: where trees in good or fair condition have poor form, deduct 1 point

10) Unmanaged ~ goad/falr condition Highly Suitable Insofar as the area designated as W1 contains
8) Unmanaged ~ poor condition Very Suitable any recognisable woodland it is Unmanaged
5) Excessively managed Suitable 7 and in Poor Condition.

2} Under good management Barely sultable SCORE 8

1) Derelict Unlikely to be sultable

0) Dead/Dying/Dangerous* Unsultable

*Relates to existing context and is intended to apply to majorlty of main stand trees having severe irremediable defects only

b) Naturalness & suitability for TPO

10) Anclent/ASN Highly sultable Such woodland that can be recagnised as such
8) Recent seml-natural Very suitable Is wholly dominated by self-set ‘Plonesr’ species
5) Replanted ancient Suitable* SCORE 1

2) Recent native plantation Barely suitable

1) Pioneer dominant Unlikely to be suitable

0} Recent exotic plantation Unsuitable

*If faw old growth trees present & little or no regen consider TEMPO trea/group assessment

¢) Size (ha) & suity bility for TPO

10) 100+ Extremely suitable

8) 10-<100 Highly Suitable

5) 5<10 Very Suitable

2) 0.25-<5 Sultable

1)<0.1 Unsuitable (consider TEMPO tree/group
assessment)

d) Cultural factors
Woodland must have acerued 13 or mare points (with no zero score) to qualify

10} Historleal recard / vital landscape feature / 210% veteran tree population present
B) $5Sl or other natlonal designation; significant la ndscape / habitat Importance

5) Woodland with |ocal o eslgnation / high public use / identifiable habitat value

2} Woodland with internal public access {use light or unknown} / some habitat value
1) Woodland adjacent to highway or with external public access / low hahitat value
0) Wocdland with none of the above additional features Ine, minimal habitat value

Part 2: Expediency assessment
Woodland must have accrued 15 or more points to qualify

Area: 0,26<5 Ha,

SCORE 2

SUB-TOTAL = 11
TPO INDEFENSIBLE

5) Immediate threat to overall woodlzand

4) Immediate risk of slgnificant loss / severe fragmentation
3) Foreseeabla risk of significant |oss / severe fragmentation
2) Foreseeable risk of partial loss / fragmentation

1} Precautionary only

Bcores & Noteg

Part 3; Decision guide

Decision

Any D Da not apply TPO

1-12 TPO indefensible Add scores for Total
13-15 Does not merit TPO

16-20 TPO defensible

21+ Definitely merits TPO

Page 40



Agenda Item 5

Forbes-Laird Arboricultural Consu]tancy Ltd

. P]amu’ng *TPO - Safety Inspection  * Subsidence Litigation  + Design

WOODLAND EVALUATION METHOD FOR PRESERVATION ORDERS

WOODLAND TEMPO

Guidance Note for Users

Julian Forbes-Laird
BA(Hons), MICFor, MEWI, M. Arbor. A, Dip, Arb. (RFS)

Registered Consultant of the Arboricultural Association

Director & Principal Consultant, Forbes-

Laird Arboricyltural Consultancy Ltd

April 2008
FPrincipal Consulrani: Reglaered Qffice:
Julian Forbes-Laird A1 Dendron House
BA(Hons), MICFor, MEWI, M_Arhor A D ArhqRES) _~'j"_."": arfor . P
T/F 01767 641648 E ] O it o 7 Barford Road B;i?;.
E N@ilac.uk.com W riered Foresters

W www.flac.uk.com

k Bedford « MK44 3ND
MEWI

S S

432 Pyt s



Agenda Iltem 5

Introduction

Background

The impetus to take a fresh look at existing TPO suitability evaluation methods originally grew out of
the preParaﬁon for a local authority of a detailed Method Statement for reviewing Tree Preservation
Orders (TPOs) in 2002. The client wanted the Method Statement to include a relisble means of

assessing trees for TPO suitability, and asked for a bespoke system.

Having looked closely at what was already available, the author decided that there was considerable
room for improvement, as each of the better-known existing methods has disadvantages.

Accordingly, TEMPO was developed as a direct response to the apparent continuing uncertainty about
what attributes a tree should have in order to merit statutory protection by TPQ.

Since its public release, TEMPO has consistently gai'ned'popular-ity, being in use with over 50 local
authorities, several of which have used it for a full scale TPO review, as well as many consultants,

However, TEMPO was deliberately designed to address considerations of TPO suitability in relation to
individual trees and groups of trees: it does not consider factors relating to woodland TPO suitability

assessment.

‘Woodland TEMPO! has been developed specifically to address these factors, following instruction from
Loch Lomond and The Trossachs National Park Authority, who wanted to augment their uge of TEMPO
with a method specifically designed to consider woodlands,

Overview

Woodland TEMPO (W-TEMPO) is designed primarily as a field guide to decision-making, though it is
recognized that some desk study work is likely to be required. Like TEMPO, the woodland version i
presented on a single side of A4 as an casily completed pro forma. As such, it stands as a record that a

systematic assessment has been undertaken.,

W-TEMPO considers all of the relevant factors in the TPO clecision-making chain, including
expech‘eucy] .

Excluding the first section, which is simply the swvey record and is thus se[flexplanator}r, W-TEMPO
replicates TEMPOQ’s three-part structure:

Part 1 i3 theAmenityAsscssment
Part 2 is the Expec[itzucy Assessment

Part 3 is the Decision Guide

These parts are set out and function as follows:

Page 42



Agenda Iltem 5

Part 1: Amenity Assessment

This part of W-TEMPO is broken down into four sections, each of which is related to woodland
suitability for statutory protection by TPO:

a) Condition

b) Naturalness

) Size

d) Cultural factors

The first three sections form an initial assessment, with trees that ‘pass’ this going on to the. fourth
section. Looking-at the sections in more detail:

a) Condition

This is expressed by six terms, which are defined as follows:

Unmanaged — Waoodland with little orno interference but without thia having lead to a marked deterioration

good/fair condition in condifion ‘

Unmanaged — Waoodland with little or no interference with. this having lead to 2 marked deterioration in

poar condition condition

Excessively managed Woodland showing unnecessary removal/ clearing of trees in poor or dead condition, including
‘hygiene’ works to remove (non-hazardous) dead wood ete _

Under good Woodland b.ei|1g managed nc«;prding to ac'qepted standards of gaod sylvicultural practice,

management including the preservation of deadwood habitat

Derelict | Woodland that has béeen neglected or which has suffered savere storm darnage, such that its
cohesion, integrity and value have been eroded beyond reasonable expectation of recovery

Dead/ dying/ Woodland, usually Df_' small size, with key trees in unretainable condition such that it has no

dangerous obvious future as a viable and cohesive entity

The scores are weighted towards woodlands in unmanaged condition, as government advice’ counsels
against making a woodland type TPO where good management is in place. However, woodlands that
have become derelict, thereby losing their value as cohesive features, score low in that it might net be
appropriate to seek to compel thefr retention. Dead, dying or dangerous trees should not be placed
under a TPO, due to exemptions within the primary legis']ation, hence the zero score for this category.
However, it is accepted that the applicability of this to woodlands will only occur in rare cases,

A note on the pro forma emphasizes that ‘dangerous’ should only be selected in relation to the
woodland’s existing context: a future danger arising, for example, as a result of df:ve]opmenl, would not
apply. Thus, 2 woodland can be in 2 state of general collapse but not be dangerous due to the absence of

Under this section of W-TEMPO, it is important to consider the condition of those principle trees
without which the woodland would lose its aerodynamic, visual or cultural cohesion. If the woodland
cannot be 'split’ in thig way, for example into c]iff’ering compartments, then jts average condition should
be considered.

Each of the condition categories is related to TPQ suitability.

Page 43



Agenda Iltem 5

b} Naturalness

It is an accepted principle of sylvicultural assessment to categorize woodlands according to a scale that
encompasses woodlands close to their ‘natural’ state at one end, and woodlands which are. wholly alien

features at the other.

The six ‘naturalness’ categories given in this section seek to identify the various possibilities, though it is
accepted that woodlands can o['tel; comprise a mosaic of types. In such cases, the surveyor should
consider scoring the different woodland types present and then either averaging the resulting score, or
including only the more natural areas under any resulting TPO,

The class type names are intended either to reflect published classifications, or to be self explanatory.
For specific definitions, therefore, it is recommended that [urther reading is undertaken.

However, it is considered helpful to outline the author’s general intention as follows:

| Ancient/ASN Woaded area continuously occupied by trees since 1600 or earlier (England & Wales; 1750 for
Scotland) possibly including later native introductions and management; includes wood pasture
‘Recent semi-natural Woodland arising elther naturally or by planting after1600 (or 1750 in the case of Scotland),
the character of which is similar to ancient woodland in; terms of tree/shrub species present,
such that its biodiversity value would be likely to inerease over time, given preservation and
appropriate management

Replanted ancient Area known to have been wooded prior to 1600 (or 1750 for Scotland) but which may have
been almast cleared in the interim, to be ovéerplanted with (usually exotic) timber crop trees
intended for commercial use; some old growth trees and/or ancient areas (inc,
soils/seedbanks) surviving; capable of at least partial restoration aver time

Recent mative Commercially planted native waodland that either has yet to mature or has matured but has yet

plantation to develop an uneven age structure and other features of interest; trees regularly spaced, few
habitat features, shrub and herb layers poor

Pioneer dominant Area recently captured by pioneer species, typically in pole stage and with very little diversity;

littke if any indication of succession species arising; poor potential for development into recent
semi-niatural except over significant lapse of time and/ of with intensive mianagement
Recent exotic Commereially planted non-native woodland '

plantation

As with condition, the chosen category is related to a summary of TPO suitability.

c) Size

The size bands given in the method broadly correspond to those used by the Forestry Commission (FC)
in the publication ‘National Inventory of Woodland and Trees, Great Britain’ (FC 2003), at Tables 1 and
7a. However, the total number of size categories used by the FC of ten was considered to be unwieldy,
and so the categories in the medium to upper size ranges have been conflated,

Where a mosaic woodland is being assessed, the size categories can be used to run multiple assessmerts
to derive an aggregate score (allowing computation of a mean), or to test the TPO suitability of certain
compartments (e.g replanted ancient woodland where old growth trees survive in only a part of the

total treed area),

Once again, the categories relate to a summary of TPO suitability.

Page 44



Agenda Item 5

Sub-total i

At this point, there is a pause within the decision«making process: as the prompt under ‘other factors’
states, woodlands only qualify for consideration within that section providing they have acerued at least
thirteen paoints. Additionally, they must not have collected any zero scores,

The total of thirteen has been arrived at by combining various possible outcomes from sections a-c.

The scores [rom the first three sections should be added together, before proceeding to section d, or to
part 3 as appropriate (i.e. depending on the accrued score). Under the latter scenario, there are two

possible outcomes:

¢ ‘Any 0 equating to ‘do not apply TPO'
s 112 equating to “TPO indefensible’

d) Cultural factors

Assuming that the woodland qualifies for consideration under this section, further points are available
for five sets of criteria, however only one score should be applied per tree (or group):

Historical record / vital landscape feature / 210% veteran tree population present

The first of these criteria is intended to identify woodlands which are known to have existed well prior
to the 1600 date that defines ancient woadland (or well prior to 1750 in the case of Scotland), An
exarnple of such a record would be a Domesday Book entry. It is accepted that ‘vital landscape feature’ is
susceptible to subjective interpretation, though it ought to be possible to henchmark this at a sensible
level based on high public visibility. In relation to veteran trees, the percentage given is arbitrary, being
designed to reflect the presence of a significant population of such specimens: it maybe that a near miss
percentage of, say, 9% is ag good, and so this criterion should not be applied too strictly, Clearly,
however, ver y low percentages of veteran trees present would not qualify.

5381 or other national designation, or significant landscape / habitat importance

The first of these criteria is assumed to be self-explanatory, The second and third criteria are intended to
be interpreted in similar fashion as above, thongh obviously at lesser values. It is recognized that an
assessment of habitat importance is likely to require ecological input, unless the benefit is self-evident
(e.g Red Data Book species already known to be present),

Woodland with local designation / high public use / ideéntifiable habitat valye

‘Local designations’ include Sites of Interest for Nature Conservation, which tends to overlap with
‘identifiable habitat value’, and may even retlect/be considered under ‘significant habitat Importance’ in
the class above, ‘Local designations’ could also include historical records of less antiquity than the 1600
(or 1750) cut-off for ancient woodland. An example of this would be a so-called Roy Wood. High public
use is intended to reflect woodlands comprising a locally known recreational resource, whereby public
access is commonplace at, say, weekends, ‘Identifiable habitat value’ could relate to woodlands with a
good age structure, retained deadfalls/ deadwood, rich shrub and/or herb layers, fungi, etc, where there
is factual knowledge that such features are being utilised,

Page 45



Agenda Iltem 5

Woodland with internal public access (use lisht or unknown) / some habitat alue

‘Internal public access’ is intended to reflect either rights of way (England and Wales) or known actual
useage (Scotland), ‘Moderate habitat value’ s intended to identify woodlands offering biodiversity
benefits at an intermediate, non-specific level. Features will be similar to those listed in the ¢lass above,
but will be fewer, and evidence of actual useage will be lower or absent.

Woodland adjacent to highwav' or with external public access / low habitat value
In relation to access, this class covers woodlands in England and Wales where formal access is external,

allowing views of and into the woodland only (rather than the enjoyment of its interior), and where
there is no known useage in the case of woodlands in Scotland. 'Low habitat value' is intended to reflect
a generally absence of habitat features and only slight indications that the woodland is beneficia] to
biodiversity, beyond that aceruing from cohesively treed space per se,

vodland with none of the above additional features ing, minimal habitat yalue

Unlike TEMPO, W-TEMPO provides for a zero score in section 1d; it is intended that this class should
apply where the presence of cobesively treed space confers no obvious benefits other than through the
trees themselves. Examples would include an area of land captured by a monoculture of sell-set
sycamore, or a Sitka spruce plantation, This class, then, is intended to weed out any woodland that has
"unfairly’ scored highly in other categories by virtue, say, of good condition and/or large size.

Sub-total 2

This completes the amenity assessment and, once again, there is a pause in the method: the scores
should be added up to determine whether or not the woodland has sufficient value to merit an
expediency assessment,

The threshold for this is fifteen points, arrived at via a minimum qualification calculated from the
thirteen point threshold under sections a-c, plus at least two extra points urider section d. Thus
woodlands that only just scrape through to qualify for the ‘other factor’ score, need to genuinely
improve in this section in order to rate an expediency assessment.

Page 46



Agenda Iltem 5

art 2 ediency assessment

This section is designed ta award points based on four levels of identified threat to the trees concerned,
which are intended to form 2 cascade of reducing impact and/or lower immediacy, as follows:

Immediate threat to overall woodland

For example, planning application for deyclopment at the expense of its integrity/cohesion and/or
requiring a change of use of significant quantum of treed space,

£ I S1gn] L loss ;
It is intended that this class be applied similarly to that above, but in cases where the anticipated adverse
effect and/ or where the threat are less imminent.

Foreseeable risk of sipnificant loss / severe fr
Itis intended that this class be applied similarly to that above, but in cases where the threat is perceived

rather than known,

Foreseeable risk -tial loss / fragmentation
1t is intended that this class be applied similarly to that abave, but in cases where the anticipated effect is
of lower significance to the retention of the overall woodland,

P

This class reflects the potential suitability of making precautionary TPOs, in line with published
government guidance’, Accordingly, and in order to avoid a disqualifying ZEro score, ‘precautionar_v only’
still scores one point.

Clearly, other reasons apply that might prevent/usually obviate the need for making a woodland TPO.
However, it is not felt necessary to incorporate such considerations into the method, as the author
wishes to maximize its ugability in the field: these other considerations are most suitably addressed as
part of wider a desk study.

As a final note on thig point, it should be stressed that the methad is not prescriptive except in relation
to zero scores: W-TEMPO merely suggests a course of action. Thus a woodland scoring, say, 21, and so
‘definitely meriting’ a TPO, might not be included for protection for reasons unconnected with its
attributes,

Page 47



Agenda Item 5

Part 3: Decision Guide

This section is based on the accumulated scores derived in Parts 1 & 2, and identifies five outcomes, as

follows:

Any 0 Do notapply TPO
Where a woodland has attracted a zero score, there is a clcarly ictentifiable reason not to protect it, and

indeed to seek to do so is simply bad practice.

1-12  TPO indefensible
This covers woodlands that have failed to score enough points in sections la-c to qualify for an ‘cultural
factors’ score under 1d. Such woodlands have little to offer their locality and should not be protected,

1315 Does not merit TPO

This covers woodlands which have qualified for a 1d seore, though they may not have quatified for Part 2.
However, even if they have made it to Part 2, they have failed to pick up significant additional points.
This would apply, for example, to a borderline woodland in amenity terms that also lacked the
protection imperative of a clear threat to its retention.

16-20 Possibly merits TPO

This applies to woodlands that have qualified under all sections, but have failed to do so convincingly, For
these trees, the issue of applying a TPO is likely to devolve to other considerations, such as public
pressure, resources and ‘gut feeling’.

21+ Definitely merits TPO
Woodlands scoring 21 or more are those that have passed both ﬂm amenity and expediency assessments,
where the application of a TPO is [ully justified based on the feld assessment exercise.

Notation boxes

Throughout the method, notation space is provided to record relevant observations under each section.
For local authorities using W-TEMPQ, it may even be helpful to include copy of the W-TEMPQ
assessuent in with the TPO decision letter to relevant parties, as this will serve to underline the
transparency of the decision—makhmg process.

Page 48



Agenda Iltem 5

Conclusion

Like its cousin, W-TEMPO is a quick and easy means of systematically assessing woodland suitability for
statutory protection. It may be used either for new TPOs or for TPO re-survey.

From the consultants’ perspective, it is also an effective way of testing the suitability of newly applied
TPOs, to see whether they have been misapplied, or it can be used to Kupport a request to make a’TPO

in respect of woodlands perceived to be at risk, for example from adjacent development.

W-TEMPO does not seek to atiach any monetary significance to the derived score: the author
recommends the use of the Helliwell System where this is the objective.

Any feedback on the method is gratefully received by the author.

JFL
Contact: Epfag.uk.com

References

1 "Tree Preservation Orders: A Guide to the Law and Good Practice’, DETR 2000
2 Ibid,

3 DETR 2000 op. cit. at para, 3.5

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX (3) Aged ftem 5

Your reference:

Qur reference: RAD3.ACC0014-0001

= kerbys

SOLICITORS

Direct email; randrews@hcrlaw.com

4" August 2017

FAO Mrs R Sultana 5 Deansway, Worcester WR1 2JG
Bromsgrove District Council Telephone: 01505 612001

Legal Services Fax: 01905 744899

’E\Bﬂgrr]:]esgfgrvee?t] DX: 716260 Warcester 1
Worcestarshire Direct Line; 01905 744888

B61 8DA PLANNING TEAM

DELIVERED BY HAND AND EMAIL: r.sultana@bromsgroveandredditch.qov.uk

Dear Sirs,

OBJECTION to Bromsgrove District Council Tree Preservation Order (11) 2017 dated 4% July
2017
L.and Adjoining 73 Linthurst Newton Blackwell

We write on behalf of Access Homes LLP to OBJECT to Bromsgrove District Council Tree
Preservation Order (11) 2017 which was made by Bromsgrove District Council on 4% July 2017 (“the
TPO™.

Access Homes LLP are the freehold owners of the Land Adjoining 73 Linthurt Newton Blackwell, to
which the TPO relates (“the Site").

This objection is made on twe main grounds:

1. The making of the TPO in its current form does not meet the required legal and planning policy
tests; and

2. The actions of Bromsgrove District Council ("the Council®) over the last twelve months
throughout both the process of assessing the merits of protecting the Site by way of a Tree
Preservation Order, and also dealing with associated matters, have contained repeated errors,
inconsistencies, and fundamental legal flaws,

The basis for these objections is set out substantively below.

1. Objection to the extent and form of the TPQ

No substantive justification has been given by the Council for the extent of the protection in the TPO,
nor has an assessment of the trees selected for protection been provided.

Birmingham  T.0121 454 0739 F 0121 4357211 53 Calthorpe Road Edgbasion Birminghorm 815 1M R Drericii

Cheltenham 101242 224422 F 01242 518428 Elienborough House Wellinglon Stesl Chelfenham G150 1YD CHAMEERS Hrl‘m

Hereford T.0V432 349470 F 01432 349440 Thorpe House 29 Broad Streel Hereford HR4 $AR CHAMEBERS 00

Thames Yalley T:0118 9111206 F 08200 7874 100 Longwaler averue Green Park Reading RG2 6GR ]

Worcesler T.O1905 812001 F O1905 744392 5 Deansway Worcester WR1 205G T Gty

Wye Valley  T.01939 562377 F. 0198 545941 Overross House Ross Park Ross-on-Wya HR? 7US excel {--,‘3 INVESTORS
ey Ao Ay

e ey

By appointment in Loncdon & IN PEOPLE

lawyers@heriaw.com  www.herlaw.com Page 51
I P - A g P, i B ot e




Agenda ltem 5

This failure is a breach of the requirerents of Regulation 5(2)(a) of the Town and Country Planning
(Tree Preservation)(England) Regulations 2012 (“the Regulations”), which require the "reasons for
making the order” to be served on all parties with a legal interest in the tand affected.

Firstly, it is important to note that the Council did not serve notice of the TPO on Access Homes LLP
as freehold owner in breach of Regulation 5(1) of the Regulations. The Council is well aware from the
Court proceedings relating to the previous tree preservation order for the Site that Access Homes LLP
is the registered owner of the land affected by the TPO, however the Council still failed to serve it.

Secondly, even if the Council had served notice of the TPO on Access Homes LLP, the only
justification given in the notice accompanying the TPO (which Access Homes LLP has now obtained
following a direct request to the Council} was in the form of a generic statement, which simply stated:

“The trees provide special amenity value and the Tree Preservation Order is made in the
interests of amenity”.

The Council's failure to provide substantive reasons for making the TPO is also, in our view, a failure
to carry out a lawfui consultation. It is settled law that, if a consultation exercise is undertaken, then it
must be carried out properly (see the case of R v North East Devon HA ex p Coughlan). This means
that it must, amongst other things, include sufficient reasons for particular proposals to allow those
consulted to give intelligent consideration of the same and thus enable an intelligent, and fully-
informed, response.

The Council is under a duty to address relevant arguments raised during the consultation exercise, It
iz not entitled to assume that, because it has complied with the statutory timescales for consuitation,
that the consultation exercise is automatically sufficient. This is particularly the case where there is
clear evidence to the contrary, for example our client's persistent requests for further information, as
set out further below.

The failure o provide substantive “reasons" for making the TPO is also grounds for reasonable doubt
as to whether the TPO has been made in accordance with the Councif's legal powers to make tree
preservation orders as provided by Section 198 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 ("TCPA
1990"), or whether the making of the TPO s ulfra vires.

The legal power for the Council to make the TPO in Section 198(1) of the TCPA 1890 expressly
requires that tree preservation orders may only be made where it appears to the local planning
authority that “it is expedient in the interests of amenity to make provision for the preservation
of trees or woodiands”,

It would be irrational, and therefore, unlawful for the Counci! consider it expedient to protect trees
without the Council having considered in detail the Government's planning policy guidance in relation
to the making of free preservation orders.

This guidance is provided by the Planning Practice Guidance ("PPG"), which makes clear that prior to
making the TPO, the Council should to be able to “show that protection would bring a reasonable
degree of public benefit in the present or future” (PPG para 36-007-20140308).

The PPG also makes clear that in assessing amenity “trees or at least part of them should
normally be visible from a public place such as a road or footpath, or accessible by the public’
(PPG para 36-008-20140308), and further that “Orders should be used to protect selected trees
and woodlands if their removal would have a significant negative impact on the local
environment and its enjoyment by the public" (PPG para 38-007-20140308).

Page 52



Agenda ltem 5

We are aware that the Council's Tree Officers have undertaken numerous visits to the Site over the
last twelve months, and so a reasoned justification for the making and extent of the TPO in
aceordance with the PPG should be available and disclosed. We are also aware that the justification
and ‘TEMPO’ scores have been requested by our client’s Arboricultural Consultant on a number of
occasions, and the Council has failad to provide these repeatedly.

In fact, a large number of attempts have been made by our firm, our client's Arboricultural
Consultants, and our clients directly to engage with the Council in relation to the appropriate level of
protection of trees on this Site, but the Council has consistently declined to engage.

Our clients have also made a formal request for the disclosure for information pursuant to the
Environmental Information Regulations 2004, which the Council has failed to respond to within the
required statutory timeframes (discussed further below). The result of these repeated errors on the
part of the Council has meant that there has been no way of our clients obtaining the reasoned
assessment of the Council's perceived merits of the TPO in advance of needing to submit this
Objection. This puts our client at a considerable disadvantage, and is in breach of the various legal
requirements set out above and below.

Due to the lack of information provided by the Councl, we enclose an assessment of the TPO
prepared on behalf of Access Homes LLP by Barton Hyett Arboricuitural Consultants. This sets out
our client's objection to the extent of the TPO on the basis of the failure to meet the requirements of
the PPG guidance in assessing the amenity value of the trees on the Site.

The enclosed document prepared by Barton Hyett should be treated as a formal part of our client’s
objection to the extent of the TPO.

2. Unlawful Actions and Errors of Bromsgrove District Council

As the Council is aware, our client has already incurred considerable inconvenience and expense as
a result of the Council's unfawful actions in relation to the making of tree preservation orders and
other related failings in relation to the Site.

We are aware that Council has also incurred considerable expense due to its actions, which costs will
have been met at public expense.

In particular the Court action which resulted in the original tree preservation order made by the
Council in relation to the Site last year, Bromsgrove District Council Tree Preservation Order (13)
2016, being quashed by Court Order on 20" June 2017 (‘the Court Order”), due to the Council’s
unlawful actions in the making of that tree preservation order.

The High Court of Justice also ordered the Council pay from public money our client’s legal costs due
to the nature of the Council's errors.

In addition to the errors identified in the Court action, there have been a number of further issues as
regards to the actions and conduct of the Council in cennection with the TPO and related matters.
These include:

1. The Council's failure to serve notice of the TPO on all parties with an interest in the land
affected by the TPO, in breach of Regulaticn 5(1) of the Regulations;

Page 53



Agenda ltem 5

The Council’s fallure to provide reasons for the making of the TPQO in breach of Regulation
5(2)(a) of the Regulations and potentially Section 198(1) of the TCPA 1990;

The TPO being made by the Council in a form which is, in part, more restrictive than the
form of Tree Preservation Order annexed to the Court Order, and so therefore being in
breach of the Court Order;

The Council's failure to pay our client’s legal fees as set out in the Court Order within the
timeframe required by Civil Procedure Rules Part 447,

The Councils failure to act fairly, consistently, and impartially with regard to the
consultation of persons interested in the tree preservation orders at the Site, and in
particular the illogical selection of consultees, and the inconsistent redaction of names,
addresses, and signatures of consultation responses; and

The Council's failure to respond to our client's formal request for the disclosure of
information relating the making of the tree preservation orders at the Site dated 21% June
2017 in breach of Regulation 5(2) and 7(1) of the Environmental Information Regulations
2004.

The above are all clear breaches of the Council's legal obligations under statue and / or Court Order
which have occurred since the High Court guashed the previous tree preservation order.

It is unclear whether the errors are sheer incompetence or are a deliberate and unlawful attempt to
frustrate due process in relation to the TPO, but in either case, this letter illustrates a number of clear
failings on the part of the Council which our client will consider challenging in Court.

We hope that, in the circumstances, the Council will scrutinise its reasons for making the TPO in
accordance with the national pelicy in the PPG, and will by return disclose the Council's formal
assessment of the perceived amenity of the trees proposed to be protected on the Site to our client,
together with a reasoned justification for the making of the TPO.

The failings of the Council in relation to the request for disclosure under the Environmental
Information Regulations are being pursued separately, and our client reserves its position with regard
to taking further action in relation to the Council's failings through the Courts.

Yours faithfully

Uasnson Claste Rochatyy s

HARRISON CLARK RICKERBYS LIMITED

Encl - Barton Hystt objection

Page 54



Agenda Iltem 5
APPENDIX (4)

AH_73LN | TPOob | PEB3] 28.07.2017

Barton H yett

e e e T S R BB s o et e

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJEGTION
ON BEHALF OF
ACCESS HOMES LLP
RELATING TO
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNGIL TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (11) 2017
AT

LAND AT SIDE AND REAR OF:
73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL

Prepared by: Paul Barton MSc, TechCert (ArborA), MArborA
Reference: ~ AH_73LN

H ett Associates £ —= Institute of
Bar tOﬂ' y . Chartered Foresters ‘?‘Q
Arboncultural Cc registered
Unit 5€, Deer Park Business Centre, Eckington, Pershore, WR10 3DN Arboncultura.
Tel: 01386 5768161 ASSGCIATIOH
Email: enquiries@barton-hyett.co.uk Protessional Memiar
Website: www.barton-hyett.co.uk MEMBER PR98O

Page 55



Agenda Iltem 5

ACCESS HOMES LLP &% Barlon Hyell
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL L § B Vi ittt
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJECTION S '
CONTENTS:
Page No:
1, INTRODUCTION 1
2 GUIDANCE 2
3. GROUNDS FOR OBJECTION 4
4, CONCLUSIONS 8
REVISIONS:
Date Rev Description of revision Initials
28.07.17 - First issue PEB

AH_73LN | TPOob | PEB| 25.07.2017

Page 56



Agenda Iltem 5

ACCESS HOMES LLP &% : L (i
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL % } Barton | Ey('“
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJECTION :

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 A Tree Preservation Order (TPO) has recently been served by Bromsgrove District Coungil.

1.2 This is the second TPO made on the land within one year; TPO (13) 2016 was previously made !
in August 2016 and confirmed in January 2017 but has been quashed by a consent order from
the High Court following an application for Judicial Review by the landowner.

1.3 The title of the new TPO is:

* Bromsgrove District Council Tree Preservation Order (No 1 1) 2017, trees adjoining 73
Linthurst Newtown, Blackwall
1.4 The above address is hereafter referred to as ‘the site’.
1.5 The TPO specifies the following in the schedule:
* Nineteen individual trees (T1 - T19)
»  Six groups of trees (G1 - GB)
*  One woodland (W1)

1.8 The stated reasons for serving the Order, as contained in the attached regulation 5 notice are as
follows:

“The trees provide special amenity value and the Tree Preservation Order is made in
the interests of amenity”

1.7 The TPO was made on 4th July 2017 and takes provisional effect for six months from this date.
After this time, if the TPO has not been formally confirmed by the Local Planning Authority (LPA)
its provisional effect will lapse and a new Order must be served.

1.8 The deadline for objections to be received by the LPA in relation to this Order is stated as 4th
August 2017,

1.9 | have been instructed to prepare this representation as part of an objection to the TPO by the
Directors of Access Homes LLP.

1.10  The TPO, and this objection, must be considered on its own merits; it does not relate to a
plannning application for development but simply relates to the merits of trees and whether or
not they are of sufficient value to warrant protection.

1.11  The objection is made in accordance with Regulation 6 of the Town and Country Planning (Tree
Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012. It states the reasons for the objection and specifies
the tress, groups of trees or woodlands in question.

AH_73LN | TPOoD |PEBI28O7.2017 - 1

Page 57



Agenda Iltem 5

ACCESS HOMES LLP
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJECTION

":.r‘if-‘: Barlon Hyeli

2. GUIDANCE

21 Guidance is provided to Local Planning Authorities by the Department for Communities and
Local Government through the online Planning Practice Guidance suite which replaced previous
guidance contained in the document 'Tree Preservation Orders: A Guide to the Law and Good
Practice’ commonly referred to as ‘'the Blue Book’ This guidance sets out the grounds on
which a TPO might be made. For clarity, the relevant elements of this guidance are reproduced

below and the pertinent elements of the guidance in relation to this objection shown in bold:
2.2 Power to make a TPO:

Local planning authorities can make a Tree Preservation Order if it appears to them to be
‘expedient in the interests of amenity to make provision for the preservation of trees or

woodlands in their area’.

When deciding whether an Order is appropriate, authorities are advised to take into
consideration what ‘amenity’ means in practice, what to take into account when
assessing amenity value, what ‘expedient’ means in practice, what trees can be

protected and how they can be idantified.

‘Amenity' is not defined in law, so authorities need to exercise judgment when deciding whether

it is within their powers to make an Order,

Orders should be used to protect selected trees and woodlands if their removal would have a
significant negative impact on the local environment and its enjoyment by the public. Before
authorities make or confirm an Order they should be able to show that protection

would bring a reasonable degree of public benefit in the present or future.

When considering whether trees should be protected by an Order, authorities are advised to
develop ways of assessing the amenity value of trees in a structured and consistent way, taking

into account the following criteria:

Visibility

The extent to which the trees or woodlands can be seen by the public will inform the authority’s
assessment of whether the impact on the local environment is significant. The trees, or at least
part of them, should normally be visible from a public place, such as a road or

footpath, or accessible by the public.

Individual, collective and wider impact
Public visibility alone will not be sufficient to warrant an Order. The authority is advised to also

AH_73LN | TPOob | PEB| 28.07.2017 2

Page 58



Agenda Iltem 5

LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJEGTION

ACCESS HOMES LLP @}3 Barton Hyett

assess the particular importance of an individual tree, of groups of trees or of woodlands by

reference to its or their characteristics including:
s size and form;
* future potential as an amenity;
* rarity, cultural or historic value:
*  contribution to, and relationship with, the landscape; and
* contribution to the character or appearance of a conservation area.

Other factors

Where relevant to an assessment of the amenity value of trees or woodlands, authorities may
consider taking into account other factors, such as importance to nature conservation or

response to climate change. These factors alone would not warrant making an Order.,

Although some trees or woodlands may merit protection on amenity grounds, it may not be
expedient to make them the subject of an Order. It may be expedient to make an Order if the
authority believes there is a risk of trees being felled, pruned or damaged in ways which would

have a significant impact on the amenity of the area.

AH_73LN | TPOob | PEB)| 28.07.2017

Page 59



ACCESS HOMES LLP
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL

Agenda Iltem 5

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJECTION

GROUNDS FOR OBJECTION

3.

3.1 The grounds for objection are as follows:

a) The TPO cannot be justified on the grounds of preserving public amenity
b) The schedule of trees is incorrectly written
3.2 This objection relates to the following trees included in the order:

e T5(Ash)
o T8 (Oak)
o T18 (Dak)
e« T19 (Apple)
* G4 (1 xPear, 4 x Apple)
* G5 (3 x Silver Birch)
*  G6 (1 xOak, 1xHolly, 1 x Ash)
* W1 (Mixed specles)

Ohbjection relating to public visual amenity

3.3 In the LPA’s reasons for making the TPO it is stated that:

“The trees provide special amenity value and the Tree Presarvation Order is made in the
interests of amenity”.

3.4 This reason has been applied to all the trees that are the subject of the TPO. Whilst some of the
trees that are present on the site are visible to the general public, notably those along the
frontage to Linturst Newtown, many are not. It cannot be the case that trees have ‘special
amenity value' if they cannot be seen.

3.5 As noted above, the Planning Policy Guidarice on the making of TPO's states:

‘The trees, or at least part of them, should normally be visible from a public place, such as
a road or footpath, or accessible by the public’.

3.6 I have requested a copy of the tree ofiicer's assessment of the trees but have not received a
reply. | understand that the council use an evaluation method called ‘TEMPO" (Tree Evaluation
Method for Preservation Orders) authored by Julian Forbes-Laird in 2006. The scoring system in
this method is weighted to favour trees that have a high degree of visibility, as follows:

AH73LN | TPOob (PEB|28072017 ' .

Page 60

Barton Hyeit



Agenda Iltem 5

(VRLPES HOMES ELP &% Barton Hyett
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL b 4',-.’ N )
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJECTION &

P y

<) Relative public visibility & suitability for TPO
Consider realistic porential for future visibiliy with changad land we

5) Very large trees with some visibility, or prominent Large trees Highly suitable

4) Large trees, or medium trees clearly visible to the public Suitable

3) Medium trees, or large trees with limited view only Suitable

2)Young, small, or medium /large trees visible only with difficulty Barely suitable

1) Trees not visible to the public, re gardless of size Probably unsuitable

3.7 The land covered by the Order adjoins the road Linthurst Newtown on the southeast side. This
is the only road that provides an uninterrupted view of some trees within the site. It is accepted
therefore that the row of trees along the roadside do have visual amenity as they are easily seen
The view from Foxes Close to the west gives visibility to the tops of some trees in the centre of
the site.

3.8 The mature trees in the internal square shaped area immediately to the rear of the garden (G3 of

the TPO) can be partially viewed, as the top of their crowns are visible over the roofs of adjacent

houses,

4
1
’ 2
Figure 1: snapshot of Google aerial photo showing the site in relation to local roads and footpaths. Photos
taken from locations 1, 2 3 and 4 are provided below to show the visibility in to the site. The blue circle
represents the area of the site which cannot be viewed from any nearby public areas,
AHJQLN -]-TF-’Oob J‘PE.Bf éé.()?.zm 7 5

Page 61



Agenda Iltem 5

ACCESS HOMES LLP
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OSJECTION

Photo 1: from location 1 on the rallway bridge. The Fhoto 2: visw from location 2. Hollies T13 & Ti4 in
tops of G3 are the visible. the foreground amongst overgrown Laurel, G3 s
visible beyond the house to the right.

Photo 3: from location 3. Top of T1 visible behind Photo 4: Google streetview image from Foxes
garage. Close. The tops of trees within G3 are visible.

3.9 There are no public rights of way within the fields to the west, north or east of the site, so views

of the trees at the top of the site are extremely restricted.

3.10  Due to the limited viewpoints of the site, the following trees cannot be seen, and therefore have

no public visual amenity:

« T5(Ash)

e T6 (Oak)

» T18 (Oak)

« T19 (Apple)

= G5 (3 x Silver Birch)
»  G6 (1 x0ak, 1 x Holly, 1 x Ash)
= W1 (Mixed species)

3.11  In addition to the above, most of the trees within G4 (1 Pear and 4 Applg) cannot be seen; only
the Pear tree at the southern end of the group is possibly visible. The planning guidance states

that “the group category should be used to protect groups of trees where the individual category

AH_73LN | TPOob | PEB| 28.07.2017 6

Page 62



Agenda Iltem 5

LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL
DER OBJECTION

ACCESS HOMES LLP @% Barton Hyett

TREE PRESERVATION OR

would not be appropriate and the group’s overall impact and quality merits protection”. It is

therefore unreasonable to protect five trees based on the public visibility of just one.

3.12  The guidance notes that accompany TEMPO do make provision for the possibility that changes
in site use can affect the future potential for public visibility, for example where trees that are

currently hidden from view are exposed foliowig clearance of surrounding land.

3.18  Not only are these trees not currently visible, but the realistic potential for their visibility to
increase is very low as the trees further down the site are protected from removal thereby
providing a natural visual buffer separating the road and houses from the trees at the top (north)

of the site.

Objection relating to incorrect TPO schedule

3.14  The schedule has been incorrectly written as it lists the six ‘groups’ of trees under the heading
‘trees specified by reference to an area’, instead of listing them under ‘groups of trees’. Under

the ‘groups of trees’ heading, the schedule states “none”.

3.16  This error appears to be an administrative mistake. The Town and Country Planning (Tree
Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012 state in para 3 (4) that “In the case of any discrepancy
between the map contained in, or annexed to, an order and the specification contained in the

Schedule to that order, the map shall prevail”.

3.16  This point of objection Is therefore a minor one, as it is still clear from the order which trees are to
be protected. However, in the interests of serving a clear and unambigious order, it would be

preferable if the schedule were amended.

AH_73LN [ TPOab | PEB| 28.07.2017

Page 63



Agenda Iltem 5

ACCESS HOMES LLP Barton Hvett
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL . . e
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJECTION
4. CONCLUSIONS
4.1 it is requested that the provisional TPO No 11 (2017) is modified to remove from it T5, T6, T18,
119, G4, G5, G6 and W1 for the reasons listed above, before confirming the order
4.2 It is also requested that the TPO schedule is amended to place the 'groups' of trees in the
correct section,
Paul Barton, MSc, MArborA
28th July 2017
8

AH_73LN | TPOob | PEB| 28.07.2017

Page 64



APPENDIX (5) | Agenda ltem 5
Gavin Bozes

From: Matt Fe,

Sent: 04 August 2017 16:15

To: Gavin Boyes; Rasma Sultana

Subject: TPO Crder No.,11 2017 Ref: RS/TPO(11)2017
Dear Sirs,

This is an objection to the Tree Preseveration Order No.11 2017 on Land adjoining 73 Linthurst Newtown
Blackwell, under Regulation 6.

For the avoidance of doubt, we do not own the Former Mink Farm simply referred to as Land adjoining 73
Linthurst Newtown. We own No.73 Linthurst Newtown, known as Charlton House. We are the most
affected neighbour to the site as we border it on 3 sides.

We object to the use of a group order for G1. This gives some poor quality trees that would not usually
metit a TPO, protection. We are greatly concerned with the first 2 Lawson Cypress trees in G1 and object to
their protection, For almost a year we have sought to have these poor quality trees removed to improve
highway safety. We have improved the vision to the East of our property but are unable to do so to the West
due to the previous flawed TPO and now this one. The access to our property is directly opposite a bus stop,
most often used by school children. An accident due to not being able to see traffic from our drive and vice
versa could have fatal consequences. All to protect 2 non native poor examples of Conifer trees! This goes
against all common sense and natural justice.

We also note the Spruces and other Lawson Cypress in G1 are of very poor form, namely they look like
lollipops, are very top heavy and potentially dangerous given their close proximity to Linthurst Newiown,
we therefore object to their protection.

We object to T15 on 2 grounds. The first is that it is an 'actionable nuisance', The tree is approximately 20m
tall and directly on our boundary, with a canopy that is within 1m of our house. The roots have already
started to lift part of our rear patio and will no doubt start to cause problems with the rear of our property.
The attached plan to the TPO does not refelect the true position if T15, it is much closer than shown. The
2nd ground for objecting to T15 is that it is of particularly poor form. The tree has suffered extensive
Squirrel damage. The squirrels gnaw through the bark into the stem of the tree to access the sap. These
wounds to the tree are then weak points for diesease and rot. We have had already had a large branch snap
out of the tree and land in our garden. This tree does not merit any protection.

We object to T16 and T17. Both trees are of poor form and not visible to the public. T16 which was referred
to as 'lop sided' by a councillor on a previous site visit can only be seen from the North and not from any
public place.

T17, has already been heavily cut back due to works with the electricity cables, has obvious and visible rot,
and last year a large branch snapped out of the tree. Neither of these trees should be protected.

We support the protection of the large trees in G3. It is not clear why any tree directly North of G3 would be
protected as they can not be seen from a public place. Indeed any tree which is Northerly of another cannot
be seen from Linthurst Newtown. We understand that if a tree cannot be seen from a public place it does not
merit protection. Therefore we object to T5, T6, T7, T8, T9, T10, T11, T18, T19 (which has fallen over),
G3, G6, 4x apple trees in G4 and the use of a Woodland Order for W1. Regarding W1 only a handful of
trees are visible to the public, surely these should be individually protected?

We trust our objections are taken into account.
Yours faithfully,

Mr & Mrs Fell
Page 65




This page is intentionally left blank



._ Agenda Item 5

Date: T]
To: Clai
Subject:

Dear Ms Felton,

I am writing to express my concern repard; i
! garding the possible liftin of
place on woodland and established trees behind number 73 Lintﬁurstt li?eaﬁng%‘;voi(ed]lllard L uto
. : ackwell. TPO 11

is visible from the vatious footpaths in the g i
e { 3
1068150 % Fliarerfor a and provides a beautify] boundary to our village adding

orchard. Everything that was not protected i
when the original TPQO wa i
; s
dgwgiezsiehl ?o yeetu- old hedge which screened the property from the ro:éﬁgto g e mOSﬂy- el oot
gar.m se ; p us Io prevent the developers who now own this site from causs et wri
ge. Fortunately you were able to act quickly last time and pre t1 o ﬁlrth.e 1
TPO. Thank you, prevent loss of some beautifyl trees with the

little owls, tawny owls, nuthatches, tree o
s : Téepers and finches and tj :
decs and ' _ and tits of v
a;ric::larb?tls' near mzoti‘{vn home which p; obably originate from such Woggl(:;fjtyx?- I'have also seen roe
i}; " 1vel1ndalt0 auage 20 yards from this site, Bats were regular visitors fc ith regard to bats in
it conve we ha t OW bal access following an inspectiog by the bat c 0 our loft and when we haqd
species of bats were also making use of oyr roof and those of nej gh%nserlvatmn trust, as it is likely
ouring properties,



Agenda ltem 5

in slowing down water run off from the motorway in heavy rains. Rainfall and water run off from the
motorway has threatened to flood the old cottages opposite the site on a few occasions, [ have already
sutfered great anxiety on a few occasions after heavy rain when water has lapped at my doorstep and
threatened to come into my living room... My next door neighbour was not so lucky at . and actually had

water in the front room,

Qur draft Neighbourhood Plan in section 3.0 vision and objectives states:

1. We will protect the built, historical and natural environment ensuring that our green spaces
and the Green Belt are protected.

And

3. We will promote nature conservation and protect areas of special environmental value,

We need to respect the will of the people living in the village who have written and support our plan.

Our district plan states:

8.213 Landscape, which results from the interaction between the nature and culture of a
place, directly affects our quality of life. In the past, landscapes of local importance were
protected through rigid local designations, whilst the impact of developments outside of
these areas was not normally considered. However, it is now recognised that all [andscapes
matter.

Section 8 of the BDP also refers to protecting wildlife and green corridors.

In legal terms | am aware that you have to consider the amenity these trees provide. To summarise, this can
be argued in terms of the heritage and character of our village and the local area. Wildlife is also an
amenity in my opinion and the many protected native species that are resident require your

intervention. Protecting our village and the wider community from pollution, flooding and noise should
also be considered as an amenity; we should be planting trees and protecting established ones to do our bit
to fight climate change. It doesn't matter if this is only a small wood in the great scheme of things, every
tree matters, we have little woodland in our lovely rural area, what we do have needs protection.

Tove my village, I love living here. I want to keep and protect our beautiful environment and I urge you to
intervene in protecting these trees.

Thank you for your assistance,

Page 68



Agenda Item 5

Gavin Boyes — —
From: Andrew Bucklitch

Sent: 04 August 2017 14:32

To: Gavin Boyes

FW: Town & Country Act 1990 - B.D.C Tree Preservation Order (No.11) 2017 on land

Subject:
adjoining 73 Linthurst Newtown Blackwell

Andy Bucklitch

Tree Officer
Environment Services — Bromsgrove District & Redditch Borough Council Crossgate Depot, Crossgate Road,

Redditch, Worcestershire. B98 75N Tel 01527 548348 email a.buckJitch@bromsgrove.gov.uk

http://www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/mv—nIace/environment/ma naging-your-trees.aspx

----- Original Message-----

From: Rasma Sultana

Sent: 04 August 2017 13:04

To: Andrew Bucklitch

Cc: Tracy Lovejoy

Subject: FW: Town & Country Act 1990 - B.D.C Tree Preservation Order (No.11) 2017 on land adjoining 73 Linthurst

Newtown Blackwell
FYI
Last minute support sent in at 2:41am 111

PL

Frc

Sent: 04 August 2017 02:41

To: Rasma Sultana

Subject: Town & Country Act 1990 - B.D.C Tree Preservation Order (No.11) 2017 on land adjoining 73 Linthurst
Newtown Blackwell

To whom it may concern,

I'write as a paying council tax resident of Blackwell Village to give my full support to B.D.C & urge them to make the
temporary TPO permanent on the above mentioned site & save a long & established woodland with Poplar, Silver
Birch, Sycarmore, Oak. Horse Chestnut, Cooper Beech, just a few of the fany trees it is home to & the Wildlife
residents, Bats, Badgers, Deer & Roe Deer, Gold Finches, Green & Spotted Wood Peckers, Wrens, Nuthatchers &
Bullfinches that live there from further disruption & also the Orchard with Pear & Apple trees & pond with newts
that have also been seen in my neighbours garden & safe guard & protect for future generation's to come by
keeping it as Green Belt Jand & having the Woodland removed from the local SHLAA & re-listed correctly as
Woodland, which it has been. For the last 20 year's | have lived in the village & many more year's before that & like
it's sister Site in Tanglewood Close, that to was saved & which I'm very proud to say, | was part of that campanige

Where this Site is located the road is very narrow & continues onto a very sharp bend (blind spot), where there

have been some bumps, some near misses, cats, dogs either killed or injured, dally problems for local residents with
off road parking, buses, school buses,delivery vans at peak times,traffic mounting the pavement to get past one

1
Page 69



Agenda Iltem 5

another. This part of the village already struggles at the present time to try & cope with the every day traffic
because access is extremly limited so if ever planning permission was granted for any development, | can not see
how it would be able to take any more traffic & beca use we already had a large development build about 30 year's

vago of over 200 houses & any further development would be devastating & change the whole status of Blackwell
Village for ever & it wouldn't be for the better.

Page 70



Agenda Itepa.

Gavin Boyes —
From: Tree Enquiries

Sent: 02 August 2017 15:00

To: Gavin Boyes

Subject: . FW:TPO (11) 2017

Also logged to M3

Thanks
Ange

Angela Akers
Support Services Officer ~ Environmental Services.

-0

From:

Sent: 02 August 2017 13:50
To: Tree Enquiries

Subject: TPO (11) 2017

FAO Clare Flanagan

Dear Clare,

Re TPO (11) 2017

gl understand that the above Order has been made on 04/07/2017 on a number of trees on land opposite my
%property -liveatt  Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell, B60.

This note is to endorse fully this Order and hope that, in the event of any appeals from the landowner or other
parties, my views can be represented in support of the Order.

represent my views,

Many thanks

1
Page 71



Agenda Item.5

Gavin Boyes

From: Tree Enquiries

Sent; 07 August 2017 09:32

To: Gavin Boyes

Subject: FW: TPO 73 Linthurst Newtown Blackwel!
fyi

Regards

Angela Akers
Support Services Officer — Environmental Services.

Redditch Borough Council Bromsgrove District Councll
Town Hall Parkside

Walter Stranz Square Markel Strest

Redditch Bromsgrove

B98 8AH B61 BDA

Website: v redditchbe. gov.uk Website: www bromsqrove gov. ik

From,

Sent: 04 August 2017 11:15

To: Tree Enquiries

Subject: TPO 73 Linthurst Newtown Blackwell

Rt

We are writing to pﬁt our comments in about development of the above property :

We live next to the field in question and are really upset that we could be losing valuable woodland. We see
foxes, badgers, roe deer daily.

Birds of prey are seen regularly and we feel if the trees are gone most of the wildlife would be lost.

We are also concerned about motorway pollution and noise, as the trees act as a buffer.

We are really upset that the council could consider this decision as we thought preservation of woodland
and wildlife is important for our future and our children's future.

1
Page 72



Agenda ltgm.,

Gavin Boyes

From: Andrew Bucklitch

Sent: 27 July 2017 11:31

To: Gavin Boyes; Rasma Sultana
Subject: FW: Tree Preservation Order 11 2017

lam writing to support 1 ru {11) 2017, which was made on 4" July by Clare Flanagan, to preserve a number of
named trees on land at 73, Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell B60 1BS, Please forward this email to whoever it may

concern.

Small scale housing development in Blackwell, a small settlement, is likely and the Neighbourhood Development
Plan, which is nearing completion, acknowledges that this can benefit the village but this is not the place for a
development of more than 10 to 20 new dwellings if the rural character of Blackwell is to be retained. Such a small
development with the retained trees would be a very attractive place to live but a larger estate devoid of woodland
and orchard would be suburban and soultess, The SHLAA target of 40+ dwellings would put at least 80 more cars on
Linthurst Newtown, a narrow winding road with two difficult bends where accidents do ha pPpen. The road oppasite
the land is virtually a car park narrowing the road even further.

The small orchard on the right of the site is particularly valuable as is the woodland of native trees to the rear of the
land. Both provide wild life habitats and surely help to mitigate the air pollution from the nea rby M42, The
woodland is visible from a public footpath, which links Linthurst Newtown to Linthurst Road and is well used. | know
that residents of Linthurst Newtown have sent photographs of the site to support the previous TPO and | hope they
will be taken into consideration to support this new order.

There are other sites in Blackwell without woodland or orchard which, in my opinion, would be much more suitable
for housing development so please let’s protect the trees on Linthurst Newtown and look elsewhere for housing.

Page 73



Agenda ltem 2

Gavin Boyes

From: Andrew Bucklitch

Sent; 04 August 2017 14:33

To: Gavin Boyes; Rasma Sultana

Subject: FW: Tree protection order no 13 2016 - 73 Linthurst Newtown

Andy Bucklitch

Tree Officer
Environment Services — Bromsgrove District & Redditch Borough Council Crossgate Depot, Crossgate Road,

Redditch, Worcestershire, B98 75N Tel 01527 548348 email a.bucklitch@bromsgrove.gov.uk

http://www.bromsgrove‘gov.uk/mv-place/environment/managing—vour—trees.aspx

From

Sent: 04 August 2017 11:48

To: Andrew Bucklitch

Subject: Tree protection order no 13 2016 - 73 Linthurst Newtown

To whom it may concern,

I would like to raise my concerns regarding the proposed clearing off the wooded area detailed in the tree
preservation order at the rear of 73 Linthurst Newtown.

screen to absorb the noise and as traffic increases so will the noise which will then be amplified if this wooded area
has been lost, :

Ancther issue that may also arise if these trees are removed is that the wildlife that dwells in this area will be
displaced if not killed off, this will be a terrible loss to the village,

There is also potential for localised flooding as the heavy rainfall could then run from the inclined area running
straight off the land should the trees be removed as is often the case from the field at the end of Blackweli Road.
This would have an impact on the cottages & houses facing no 73 Linthurst Newton,

[ therefore think it is imperative that these well established trees are persevered to provide a unique habitat, sound
screen & drainage system to both enhance and protect the village.

Yours Sincerely

Page 74



Gavin Boyes

From:

Sent: U4 AUQUSE 2ULs 10.54

To: Gavin Boyes

Subject; Fwd: REFERENCE TPO (No 11) 2017 - LAND SURROUNDING 73 LINTHURST
NEWTOWN

e Forwarded - - '

From: Antony Co]-*

Date: Fri, Aug 4, 2017 at 1:17 M

Subject: REFERENCE TPO (No 11) 2017 - LAND SURROUNDING 73 LINTHURST NEWTOQY

To: r.sultana@broms groveandredditch. cov.u k. andrew,buq];clitch@bromsgroveandredditch. gov.ulc‘

4th August 2017

REFERENCE TPO (No 11) 2017 - LAND SURROUNDING 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN

To whom it may concern,

I write to support keeping and making permanent the above TPO and feel that any removal of this site from Green Belt protection,
leading to possible planning permission being considered for housing development would be disastrous for this quiet little village. This
forms a *perceived threat to these trees’, whilst I would argue the sites presence on the local SHLAA would constitute a ‘foreseeable

threat to these trees’

There are ;

Several Oaks — which look roughly 100 years old (200-300 year retention span)

1

Page 75



Agenda Item 5

Copper beech’s  (150-200 year retention span)
Poplar’s  (50-70 year retention span)

Silver birch’s (50-70 year retention span)
Sycamore’s (200-300 year retention span)

Horse chestnut’s (100-150 year retention span)

to name but a few. The individual specimens are impressive due to their size and good condi tion, however their true value is as an
entirety. There is an unbroken line of trees that form this woadland, visible from the village at several points, due to their position and
also their great size. These provide pleasure to the villagers, and are an important part of the characteristio of the entire village, If it were
removed a part of what makes Blackwel] special would be lost, All treeg are visible from the public footpath and from various angles

on Linthurst Newtown, they form part of the very first view as you enter the village over the railway bridge when coming

from Bamt Green.

The trees effectively make a boundary to the village towards the North-East,

There is also evidence of the old orchard at the top end.

The wooded area forms a continuous boundary with the oak trees that link to the woodland area around Tanglewood (i.e. a wildlife

corridor). As such shouldn’t the same criteria that saved Tanglewood also apply to the site [ am writing about too?

This TPQ is full of wildlife, including Badgers, Deer(including Roe) and Bats coming out of it. It is filled with nesting birds — Green
and Spotled Woodpeckers often come into my garden from there, also Nuthatches, Goldfinches, Wrens and Bullfinches are seen coming
from there. There is a large pond within the TPO, which really needs a biodiversity study as it will almost certainly be full of wildlife,

there are reports of newts spreading from there into ne ghbouringgardens {reported from number 75 LinthurstNewtown).

The trees also serve the purpose of masking noise from the M42 motorway, which I believe is already way over the acceptable level
and s often a major problem at fhis end of the village. If this road noige increases it will detract from the quality of life within the village

by persons living there, yet another detrimental effect of losing the woodland,

This site is totally unsuitable for development due to access and traffic problems, sitting as it does jn a very narrow section of the road,
already a hazard for parking, school buses, delivery vehicles etc. There is no potential to widen the road here and there have been a
aumber of accidents and near misses on the bend closest to the site. More houses will mean more traffic, affecting the oldest properties
built closest to the road very badly. Yet more development would ruin the whole feel of the village, which is small and friendly. Locals
have all paid a premium for this major selling point of the village, which development would decimate. Around 30 Years ago the village
was developed and almost doubled in size whilst other neighbouring viilages have evaded development, when assessing the need to
convert green belt to building land, a TPO may help Blackwell avoid further erosion, surely it’s time for other villages to shoulder the
burden of meeting housing requiremments,

As a brief additionat point, the council would need to consider the risk of flooding, as the village has already suffered badly in recent
years from water running down from the land in that direction, and altering the land on this scale may well Have catastrophic

consequences on future flooding issues!

To conclude, 1 would like to thank the Council for the temporary protection offered to the site by the imposition of the TPO. I would
strongly urge you to make the TPO permanent, and in view of concerng relating to Badger setts, Bats and Newts would also expect the
council to do everything within its power to halt the further destruction of wildlife habitat by way of a Biodiversj ty-study. Regardless of

the current listed status, this is not a worthless piece of agricultural scrubland, but a much-valued woodland, and should be re-classified

2

Page 76



Agenda Item 5

assuch. Itisa great environmental zsset to the village, as demonstrated by the levels of emotion and upset as have already been

expressed by a great many villagers at the initial actions by the current landowners.

over a hundred years for the woodland to grow and establish and it obviously has a great retention span ahead of

It has clearly taken well
g that marks out this local popular beauty spot, the

it, please help us to stop external forces coming and bulldozing overnightthe very thin

woodland makes this comer of Bromsgrove special, its destruction would be a travesty.

The above represents the formal side of our support for retention of the TPO....
There are many other more specific and personal reasons which in our view should be taken into consideration. These are listed below in

no particular order;
1>The TPO is linked moving forwards to housin & development and highways issues, We live in a house which dates back to
approximately 1800, We have lived here since December 1992 and have put our hearts and souls into Tenovating a piece of local history,

We are led to believe at one point the house was a public house for the navvies building the railway/lickey incline. We have very limited

off road parking, due to double-vellow lines. Our fear is that once any large scale development was built Linthurst Newtown would

become a double-yellow lined race track, ruining the character of what is a beautiful village and ruining our and our friends enjoyment

of our house and neighbourhood. It is bad enou gh already.

2>We purchased our house from a lady who had lived here since 1939.She js no longer with us but spoke passionately about the changes
in water drain off caused by the building of the M42 motorway. Our road has flooded badly 2 or 3 times since 1992 (Ihave pictures),
removal of the trees covered by the TPO and the pond which is an integral feature of the wooded TPO arez would create awful flooding
issues for the road/village. I wonder what the drive would be for developers to build/maintain a flood culverts as per the new
development in Norton an the Old BirminghamRoad in Bromsgrove, My fear is no drive at all....very much eram as many properties in
as possible and move on, If the trees and pond are removed and development occurs, flooding will become a major issue,

3>The wooded area support an astonishing amount of wildlife. We feed 25 plus types of birds, sparrows, bullfinches, gold finches,
wrens, thrushes, dunnock, blackbirds, robins, blue tits, long-tailed tits, great tits, starlings, collared doves, wood pigeon, magpies,
sparrow hawks, buzzards, weodpeckers etc etc. Yesterday I witnessed a sparrow hawk feasting on a dove in my back garden. The area
also supports innumerable mammals.....foxes, badger, muntjac and roe deer and hedgehogs...to name just g few

4>The trees provide noiss insulation from the M42. If you need to check this out. Listen to the difference in noise along the Blackwell
Road... first from the Blackwell side and then from the Barnt Green side,

3>0ver the last few weeks there have been periods of time where ground clearance and associated fires have been on-going almost 24/7.
Far from supporting habitat for wildlife, the wood and scrub cleared has simply been burnt, with ne consideration or thought for
households in the vicinity of the TPO ar support for the TPO/local wildlife, 1 consider this behaviour to be a good indication of intent
and desire to work with loca] people from the landowner and /or his/her agents

6> very much hope the Council is able to support maintenance of the local character and natural assets of this lovely area and is bold

enough to see that England is a big place. Fly in a plane to Birmingham from Europe and it can only convinee planning authorities that

Yours sincerely and hopefully,

Page 77



Agenda Iterp S,

Gavin Boyes

From:

Sent: U4 August 2017 22:06

To: Gavin Boyes

Subject: Fwd: TPO 73 Linthurst Newtown

|

1u. wavin.Boyes <(:iaVJr‘l.Duycr_}(ﬁf)Dl‘OmSQFOVBandFEddffCh.gOV.Uk>
Sent: Fri, 4 Aug 2017 22:04

Subject: TPO 73 Linthurst Newtown

Dear Mr Boyes.

I understand that a new TPO is under consideration for the trees on land around property 73 Linthurst Newtown
Blackwell, | would like to register my support for the TPO as I feel that the [oss of the trees on this land namely Ash,

Qak,Silver Birch, Sycamore, Yew,Horse Chestnut .Spruce,Lawson Cypress, Beech to name but a few together with
and old orchard would be a considerable loss to the area and to the various animals birds and wild life.

Kind Regards

1
Page 78



Agenda lten,

Gavin Boyes
S s
To:
Sul*®- -+ RE: Support for the TPO Blackwell village
Dea to confirm we have receijved your email in support of this TPO and will take it into consideration

during the further evaluation pracess of this order.

Best Regards
Gavin Boves
¢

)
/
Sent: 27 July 2017 09:32

To: Gavin Boyes
Subject: Support for the TPO Blackwell village

26 July 2017

REFERENCE TPO (No 11) 2017 - LAND SURRQUNDING 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN

To whom it may concern,

I'write to support keeping and making permanent the above TPO and feel that any removal of this site from
Green Belt protection, leading to possible planning permission being considered for housing development
would be disastrous for this quiet little village. This forms a ‘perceived threat to these trees’, whilst I would
argue the sites presence on the local SHLAA would constitute a ‘foreseeable threat to these trees’

woodland,



Agenda ltem 5

There are ;

Several Oaks — which look roughly 100 years old (200-300 year retention span)
Copper beech’s  (150-200 year retention span)

Poplar’s  (50-70 year retention Span)

Silver birch’s  (50-70 year retention span)

Sycamore’s (200-300 year retention span)

Horse chestnut’s  (100-150 year retention span)

to name but a few. The individual specimens are impressive due to thejr size and good condition, however
their true value is as an entirety. There is an unbroken line of trees that form this woodland, visible from the
village at several points, due to their position and also their great size, These provide pleasure to the
villagers, and are an important part of the characteristic of the entire village. If it were removed a part of

The trees effectively make a boundary to the village towards the North-East,
There is also evidence of the old orchard at the top end.

The wooded area forms 2 continuous boundary with the oak trees that link to the woodland area around
Tanglewood (i.e. a wildlife corridor). As such shouldn’t the same criteria that saved Tanglewood also apply
to the site I am writing about too?

This TPO is full of wildlife, including Badgers, Deer(including Roe) and Bats coming out of it. It is filled
with nesting birds — Green and Spotted Woodpeckers often come into my garden from there, also
Nuthatches, Goldfinches, Wrens and Bullfinches are seen coming from there. There is a large pond within
the TPO, which really needs a biodiversity study as it will almost certainly be full of wildlife, there are
reports of newts spreading from there into neighbouringgardens (reported from number
75 LinthurstNewtown).

The trees also serve the purpose of masking noise from the M42 motorway, which I believe is already way
over the acceptable level and is often a major problem at this end of the village. If this road noise increases
it will detract from the quality of life within the village by persons living there, yet another detrimental
effect of losing the woodland.

This site is totally unsuitable for development due to access and traffic problems, sitting as it does in a very
narrow section of the road, already a hazard for parking, school buses, delivery vehicles etc. There is no
potential to widen the road here and there have been a number of accidents and near misses on the bend
closest to the site. More houses wil] mean more traffic, affecting the oldest properties built closest to the
road very badly. Yet more development would ruin the whole feel of the village, which is small and
friendly. Locals have all paid a premium for this major selling point of the village, which development
would decimate. Around 30 years ago the village was developed and almost doubled in size whilst

other neighbouring villages have evaded development, when assessing the need to convert green belt to

2
Page 80



Agenda Item 5

building land, a TPO may help Blackwell avoid further erosion, surely it’s time for other villages to
shoulder the burden of meeting housing requirements.

As a brief additional point, the council would need to consider the risk of flooding, as the village has already
suffered badly in recent years from water running down from the land in that direction, and altering the land
on this scale may well have catastrophic consequences on future flooding issues!

To conclude, I would like to thank the Council for the temporary protection offered to the site by the
imposition of the TPO. I would strongly urge you to make the TPO permanent, and in view of concerns
relating to Badger setts, Bats and Newts would also expect the council to do everything within its power to
halt the further destruction of wildlife habitat by way ofa Biodiversity-study. Regardless of the current
listed status, this is not a worthless piece of agricultural scrubland, but a much-valued woodland, and should
be re-classified as such. Itisa great environmental asset to the village, as demonstrated by the levels of
emotion and upset as have already been expressed by a great many villagers at the initial actions by the

current landowners.

It has clearly taken well over a hundred years for the woodland to grow and establish and it obviously has a
great retention span ahead of it, please help us to stop external forces coming and bulldozing overnightthe
very thing that marks out this local popular beauty spot, the woodland makes this corner of Bromsgrove
special, its destruction would be a travesty.

Yours sinraralv

Sent from my iPad

Page 81



Agenda Ite

Gavin Boyes

To:

Subj RE: TPO (No 11) 2017 - 73 Linthurst Newtown

Dear to confirm we have received your email in support of this TPO and will take it into consideration
durir Tie ardar

I

Sent: 27 July 2017 10:17

To: Gavin Boyes

Subject: TPO (No 11) 2017 - 73 Linthurst Newtown

I am writing this email in support of the TPO at 73 Linthurst Newtown,

All trees are visible from the public footpath and from various angles on Linthurst Newtown including the very first
view as you enter the village over the railway bridge.

Page 82



Agenda ltem

Gavin Boyes

To:
Subject: RE: TPO (no 11) 2017
Dear thank you for getting in touch regarding this matter., We have raised a new TPO on the site and it is

our intension at this point to take this order forward to make it permanent. | will of course take your comments in
to account as we give this matter further consideration,

Best Regards
Gavin Boyes
Senior Tree Officer
Bromsgi

From: (

Sent: 01 August 2017 21:41
To: Gavin Boyes

Subject: TPO (no 11) 2017

Dear Mr Boyes.
I am writing to ask you to preserve the TPO at 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell.

For her 11th birthday this year, we bought our daughter an outdoor wildlife camera. We have been to
different locations within 1 mile of our house in Blackwell and so far have pictures of Fox, Badger, Deer,
rabbits, squirrel, and a mouse. I fear that the destruction of yet more wildlife habitat will drive these animals
away.

I would also suggest that the inevitable building of more houses should the TPO be withdrawn, would be a
very bad thing for Blackwell, causing even more chaos on Greenhill every morning and evening,

[ realise that in Blackwell we are lucky to have some areas that are naturally beautiful. Please don't allow
them to be spoilt.

Yours sincerely,

Page 83



Agenda ltem-

Gavin Boyes
=P
To:
Sub RE: TPO {Noll) 2017
Deal » to confirm we have received your email in support of this TPO and will take it into consideration

during the further evaluation process of this order.

Best Regards
Gavin Boyes
Senior Tree Officer
Bror o

Froi

Sent: 27 July 201/ 1/:41
To: Gavin Boyes

Subject: TPO (No11) 2017

Hello Gavin

I'would like to lodge my support for the TPO at 73 Linthurst Newtown. I want to protect the trees, the
wildlife and deter large scale building work that is not appropriate for this setting,

Many thanks

Page 84



Agenda ltermp<

Gavin Boyes

From: )
Sent: 03 August 2017 20:29

To: Gavin Boyes
Re: TPO No 11 2017. Land surrounding 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell, B60 1BS

Bromsgrove,
Worcestershire,
B60 1BS

3™ August 2017

RE: Site of Tree Protection Order (TPO No 11 2017) and land surrounding 73 Linthurst Newtown,
Blackwell, B60 1BS

Dear Mr G. Boyles,

[ am writing in support of the above TPO (Nol1) 2017.

The area this TPO stands on is a beautiful wildlife reservewhich gives a clear boundary to the village and
allows our wildlife to travel undisturbed around us,

['understand from the TPO that they are a great variety of tress on this [ and, many of which are national
treasures. The area is teeming with wildlife and it gives such a delightful backdrop to our village.

heavily trafficked motorway.

This area also serves to act as a flood barrier, my previous property at 122 Linthurst Newtown was flooded,
as were many properties along this road. To reduce the number of trees and hedges will only serve to make
flooding more likely again in the future,

The area is highly visible from a number of areas of Blackwell, namely on your immediately access to the
village from the Barnt Green end, over the railway bridge, from looking over the road to number 73 and
from the public footpath to the side of the area. This has a clear visual impact on arriving to the village,
adding to its appeal.

To conclude, I would strongly urge that the revised TPO be made permanent, to enable this in the
preservation of a highly valued environmentally rich and diverse area.

1
Page 85



Agenda Iltem 5

My family and I and the surrounding community would really appreciate your serious consideration of the

above.

Yours sincerely

Sent from my iPad

2
Page 86



Agenda ltep-&

Gavin Boyes

To:

Subject: RE: TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 11/2017 LINTHURST NEWTOWN BLACKWELL
Dear Mr i ) thank you for letting know your views in relation to the land adjoining 73 Linthurst Newtown and |

assure you we will take them into consideration in any future matters regarding this site. To hopefully reassure you
at further at this point although we did agree to dissolve the original order raised we have raise a replacement order

covering trees on the site.

Best Regards

Gavin Boyes

Semnior Tree Officer
Broms h

T R P

From

Sent: > Sy LULT L7 Do

To: Gavin Boyes

Subject: TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 11/2017 LINTHURST NEWTOWN BLACKWELL

T'am writing to say how appalled and horrified I am to learn that the Tree Preservation Order issued last year in respect of trees on land
adjoining 73 Linthurst Newtown has been appealed successfully, I am strongly opposed to the cutting down of these trees for a number
of reasons, inter-alia, the damage to wildlife that would without doubt occur and the threat to drainage, The trees also provide an
invaluable source of sound insulation from the M42 apart from enhancing air quality which I consider to be of the utmost importance.

In the event of permission being granted for the trees to be cleared, I contend that this would pave the way for any developers to build.
Linthurst Newtown is already a busy and potentially dangerous highway and I would submit would be incapable of dealing with any
increased volumes of traffic that would inevitably follow. Furthermore, the local infrastructure, schools, doctors and other medical
services are already operating at near maximum capacity and would be incapable of absorbing more residents,

For all of the above reasons I sincerely hope that the trecs are allowed to remain and that no further development will be approved.

Page 87



Agenda ltem,<.

Gavin Boyes

" To:

Subje RE: TREE PROTECTION REAR OF 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN
Dear | thank you for letting know your views in relation to the land adjoining 73 Linthurst Newtown and |

assure you we will take them into consideration in any future matters regarding this site, To hopefully reassure you
at further at this point although we did agree to dissolve the original order raised we have rajse a replacement order

covering trees on the site.

Best Regards

Gavin Boyes

Senior Tree Officer

Bromsgrove & Redditch Councils

From: aet]
Sent: 2y July 20t/ 13124

To: Gavin Boyes
Subject: Fw: TREE PROTECTION REAR OF 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN

Date: Z2a/G7 200 1 15002
To: <rasmasultana@bromsgroveandredditch. gov.ule>
Subj: Fw: TREE PROTECTION REAR OF 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN

Hi 1 am resubmitting my objection to the proposed tree felling at 73 Linthurst Newtown Blackwell my
circumstances have'nt changed so my objection is still relevant

To: <rasmaswanaesoromns RLUYCHLIUL GUUILGLL 2 U Y, un >

Subj: TREE PROTECTION REAR OF 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN

Objection for the felling of trees/clearing of land 73 Linthurst Newtown

Dear Sir/Madam

I'am writing in connection with the propasal of felling of trees and clearing of the woodiand and
ancient orchard at the rear of 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell.

My property sides on to the woodland and it makes up 100% of my vista. The woodland and
orchard are the boundary for Blackwell and not only look beautiful but also play an important role
in many other ways.

The tree formation act as a sound barrier for the M42 and railway, they form part of the village
surrounds and they protect the village by reducing the noise from the motorway and from the
pollution that the moforway causes.



Agenda Item 5

The trees and woodland area link to surrounding fields which are homes to wildlife and link to
woods at the rear of Tanglewood Close where g previous application was submitted for the felling
trees and clearnance of woodland and the application was previously refused.

The wildlife which are haused by the woodlands include Roe Deer, Woodpeckers (both green and
lesser spotted), Badgers, Rabbits, and various other bird species. Bats also appear regularly in
the locality although we are unsure as to whether they are housed here There are 3 range of trees
which we feel should be protected for the future of countryside and green areas and not felled.

The importance of the country side has a high amenity value to residents whom enjoy walking the
footpaths and the green areas and feel the trees and woodland form a huge part in what makes
Blackwell a village.

We feel, as residents, that the preservation order should be made permanent, not only for the
reasons above but to protect our countryside and green areas for the villagers and outside
villagers to enjoy countryside walking and scenery.

Please consider this protection order as g matter of concern to conserve our future envionment.

P.S I will be forwarding photographs of families of Roe Deer that have been taken from my
premises and they live in the fields which developers are proposing to clear. How can we make
such wildlife homeless!!

Page 89



Gavin Boyes y

From: _
" Sent: 03 August 20.  19:33

To: Gavin Boyes

Subject: TPO (Noll) 2017

Dear Gavin

I'am writing to you to register my support for the tree preservation order currently in place on the 4 acres of land
surrounding 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell,

My support for this are in line with the majority of the villagers and feel that losing this crucial field and woodland

would have a significant impact upon the village.

The M42 runs behind this land and the trees provide valuable protection from both noise and pollution,This area
resides at the base of the Lickey hills, and during heavy rain the run off from the hills is directed towards the village.
Several cottages in front of this land have flooded in the past from this water run-off, felling any trees in this
woodland will exacerbate this problem not only causing flooding of the houses but also causing a potential flood risk
to the railway that runs at the bottom of the gardens of Linthurst Newtown (that is currently being electrified).

Upon entering the village over the railway bridge, one of the most striking features of the village is the surrounding
field and woodland, that was among the key features that had Linthurst Newtown voted the most favoured place to

live in 2015.
In addition to the aesthetic aspect of the woodland and field in question we know that it is home to a vast array of

animal species. | live directly opposite the field and frequently see Roe deer grazing. The loss of this wood would
have a serious negative impact on these animals- this is a key corridor for these animals which are isolated by the

Along the front edge of the land adjoining Linthurst Newtown is a very old oak tree that makes up a row of trees for
birds and other wildlife as protection from the road and adds value to Blackwell's village plan of maintaining
roadside trees and hedgerows.

I sincerely hope that all of this is taken into consideration when the decision is made over the permanent nature of
the tree preservation order and the future of this site as a preserved area of greenbelt.

Kind regards

Page 90



Agenda Iteﬁ__ .

Gavin Boyes
From:
 Sent: 03 August 2017 23:19
To: Gavin Boyes
Subject: TPO 11 2017 Linthurst Newtown Blackwell
Dear Gavin

I'am writing in support of the tree preservation order currently in place that covers trees on the land surrounding 73

Linthurst Newtown, Blackwael] (TPO 11 2017).

Many of my thoughts and observations are undoubtedly the same as those you have already received, but perhaps |
can bring some additional insight into what 1 believe is a strong case for the protection of all or many of the trees on
this land.

As | understand from the guidance notes concerning tree protection, an important consideration is the character
that trees impart to an environment and the way that they influence the overall appearance. There are many
Mmature trees of severa| species and collectively these can be seen from several key viewpoints, perhaps most
importantly approaching the village from Barnt Green crossing the railway bridge, and as a backdrop along a .
significant length of Linthyrst Newtown. Trees on the northern part of the land are also a major part ofthe_ view of
the village from the public footpath that can be accessed from Tanglewood Close, and form a continuum with a
large wooded area (mainly Oaks) that surrounds the top end of Tanglewood Close.

The northern aspect of the woodland effectively represents a boundary to the village, and standing in the field
adjacent to the public footpath it is quite clear that the combined wooded area serves as an effective barrier TO the
sound of traffic, which at that point rolls down the hill from the M42. Moreover, from an ecological perspective,
and in addition to the many species that live within the wooded area, it can be seen that the woodland creates a
Very necessary wildlife corrigor between the M42 and the railway line, linking rural areas around Barnt Green to
Linthurst and beyond. One Species in particular that is known to rely on such corridors is the Roe Deer, many of
which 1 have sighted on or coming from the land in question.

I hope that my comments are of some use and look forward to hearing the outcome of your deliberations on this
matter.

Kind regards

1
Page 91



Agenda Item,
p

Gavin Boyes

“rom:

Sent: 03 August 2017 21:51
To: Gavin Boyes
Subject: TPO 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell

Dear Mr. Boyes,

I'write with regards to Tree Protection Order at land at 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell, Broms grove.

The protection of trees on this site will bring a high degree of public benefit:

L. 1. From a ‘visibility’ point of view, trees at the site are of public benefit to residents; not only to those
living immediately next to the site, but surrounding areas also. Trees at the site can be seen and enjoyed
from Linthurst Newton, Badger Way, Foxes Close and The Glen, as well as the top end of Tanglewood
Close. Circa 60 properties benefit from these trees in addition to users the public footpath to the rear of
Tanglewood Close which forms part of a wider network of public footpaths.

2. The removal of trees at this site would completely change the character of Linthurst Newtown, Badger
Way, neighbouring Foxes Close and the aforementioned footpath. The mature and well-established trees
provide a visual backdrop to Badger Way and Foxes Close and are directly in the line of sight when walking
down Foxes Close; (they are visible in the extensive gap at the end of the road between numbers 15 and 20).

3. Further to the visibility factor, trees at the site also have a collective wider impact to the local
community. They contribute to the character of the loca] area, Blackwell is a rural village with other trees
and forested areas having tree preservation orders placed upon them. If a preservation order was not placed
o trees at the above site, this site could become not in keeping with its surrounding landscape.

3. 4. The site is of a size that is significant — circa 4 acres. Given the size of the site, the trees upon it
provide wildlife with valuable habitats.

4. 5.Some of the trees at this site are of substantial maturity, If a preservation order was not placed upon
trees at this site, trees that could be assessed to be noteworthy in terms of their age could be felled.

Many thanks for considering the submission.

Yours faithfully,

1
Page 92



Agenda ltem

Gavin Boyes

From: [ >
Sent: 04 August 2017 10:54

To: Gavin Boyes

Subject: TPO by 73 Linthurst Newtown Blackwell, Bromsgrove

we are writing to put our comments in about development of the above property:

we live next to the field in question and are really upset that we could be losing valuable woodland, we see

foxes, badgers, roe deer daily.
Birds of prey are seen regularly and we feel if the trees are gone most of this wildlife would be lost.

We are also concerned about motorway pollution and noise, as the trees act as a buffer.,

We are realy upset that the council could consider this decision as we thought preservation of woodland and
wildlife is important for our future and our children's future.

Page 93



Agenda Iltem 5
Q)

Linthurst Newtown
Blackwell
Worcestershire
B60 1BS
27/7/2017

REFERENCE TPO (No 11) 2017 - LAND SURROUNDING 73 LINTHURST
NEWTOWN

To whom it may concern,

I would like to voice my concerns regarding the ongoing clearing of land and trees
around 73 Linthurst Newtown in preparation for a development. Thank you for
supporting us with our original TPO and I ask you to continue to represent our
community.

F'understand the land remains greenbelt and listed as SHLAA and scrubland. I have
lived alongside this piece of land for 19 years and can say it is not scrubland but a
well-developed mature woodland which is very visible to many of the residents
especially as you enter the village. It is a village and the trees are an integral part of
our village.

T'understand the initial TPO has been overturned and a temporary TPO has been
awarded. Has this notification been displayed locally as it would be very important for
the residents in our village to have access to the revised document to determine which
trees have been earmarked in order to continue monitoring the situation?

At present aggressive clearing is in progress within the woodland area which I feel
needs to be monitored. Large bonfires have been burning and I feel this has been
going unchecked.

My concerns to date are:

1. The progressive burning and clearing of this land when it remains greenbelt

2. Iam also concerned that felling these trees will alter the drainage
characteristics of the land as we have been exposed to flooding in the past. I
would be concerned how a development would have added impact.

3. The woodland supports a variety of wildlife which I have witnessed and
photographed over the years. The list includes badgers, roe deer, muntjac,
foxes, owls, pipistrelle bats ( which nest in the apex of my house every year
facing the land), newts and hedgehogs and a variety of birds nesting in the
woodland including a rookery. There is a large pond situated on the land
within the TPO, which really needs a biodiversity study. Prior to the sale of
the land I have seen newts in this pond. I am concerned that these areas are
being ‘cleansed of wildlife® as T have witnessed a fox being chased off the land
by a man wielding a large stick.

4. Noise pollution is another concern with the proximity of the M42 and the
impact of removing trees and building houses.

5. IT'wonder how the site will be accessed given that it leads off a VEry narrow
road with sharp bends and has been the site of accidents in the past

So in conclusion my concerns for the environment by removing the trees and
developing the land include:

Page 94



Agenda Iltem 5

1)A visible well established woodland, ii) flooding , iii) wildlife habitat, 1v) noise
‘Shielding (v) access
Thank you so much for your support and I ask you lodge my concerns.

Yours sincerely

Page 95



Agenda Iltem 5
@)

Gavin Boxes o

To: o
Subject: RE: TPO (no 11) 2017
Dear thank you for letting know your views in relation to the land adjoining 73 Linthurst Newtown and

I assure you we will take them into consideration in any future matters regarding this site.

Best Regards

Gavin Boyes

Senior Tree Officer

Bromsgrove & Redditch Councils

From y D —

Sent: 28 July 2017 22:01
To: Gavin Boyes
Subject: TPO (no 11) 2017

Dear Mr Boyes,
Whereas we appreciate that more houses need building we are of the view that houses should not be build on the

land at 73 Linthurst Newtown in Blackwell. This plot is situated very close to a dreadful bend in the road for starters
which will only add to problems on that narrow stretch of the road, The houses would add to the ever increasing
traffic going through Blackwell, Burcot and Barnt Green, It will put strain on the local school and of course total
disruption to trees and wildlife.

Yours sincerely,

Pége 96



Agenda ltem 5
( ).
Gavin Boyes - e

“rom: s sy T

Sent: 04 August 2017 15:54

To: Gavin Boyes

Subject: Clearing work at 73 Linthurst Newtown Blackwell
Dear Sir

We would like to add our concern regarding the clearing work around 73 Linthurst Newtown Blackwell.

We live opposite, on the bend, and have some real concerns re traffic:-
® Many people take the corner way too fast and we hear several near misses every day not to mention the

actual crashes.
* People take the bend whilst on their mobile phones, again causing near misses.
* People often park on the bend or outside the cottages (due to a absence of parking spaces in the front

gardens) so the road is even further restricted.
* lknow the number of cars was monitored (a guage in the road) but that does not show how dangerous that

corner is.
® Line of sight is bad, depending on where the entrance to the potential new development may be, an

increase of the cars belonging to
® 45 houses (amount detailed in Shlaa) entering and exiting will only make this problem much worse.,
® The road is way too narrow and obscured for mass entrance/exit.

We have had to call Bromsgrove council at least 10 times re flooding on the bend, our own house was flooded twice.
We have had to have ground works undertaken to compensate. Should there be the concrete/bricks etc relating to

45 houses, this will increase.

The trees bordering the property are shielding us al! from the noise from the M42 as well as keep the character of
the rural village.

We used to see deer/rabbits/phesants in the grounds weekly and lately have not seen any wildlife.
This work is being undertaken by a developer with a history of such projects purely for profit and does not consider
the welfare of Blackwell or its residents. As a representative voted in by the community that will remain , | hope you

share this concern.

Many thanks

Pa&:]e 97



This page is intentionally left blank



- APPENDIX (7) Agenda &M 5

Worcestershire County Council

e SRR B &
w%%xﬁ"\! g S LA SN
Wl LA “‘ ﬁswh o JEE ‘Rﬁ W B e
o oo WA N D o PR NI ¥ i T Nt

| " Scale = 1:2500 x: 399459.9 y: 272873.51
' S Gfown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey 100024230.

Page 99
https://gis.worcestershire.gov.uk/website/Countryside/ 12/10/2017



This page is intentionally left blank



\ Agenda ltem 5
APPENDIX (8) JEnaE T

What does ‘amenity’ mean in practice?

‘Amenity’ is not defined in law, so authorities need to exercise judgment when deciding
whether it is within their powers to make an Order.

Orders should be used to protect selected trees and woodlands if their removal would have a
significant negative tmpact on the local environment and its enjoyment by the public. Before
authorities make or confirm an Order they should be able to show that protection would bring
a reasonable degree of public benefit in the present or future,

Paragraph: 007 Reference ID: 36-007-20140306

Revision date: 06 03 2014

What might a local authority take into account when assessing amenity value?

When considering whether trees should be protected by an Order, authorities are advised to
develop ways of assessing the amenity value of trees in a structured and consistent way,
taking into account the following criteria:

Visibility

The extent to which the trees or woodlands can be seen by the public will inform the
authority’s assessment of whether the impact on the local environment is significant. The
trees, or at least part of them, should normally be visible from a public place, such as a road
or footpath, or accessible by the public.

Individual, collective and wider impact
Public visibility alone will not be sufficient to warrant an Order. The authority is advised to

also assess the particular importance of an individual tree, of groups of trees or of woodlands
by reference to its or their characteristics including:

» size and form;

» future potential as an amenity,

= rarity, cultural or historic value; .

» contribution to, and relationship with, the landscape; and

« contribution to the character or appearance of a conservation area.

Other factors

Where relevant to an assessment of the amenity value of trees or woodlands, authoritics may’
consider taking into account other factors, such as importance to nature conservation or
response to climate change. These factors alone would not warrant making an Order.

Paragraph: 008 Reference ID: 36-008-20140306

Revision date: 06 03 2014

Page 101



Agenda Item 5

What can help local authorities identify trees that may need protection?

An authority’s tree strategy may identify localities or populations of trees as priorities for the
making or reviewing of Orders. Authorities may also refer to existing registers, recording
trees of particular merit, to assist in their selection of trees suitable for inclusion in an Order.

Paragraph: 009 Reference ID: 36-009-20140306

Revision date: 06 03 2014

What does ‘expedient’ mean in practice?

Although some trees or woodlands may merit protection on amenity grounds it may not be
expedient to make them the subject of an Order. For example, it is unlikely to be necessary to
make an Oxder in respect of trees which are under good arboricultural or silvicultural
management.

It may be expedient to make an Order if the authority believes there is a risk of trees being
felled, pruned or damaged in ways which would have a significant impact on the amenity of
the area. But it is not necessary for there to be immediate risk for there to be a need to protect
trees. In some cases the authority may believe that certain trees are at risk as a resuit of
development pressures and may consider, where this is in the interests of amenity, that it is
expedient to make an Order. Authorities can also consider other sources of risks to trees with
significant amenity value. For example, changes in property ownership and intentions to fell
trees are not always known in advance, so it may sometimes be appropriate to proactively
make Orders as a precaution.

Paragraph: 010 Reference 1D: 36-010-20140306

Revision date: 06 03 2014

Page 102



oAPPENDIX (9)

" sxtanopy line of W1 as viewed from the public

m»

footpath to the North West

=
O
=
©
S
c
()




nda Item 5

Canopy line of W1 as viewed from the public
footpath to the North West







T14 as veiwed from East on Linthusrt
<Newtown Road




92
zﬂl
(¢
(@)
=
=
>
=~
=
=
ﬂ
W
e~
X
@)
1)
Q.

0
Q
-
Q
©
-
-
-
()
o
iy
)
(§8)
Q
wn
S
=
®
Q.
iy
-s
o
3
W
o
o
-
o 2
m
Q
wn
Ff
O
m—y




G2 as viewed from Foxes Close




5

T4 T3

Canopy Line Of G3 as viewed from Foxes Close




T16 as viewed from the South East of site on
Linthurst Road




O
&
@)

=
©

.m Canopy line G3 as veiwed from

e

(@)

A




e
(WY
%))
Q
wn
-3
M
3
D
Q.
iy
q
e
=
-
M
2




Agenda ltem 5

o W

..,..: uﬁm

From top of garden

75-77 Linthurst




Canopy line of trees as viewed from f
Linthurst Newtown

LO
&
)
=
M
o
-
@
o)
<




Canopy line of trees in G1 as viewed from the
North Eastern end of Linthurst Road

To)
=
)

=
®©
a




Canopy line of
G1 from North Eastern
AH_ end of Linthurst Road

O
&
O
=
o
S
e
)
)
<




G2 as viewed from front of 73 Linthurst Newtown

O
=
Q
s
o
s
c
)
)
<




Canopy line of G3 as viewed from the front of
73 Linthurst Newtown.

i s el e ————— Y

P S | U PN TV
e e s e S e T T SR
T T e .-
- - S, T e
s A M 2 o v R R Tk

ke L

g =

e

8 UL e

o Dl




e of G3 as viewed from the front of

Furst Newtown

i e

A

'\

b g
i




AR
%

T1 as viewed from the South West of the site on Linthusrt Roa .m

)
.

/” Y

Yy

5

*He 678k
Corpac®




Canopy line of G3 as viewed from Foxes Close




This page is intentionally left blank



T.E.M.P.O Tree Evaluation Sheet

_.MWmmemwos by: §3 Date: Nﬂﬁfﬁw une Q0 77 Sheet No. 4 oF o >U _U mZ U_x A\_ Ov
qeeresstteDens: 173 Lwibheisk Newtown (lond od jowivg )
7 Tree Species DBH Amenity Assessment
d - other | EXped Score PO
M ret (mm) | a - Condition | b - Longevity | c-Visibility | Sub| | factors | 1Y YiN? Notes
it @%m = 4 5 2, 4 [Bligly
mwx 1 | Fsh 3 5 Y N ERIEY
52 | 3% fsh 3 < 2 olEl i 1S il Y
T2 | Bsh 3 5 2 JolEl 1 B iy Y
73 | Ash 3 ., 2 Jlolgl 1 1R ey
T4 | Ash 2 5 AR I EE T R .
5 | Ash 2 |5 2 DRl 13 |y S
TE | Oak 2 5 2 GED L 13 gl Y >
T S Bitin 3 G 7 G =l 1 13153 Y o
12 Silve Rt 3 Lt 9 . m R e d
19| Ash S “+ PO s I = Y
i [AsH 3 L < [0 4a| 2l | Y
T [ Syomgd 3 L 3 oE] 1 Ry
e FATIN 3 L 3 o S

3} Falr
1} Poor

0} Dsad

5} 100+

) <10

a} nannmas
8} Good {highly suitable}

(suitable)
{unfiksly)

0} Unsafe

b} Longevity

4} 40— 100
2) 20~ 40 (suitable)
1} 10— 20 (just suitable}

(unsufiable)

¢} Relative public visibility

B} Very large frees, or farge frees hat are prominant feaiilres {V lpe=200sqm+)
4} Largs trees, or madium frees clearly visible to the public {ige=100-200sqm)
3} Medium frees, or larger rees with imited view only (Sutable, med=25-100sqm)
2} Small trees, or larger ones visible only with difficulty (Uniikety, smail = 5-28sgm}
1} Young/v.small or not publicly visible regardiess of size (prob unsuitable, <5sam)

d} Otherfactors

5} Principal components of arboricuitural features, or veleran trees
4} Members of groups of frees that are important for their cohesion
3} Trees with significant historical or commemorative importance
2} Trees of particularly good form, espedially if rare or unusual

1) Trees with none of the above additional redeaming feafuras

Part 2: Expediency assessment

5Y Known threat to res

3) Foreseeable threat io free

2} Perceived threat {o Irse

1} Precautionary only

0} Known as an actionable nuisance

Part 3: Decision guide

Any O Do not apply TPO
1-8 TPO indefensible
7-11 Dees not ment TPO
i2-15 Possibly merits TRPO
16+ Definitely merits TPO




LO)

#

T.E.M.P.O Tree Evaluation Sheet

vatuation by: «t% p
s

Date: mﬁ.\‘myu\.@@\m\ﬂ @Mﬁ i NN

Sheet No.

\MiomNN\

ddress/Site Details: W w m:m \wwr\ypﬁ, Wmm‘ P\&% ] NN&N SQN a Qm Q&& S\m v
Tree Species DBY Amenity Assessment 4 other | EXPed Score PO
(mm) | a- Condition | b - Longevity | ¢ - Visibility | Sub factors | 1encY YIN? Notes
I%w 3 £4G | 3 ol B lin|r

it | Hotliy 3 Lt Gkl ISR

w @@%Mxﬁ 3 Ly 3 18 m o3 iy
ﬁ@ W 2 E 2 JolEl 12 ity
T [Willed 3 L 2 gl ot 3 gy
T1% | Oak. 3 S 2 iols] 1 13 TP I -
T4 | Bpple 3 o R 7 B .w PR 2y N
-T B S z
T 4 e (sl 13 sy o
Gu |8 TXe 3 Lo 2 a5+ [3 D3]
G5 | 3SueBri 3 . 3 o8] ¢+ 13 i Y
Gé ;E&wrﬁﬁ 32 Ly 2 “ m, i ENIESR
L7 3 o | 2 lal [ 23]y

Part 1: Amenily assessment

5} Good
3 Fair
1) Poor
0} Unsafe
3} Dead

5) 100+

8} <10

&) Condition

{mighly suitable}
{suiiable)}
{uniikely}

b} Longevity

4} 4D - 100
2) 20 - 40 (suitabie)
1) 10 — 20 {just suitable)

{unsuitable)

c} Reiative public visibility

&) Very large trees, or large frees that are prominent features (v ige=200som=}
4y Large frees, or medium frees clearly visible to the public (ige=100-200sgm)
3) Medium trees, or larger irees with limited view only (Suitable, med=25-100sgm)
2y Smali trees, or larger ones visible only with difficulty ntikety, smafl = 5-25s0m)
1} Youngfv.small or not publicly visible regardless of Size {prob unsuitable, <Ssqm)

d} Other factors

5) Prncipat components of arboricultural features, or veteran trees
4} Members of groups of irees that are imporiant for their cohesion
3 Trees with significant historieal or cormmamorative Impoertance
2} Tress of parficularly good form, especially if rare or unusual

1) Trees with none of the above addifional redeeming features

£} Known threat fo ree

3) Foresegabile threat to tree

2) Perceived threat to free

1} Precautionary only

) Known a3 an actionable nuisance

Any O
1-8
T~11
12-15
16+

Part 3; Decisign guide

Do not apply TPO
TPO indefensible
Does not merit TPO
Possibly merits TPO
Definitely merits TPO




nda Item 5
APPENDIX (11) ¢y - 03 8T

CO/B67/2017
IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE,
ADMINISTRATIVE COURT
PLANNING COURT

IN THE MATTER OF LAND ADJACENT TO 73 LINTHURST NEWTON,
BLACKWELL

AND

IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION UNDER SECTION 288 OF THE
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990

BETWEEN:
ACCESS HOMES LLP
Claimant
AND
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
Defendant

BIRMINGHAM

&
. <I"”Ww NG S

CONSENT ORDER

Upon the application and graot of permission for statutory review of the Defendant’s
decision dated 9 January 2017 to confirm Tree Preservation Order No. 13 of 2016
relating to Trees on Land at the side and rear of 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell

{the “Existing Tree Preservation Order™),

TAKE NOTICE THAT the Claimant and the Defendant agree to an Order in the

following terms:

Page 125



Agenda Item 5

UPON the Defendant agreeing to consent to judgment on the grounds of the Claim set

out iri the Schedule 1 hereto

AND UPON the Defendant making a néw Tree Preservation Order in a form which
shall be no more restrictive than the plan and schedule attached to this order at
Schedule 3 (“the New Tree Preservation Order”™), SAVE THAT the Claimant does not
agree the extent of the proposed ’i“rée Preservation Order and reserves the right to

make further objections

AND UPON the Claimant agreeing not to or not to permit or allow any other person
to:
(a) Cut down, top, lop, uproot, wilfully damage, or wilfully destroy or;
{(b) Cause or permit the cutting down, topping, lopping, uprooting, wilful
damage or wilful destruction of the trees specified in the Schedule to the
Existing Tree Preservation Order (except as is permitted by any
application under Part 4 of Town and Country Planning (Tree
Preservation){England) Regulations 2012/605 including the Tree Works
Approvals reference TPO17/010 granted conditionally by the Defendant
on 5 April 2017 and TPO17/011 granted conditionally by the Defendant

on 7 April 2017)
Until the new Tree Preservation Order is made by the Defendant PROVIDED the

New Tree Preservation Order is made within 14 days of the date of the deemed

service of this Consent Order, endorsed by the Court.

Page 126



Agenda Item 5

BY CONSENT IT IS ORDERED THAT:

1. Bromsgrove District Council Tree Preservation Order No.13(2016) dated 12
January 2017 shall be quashed:

2. The Defendant shall pay the Claimant’s costs in the agreed sum of £11,743.91

(Eleven Thousand, Seven Hundred and Forty-Three Pounds and Ninety-One

Pence).
Signed on behalf of the Claimant Signed on behalf of the Defendant
et VT S tans O"ﬁ“’*‘"“‘"‘@‘w
Dated: :"”';l@‘:}

Name: Qogp\ui\:.ﬁ AMB{?\EMS Name: CLARE  FLATNIACLAN

Position: SoUCITOR Position: PeecrocPac Soicitor
Organisation: 4 ARRISON Organisation: ™ R.c % BLOA DISTRACT

CLARK R\WCkERRYS SR

s wgsead lon B

Dated: gwjk}f\ﬁ,qgl? ot )

hC w
1+t [Gi,l':l-

Page 127



Agenda Item 5

SCHEDULE 1

Upon further investigation and pursuant to ground two of the claim, the Defendant
considers it reasonable and proportionate to amend the extent of the trees and
woodlands protected under section 198 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

as in the schedule of the New Tree Preservation Area.

Also pursuant to ground three of the claim, irregular procedure at the site visit such as

to give the appearance of procedural unfairness.

SCHEDULE 2
STATEMENT OF MATTERS JUSTIFYING THE PROPOSED AGREED ORDER

1. The parties agree that the attendance of the site visit by the tree officer without
the Development Control Manager, as is the usual practice of the Defendant,
is sufficient in the circumstances of this case to give the impression of
procedural unfairness.

2. In light of further information to and assessments by the Defendant’s tree
officers, the Defendant agrees that the area protected by a tres preservation
officer should be reduced. While most of the woodland designation in the
Existing Tree Preservation Order is similarly designated as woodland by the
Forestry Comumission and Matural England, additional site visits have
demonstrated that the amenity value of the southiern area can be adequately
protected by an area order directed towards the established older trees of the

site.

Page 128



Agenda Item 5

SCHEDULE 3
PLAN AND SCHEDULE FOR THE NEW TREE PRESERVATION ORDER

Page 129



S Agenda ltem 5

Page 130



Agenda Item 5

TPO (13) 2016 — Revised First Schedule

Trees specified individually

(encircled in black on the map)

No. | Description National Grid | Situation
on Reference
T1 Cypress 389763 | 272444 | l.and adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T2 |Cypress 390762 | 272442 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T3 Spruce 390758 | 272439 |Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
1 T4 Cypress 399754 | 272435 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
5 Oak 399751 | 272431 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newiown, Blackwell
16 Chestnut 309747 | 272427 |Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T7 Spruce 399742 | 272424 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T8 | Cypress 309741 | 272422 | Land adjacertt 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
19 Chestnut 3909738 | 272420 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwel}
T10 | Ash 309737 | 272416 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T11 | Ash 399728 | 272427 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackweil
T12 | Yew 399703 | 272464 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T13 | Ash 390699 | 272471 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T14 i Ash 309702 | 272485 . Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T15 | Chesmut 399729 | 272499 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
Ti6 | Maple 309746 | 272508 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwall
7 | Willow 399751 | 272501 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T18 | Yew 309759 | 272496 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T19 | Maple 399765 | 272485 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T20 |Ash 309767 | 272519 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T21 | Maple 399763 | 272525 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T22 | Ash 399757 | 272534 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell

Page 131




Agenda Item 5

T23 | Apple 3997568 | 272517 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T24 | Holly 399790 | 272479 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T25 | Holly 399792 | 272475 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
Trees specified by reference to an area
{(within a dotted black line on the map)
No. | Description National Grid Situation
on Reference
Map
Al All Holly, Hazel 398749 | 272432 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown
‘& Yew trees Blackwell
within A1
A2 All Holly, 309717 | 272445 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown
Hawthorn -& Yew Blackweil
trees within A2
A3 All trees of 399708 | 272538 | Land fo the rear of 73 Linthurst Newtown
whatever species Blackwell
of trunk diameter
100mm or
greater at 1.5m
within A3.
Groups of Trees
(within a broken black line on the map)
No. | Description National Grid Situation
on Reference
Map
NONE
Woodiands
(within a continuous black line on the map)
No. | Description National Grid | Situation
on Reference
Map
W1 | Alltrees, 399647 | 272575 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown
coppice & Blackwell
understorey of
whatever size &
species within
W1

Page 132




Agenda Iltem 6

Name of Applicant Proposal Expiry Date  Plan Ref.
Greyhound Inn  Demolition of existing 2 storey building. 11.10.2017 17/00950/FU
Developments L

Ltd The Greyhound [ph], 30 Rock Hill,

Bromsgrove, Worcestershire, B61 7LR

Councillor Mallett has requested that this application be considered by Planning
Committee rather than being determined under delegated powers.
RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be Granted

Consultations

Highways - Bromsgrove
No objection subject to Traffic Management Plan Condition.

The proposed demolition works will have no long term impact on the Highway network in
their own right and in fact as a standalone proposal is beneficial as it removes a trip
generating use from the local area. The Highway Authority is fully aware of application
16/01132 which also proposes the demolition of this building and its replacement with
apartments and a roundabout. The roundabout is part of the mitigation works to address
the impact of the Whitford Road housing proposal and the wider growth of Bromsgrove
and whilst this application does not provide for that junction or the associated residential
development it is considered to be an enabling application to prepare the land for an early
delivery of the junction.

The detail of the junction is fully considered in application 16/01132 as is the wider
impact. It is however necessary to seek a condition to control traffic movements
associated with is application but it is recognised that this impact will be for a relatively
short period of time.

Conservation Officer

The Greyhound is considered to be a heritage asset, and would be eligible for inclusion
on the Local Heritage List as it satisfies the criteria in the Local Heritage List Strategy
Document 2016.

The existence of the Greyhound from at least the early part of the 19th century, with its
original form and later development being reasonably discernible, would clearly indicate
that the building is a heritage asset. It is a historical survival from a time when Rock Hill
was sparsely developed, and clearly outside the town of Bromsgrove. It marks a clear
boundary between the earlier and later character of Rock Hill.

When considering applications in respect of non-designated heritage assets BDP20.14
of the Bromsgrove Local Plan states 'In considering applications that directly or indirectly
affect Heritage Assets, a balanced judgement will be applied having regard to the scale of
any harm or loss as a result of proposed development and the significance of the
Heritage Asset.' This is supported by Paragraph 135 of the NPPF which states "The effect
of an application on the significance of a non-designated heritage asset should be taken

Page 133



Agenda Iltem 6

Plan reference

into account in determining the application. In weighing applications that affect directly or
indirectly non designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be required having
regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the significance of the heritage asset.’

| am aware that the demolition of this building is required to facilitate alterations to the
road system to allow for a major residential development. | cannot support the loss of this
heritage asset and would prefer to see the scheme amended to retain this building,
however the substantial harm that would obviously be caused to this heritage asset would
have to be balanced against the public benefits of the scheme.

20/9/17

Further comments received:

| have read the comments put forward by the Whitford Voice Residents with interest. As
you are aware | consider the property to be a heritage asset for the reasons detailed in
my response of 25th August, to the recent planning application. The Greyhound will
therefore be considered as such by the Case Officer when determining the planning
application.

Building Control
No adverse comments

Ecology
No comments received to date

WRS - Noise

In order to minimise any noise nuisance during the demolition operation the applicant
should refer their contractor to the WRS Demolition and Construction Guidance
(attached) and ensure its recommendations are complied with.

(Document on system)

Arboricultural Officer

1. The large Weeping Willow (T4) FPCR Arboricultural Assessment dated October
2016 and supplied with the application standing to the front of the site close to the
junction of Rock Hill and Albert Road is formally protected under Bromsgrove District Tree
Preservation Order (15) 2016 which is now a permanent order. Therefore this tree will
need to be retained and fully protected in accordance with BS5837:2012
recommendations throughout any demolition, ground or development works on the site. |
agree with the assessment of the tree as and proposed protection measure as made
within the FPCR Arboricultural Assessment. An awareness of this tree and the required
protection it should receive has also been noted within the A.R. Demolition Ltd method
Statement & Risk assessment with the Project Details section of the document item (8) &
(9) of paragraph 1.1.2.

2. The site contains a number of other mixed species trees including (T3) of the
FPCR Arboricultural Assessment another Weeping Willow. However these trees are of
generally poor quality many being of self-set establishment or with growth defects and
disease issues. Therefore | would have no objection to the loss of the other tree stock
within the site.

Crime Risk Manager Consulted 20.09.2017

Page 134



Agenda Iltem 6

Plan reference

No objection to the Greyhound being demolished.

| am concerned as to how the site would be secured once the pub has been knocked
down.

Before planning permission is granted | would like to see detailed plans as to how the site
will be secured to prevent unlawful encampments etc.

Consultation comments

Site notice posted 17/8/17 expired 7/9/17
98 Neighbour notification letters/emails sent 16/8/17 expired 6/9/17

10 responses received

Comments received in support of the demolition from local residents who state that the
pub caused issues with regard to anti-social behaviour.

Objections received expressing concern with regard to the demolition aiding the
development at Whitford Road and the loss of the heritage asset.

Whitford Vale Voice raised concern with regard to the heritage/historical interest in
connection with the Greyhound including the local quarrying industry.

Councillor Luke Mallett raised understand whether listing should be considered in the
light of the previous submission and the new evidence of historic value.

Relevant Policies

BDP1 Sustainable Development Principles
BDP 20 Managing the Historic Environment
BDP 21 Natural Environment

National Planning Policy Framework

Relevant Planning History

16/1132 Outline Planning Application for: Site A
(Land off Whitford Road)
Provision of up to 490 dwellings, Class
Al retail local shop (up to 400 sgm),
two new priority accesses onto Whitford
Road, public open space, landscaping
and sustainable urban drainage; and
Site B (Land off Albert Road)
Demolition of Greyhound Public House,
provision of up to 15 dwellings, new
priority access onto Albert Road,
landscaping and sustainable drainage.

13/0674 Building of 7 no terraced houses on rear Refused 03.03.2015
western car park and opening up of

Page 135



Agenda Iltem 6

Plan reference

existing driveway on Albert Road to
existing car park

16/0832 Demolition of existing 2 storey public 11.11.2016
house.

15/00014/REF  Building of 7 no terraced houses on rear Allowed at 24.09.2015
western car park and opening up of Appeal
existing driveway on Albert Road to
existing car park

Assessment of Proposal

This application relates to the Greyhound Public House located on the corner of Fox Lane
and Rock Hill which has an authorised use within Class A4. The building comprises of a
predominately two-storey building with single storey elements. There is a large car park
on the north side. The willow tree to the east boundary adjacent to Albert Road has a
provisional TPO. The surrounding area is predominantly residential in use. The building
is currently vacant and boarded. The car park has been fenced off and the boundary
hedge cleared.

This application for full planning permission has been submitted following the successful
appeal by the applicants Greyhound Inn Developments Ltd to remove the building's
status as an asset of community value under the Localism Act 2011. The appellant is a
subsidiary company of Catesby Estates Ltd which owns land on Whitford Road which is
currently subject of another application for outline planning permission referenced
16/1132. In order to overcome previous reasons for refusal by the Planning Inspectorate,
works need to be done to the junction of Fox Lane and Rock Hill in order to alleviate extra
pressure on the local highway network generated by the additional vehicle movements
that this development would create. Demolition of the Greyhound forms Site B of
pending application reference 16/1132.

Dealing with the Greyhound separately, the demolition of this is now the subject of a full
planning application given a change in the regulations in that Public Houses can no
longer be demolished under the Prior Approval process. The application should therefore
be determined in accordance with the relevant policies of the Bromsgrove District Plan
along with national planning policies. It should also be considered that within the Judge's
decision on whether the pub should be an Asset of Community Value he concluded that it
was 'unrealistic' to think that the property could ever be reopened as a public house
again. In terms of paragraph 135 of the NPPF, the benefits of demolishing the pub
should be weighed against the loss of a non-designated heritage asset and as such
Members are requested to consider the applicants' supporting information submitted on
12th October 2017 available to view on the Council’s website on Public Access.

BDP1 states that any adverse impacts of granting planning permission should

significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies
in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).

Page 136



Agenda Iltem 6

Plan reference

The overarching theme of the NPPF is that the planning system should contribute to the
achievement of sustainable development and therefore Local Planning Authorities
(LPA's) should take a presumption in favour of sustainable development. With this in
mind and taking into account the pressures on LPA's to reach housing development
targets, unless there are other material considerations which would justify refusing a
development then approval should be forthcoming.

Members will note the views of the Conservation Officer and third parties in relation to
heritage. Whilst | acknowledge that there are some historical qualities to the building
which warrant it being considered a Heritage Asset, | cannot give this sufficient weight to
warrant refusal of the application given the overall benefits of the demolition of the pub
when considering the wider benefits to the area of the District as a whole. The Whitford
Road development is featured in the Bromsgrove District Plan as a development site
(BROM3) and this should be given substantial weight when considering this application.

There have also been a number of objections from local residents and the Ward Member
which | acknowledge but since the removal of its status as an asset of community value,
there is less importance in terms of its protection. Even prior to this designation and
when the Public House was open for business, it always struggled to be viable even
being taken over by a number of franchises and different owners. | do not therefore
consider that there is sufficient need for this type of use in this locality otherwise it would
have been a success as a business previously.

The Public House as it stands at the present time is unsightly, clearly having a
detrimental effect on the visual amenity of the locality and the applicants have provided
detailed accounts of anti-social behaviour issues that have arisen and the numbers of
calls made to the police. With this in mind, West Mercia Constabulary have been
consulted and have no objection to the demolition of the building.

The large weeping Willow Tree (T4 of the FPCR Arboricultural Assessment dated
October 2016) standing at the front of the site close to the junction of Rock Hill and Albert
Road is formally protected under Bromsgrove District Tree Preservation Order (15) 2016
which is now a permanent order. The Tree Officer has confirmed that this should be
retained and given full protection in accordance with BS5837:2012 recommendations
throughout any demolition, ground or development works on the site. An awareness of
this tree and the required protection it should receive in noted within the submitted
Method Statement and would also be a condition attached to any planning permission
granted.

A bat survey has been undertaken but concluded that there were no evidence of roosting
bats and as such it is considered reasonable unlikely that the building supports a bat
roost.

The County Highways Officer has no objections to the proposal subject to conditions
being attached to any planning permission granted in relation to the requirement of the
submission of a Traffic Management Plan to protect the amenities of the nearby residents
during the demolition. Members are also requested to note the observations received by
County Highways received as previously detailed.

Page 137



Agenda Iltem 6

Plan reference

Considering the above and the resultant benefit to Bromsgrove of the demolition and
redevelopment aiding a more efficient highway network, I am of the opinion that this far
outweighs the benefits of retaining the pub. This is with particular reference to the given
current negative impact on the visual amenity of the locality and anti-social behaviour
issues which it is currently resulting in.

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be Granted

1) The proposed demolition should be carried out in accordance with the
recommendations within the Method Statement and Risk Assessment dated 26th
September 2016.

Reason: To protect the amenities of the neighbouring properties.

2) Prior to commencement of demolition a Traffic Management Plan shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority, there
afterwards the proposed demolition works shall be carried out in accordance with
this plan. This shall include but not be limited to the following:-

1. Measures to ensure that vehicles leaving the site do not deposit mud or other
detritus on the public highway;

2. The times in which HGV arrivals and departures will be undertaken

3. Routing arrangements of HGV vehicles to and from the site.

4. Details of site operative / lorries parking areas, material storage areas and the
location of site operative's welfare facilities.

The measures set out in the approved Plan shall be carried out in full during the
demolition hereby approved. Site operatives' parking, material storage facilities
shall only take place on the site in locations approved by in writing by the local
planning authority.

Reason - To protect the amenities of nearby properties during the demolition

Case Officer: Ruth Lambert Tel: 01527 881373
Email: r.lambert@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 138



Agenda Item 7

Name of Applicant Proposal Expiry Date  Plan Ref.
Mr Phillip Erection of 12 stable blocks (total 34 loose 29.11.2017 17/00968/FUL
Michell boxes), 12 sheds, 4 storage containers, 1

pole mounted floodlight and CCTV camera,
ancillary office and manége. (retrospective)

Newhouse Farm, Lea End Lane, Hopwood,
Birmingham, Worcestershire B48 7AX

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be Refused.

Consultations

Highways - Bromsgrove Consulted 06.09.2017

Recommends that any permission which the District Planning Authority may wish to give
include the following conditions: - HC5 - Visibility splays (existing splays to be
maintained), HC7 - Access gates and HC25 - Access consolidation.

Reasons: In the interests of Highway safety and to ensure the free flow of traffic using the
adjoining Highway.

The applicant to ensure vehicular visibility is not impeded within the visibility splays -
anything above 0.6m above ground level to be cut back and maintained at all times.

Alvechurch Parish Council Consulted 06.09.2017

Objections; APC believe this is over intensive use of the site. It is a random development
with no clearly defined parking. APC considered this to site to have a mixture of uses
leading to a sprawling unplanned expansion.

Arboricultural Officer Consulted 06.09.2017

No objection to the proposed development of the 12 stable units and all other associated
elements of the new application in regard to any tree related issues.

Drainage Engineers Internal Planning Consultation Consulted 06.09.2017

The brief statements in the planning statement provide an insufficient level of information
in relation to flood risk and drainage, given that this is considered to be a major
application the proposals here should be supported by an FRA and a comprehensive
drainage plan. This should give an assessment of the risks to the site from the typical
sources of flooding and demonstrate where risks exist that they are suitably mitigated for.

The principle of discharging the surface water runoff from the site into the adjacent
watercourse is acceptable; however the creation of over 1000m2 of new roof area will
lead to an increase in both the quantity and rate of runoff from the site. As a major
application attenuation of runoff from all new buildings will be required. Surface water

Page 139



Agenda Item 7

17/00968/FUL

should be attenuated up to the 1 in 100-year storm with an allowance for climate change.
Site runoff should not exceed Greenfield runoff rates up to this return period and
calculations to demonstrate this should be provided.

It is not clear from the proposed site plan the proximity of the new stable blocks to the
watercourse. Policy BDP23 section 8.2350f the Bromsgrove Local Plan requires that an
appropriate buffer zone (generally accepted to be 8m) is provided to all watercourses.

Based on the lack of information submitted around flood risk and drainage we would like
to raise an objection to this application

WRS - Noise Consulted 06.09.2017
No objection to the application in terms of noise/nuisance.

Worcester Regulatory Services- Light Pollution Consulted 06.09.2017

| have reviewed the objector’'s comments and spoken to the agent. It would appear that
the two floodlights attached to the pole are not directed to where the objector’s residence
is located, and therefore are unlikely to cause any nuisance. However | would suggest a
condition restricting the hours of operation of these floodlights to say 22:00.

Sarah Kernon Consulted 06.09.2017

In summary in my opinion the size of the built development could be considered
"essential” and the "minimum necessary" if 34 horses are to be kept on site. However |
see no reason why 34 horses need to be kept as this is not the "minimum necessary" for
the venture to be viable. There is no reason why the permitted linear development could
not operate to an acceptable level.

Relevant Policies

Bromsgrove District Plan

BDP1 Sustainable Development Principles
BDP4 Green Belt

BDP15 Rural Renaissance

BDP 23 Water Management

Others
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Relevant Planning History

13/0657 Erection of six new stable blocks (total ~ Approved 16.06.2014
20 loose boxes), construction of
menage (50m x 20m) and associated
works

Page 140



Agenda Item 7

17/00968/FUL

12/0157/ENF Appeal against enforcement to cease Enf notice  16.04.2014
industrial use of land upheld

Public Comments

2 objections received summarised as appropriate:

The proposal harms the Green Belt and residential amenity by virtue of its scale and
floodlighting which extends the hours of operation of the site in the winter months. Harm
to ecology including bats, barn owls, blackbirds and robins.

The proposal does not appear to include the loose boxes now sited in two separate areas
on the opposite side of Lea End Lane or the caravan and container.

Assessment

The development, as constructed is located to the far west of Newhouse Farm, Lea End
Lane. The farm comprises a variety of non-agricultural uses including a group of
residential barn conversions and industrial use of a former grain store to the immediate
east of the site. The site of the stables complex is accessed from Lea End Lane to the
north via a track through an area of woodland. It operates as a DIY livery where the
owners of the horses are entirely responsible for the welfare of the horses including
purchasing feed and cleaning out the horses.

The development relates to a retrospective application for the construction of 12 wooden
stable blocks which adjoin 12 timber sheds, the siting of containers, provision of
floodlighting, CCTV, associated office and manége. The structures are all of various
sizes but most of the timber stables blocks are all in multiples of 3.6 m, with a depth of
3.6 m. The stables measure 2.25 m to eaves with a ridge height of 3.2 m. The four
shipping containers measure 6 m by 2 m and the 15 wooden sheds have an average
footprint of 24 sqm approximately twice the size of a stable.

Green Belt

The site is located in the Green Belt. Members should note that the recent planning
history is of particular relevance in the consideration of this application. On 6th June
2014, planning permission was granted for the 'erection of six new stable blocks (total 20
loose boxes), construction of menage (50m x 20m) and associated works'. The decision
notice is attached to this report as Appendix 1 for reference.

The approved scheme comprised a single line of stable buildings (no other buildings)
adjoining the hedge which forms the western boundary of the site, the manege was
located to the south, some of the existing hardstanding was proposed to be removed for
the provision of a paddock. The total floorspace approved under this application was
362sgm.

The previous decision was supported by a Business Plan and Budget, additionally the
removal of the hardstanding associated with the previous unauthorised use was

Page 141



Agenda Item 7

17/00968/FUL

considered a benefit to the openess of the Green Belt and offset the harm by reason of
inappriateness.

The scheme has not been constructed in accordance with the approved plans and there
is substantially more development present than was permitted by the application (12
stable blocks as opposed to 6). The stables, as constructed amount to approximately
606sgm and the sheds and containers are a further 413sgm in floor area. The office
comprising a CCTV monitoring station amounts to a further 23sgm. The total floorspace
equates to 1042sgm. The development, as constructed is 347% larger by floorspace than
the approved scheme. This results in considerably greater movement to and from the site
as would have been the case with the approved scheme further conflicting with the
openess and purpose of the Green Belt. The provision of floodlighting on the site also
negatively impacts on the openess of the Green Belt and character of the rural area.

The development, as constructed, conflicts substantially with policies BDP1, BDP4 and
BDP15 of the Bromsgrove District Plan and paragraphs 88 and 89 of the NPPF. There is
a significant and demonstrable harm to openess by virtue of the scale and arrangement
of the buildings and the level of movement to and from the site. The scale of the proposal
is well beyond the requirements of BDP15 that buildings to serve equine uses should be
the minimum necessary and preserve the openess of the Green Belt.

At the time of the previous application, the applicant stated that the storage of hay and
tack would take place within the proposed stables to avoid the need for additional sheds.
However, a large number of sheds and storage containers have now been provided on
site.

The considerations put forward in the applicant's planning statement are as follows:

- Planning History - removal of containers but not hardstanding

- the enclosed nature of the site

- closure of riding stables at Bleakhouse Farm, Wythall

- the buildings constructed are appropriate facilities for outdoor sport and recreation
- the paddock proposed was not needed by the business

Members should note that harm to the openess of the Green Belt carries substantial
weight in accordance with paragraph 88 of the Framework. In weighing up the impact of
the development in respect of the Green Belt and the conflict with the development plan,
the matters put forward by the applicant do not amount to very special circumstances
which would outweigh the harm to the openess of the site.

Other Matters

Members should note the views of North Worcestershire Water Management and the
request to provide additional details in respect of drainage arrangements has been sent
to the applicant and updates will be provided in respect of this point.

The objections received from Alvechurch PC and Third Parties are noted and the matters

raised have been addressed within the assessment and recommendation. The views of
WRS are awaited in terms of the impact of floodlighting on residential amenity; the impact

Page 142



Agenda Item 7

17/00968/FUL

on the Green Belt has been taken into account in the assessment. Members should note
that there is a substantial number of containers being stored on the land immediately to
the east of the application site and a number of caravan/camper vans to the north but
these do not form part of the retrospective application and are subject to a separate
investigation.

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be Refused for the following reasons:

1) The proposed development comprising a substantial block of stables, sheds,
storage containers, floodlighting, CCTV camera and associated office result in
significant and permanent harm to the openess of the site, a harm which is
augmented by the resultant traffic and movement to and from the site. The
development, as constructed, does not fall within any of the exceptions set out
in Policy BDP4 of the Bromsgrove District Plan 2017 or in paragraph 89 or 90
of the National Planning Policy Framework. Therefore, it amounts to
inappropriate development in the Green Belt, which is, by definition, harmful.
The development, as constructed, is substantially larger than that permitted
under application 13/0657. The considerations put forward by the applicant in
relation to the lack of harm to openess and reference to the planning history of
the site do not amount to very special circumstances which would clearly
outweigh the identified harm. Thereby, the development as constructed,
conflicts with policies BDP1, BDP4 and BDP15 of the Bromsgrove District Plan
2017 and the NPPF.

2) The applicant has provided insufficient information to demonstrate that
adequate drainage arrangements have been or can be put in place to serve the
site. Thereby, the proposal is contrary to policy BDP23 of the Bromsgrove
District Plan and the provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Informatives

1) The local planning authority is aware of the requirement in the NPPF and Article
35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(England) Order 2015 to work with the applicants in a positive and proactive
manner, seeking solutions to problems arising in relation to applications.

However the principle of development in this case was contrary to development
plan policy and was not considered to be a sustainable form of development from
the outset. This fact has been communicated to the applicant at an early stage in
the planning process. The applicant however chose to continue with the proposal.

Case Officer: David Kelly Tel: 01527 881345
Email: d.kelly@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank



A
PLANNING DECISION NOTICE

Mr Philip Michell

C/O Mr

Stansgate Planning

9 The Courtyard (ADM/K/6971)
Timothy's Bridge Road
STRATFORD UPON AVON
Warwickshire

CV37 ONP

United Kingdom

Bromsgrove
District Council

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk

Approval of Planning Permission Subject to Conditions

APPLICATION REFERENCE: 13/0657

LOCATION: Newhouse Farm , Lea End Lane, Alvechurch,
Birmingham B48 7AX

PROPOSAL: Erection of six new stable blocks (total 20 loose boxes),
construction of menage (50m x 20m) and associated
works

DECISION DATE: 16th June 2014

Bromsgrove District Council, as the Local Planning Authority, approves planning
permission for the proposal described above. This permission is subject to conditions,
which must be complied with and are set out below.

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years
beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
Approved Plans/ Drawings listed in this notice:

Site Location Plan@1:2500 (Ref: 6971 -100C)

Proposed Block Plan@1:1250 (Ref: 6971 - 201 Rev C)

Proposed Elevations@ 1:100 (Blocks 1 - 4) (Ref:6971 - 300)

Proposed Elevations@1:100 (Blocks 5 - 6) (Ref:6971 - 301)

Planning Statement and Flood Risk Statement (Ref: ADM/K/6971)
Supplementary Planning Statement in relation to Foundation Method Statement
and Drainage (Ref: ADM/K/5407).

Page 145

Page 1 of 5



Agenda Item 7

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. No other development (hereby permitted) shall commence until visibility splays
have been provided on each side of the proposed access on a line joining a point
2.4 metres back from the nearside edge of the adjoining carriageway measured
along the centreline of the access, to a point 60 metres in each direction
measured along the nearside edge of the carriageway from the centre of the new
access. Nothing shall be planted, erected and/or allowed to grow which exceeds
a height of 0.6metres on the triangular area of land so formed in order not to
obstruct the visibility described above.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policy TR11 of the
Bromsgrove District Local Plan 2004.

4. No additional barriers including stiles, gates, or fences should be created on, or
across, the public right of way (AV-516) without written consent of the Highway
Authority.

Reason: In order to protect the public right of way in accordance with policy
RAT12 of the Bromsgrove District Local Plan 2004 and the advice of the NPPF.

=

i 1

\ &_’L‘-«fﬂ\/t

Futh Bamford

Head of Planning and Regeneration

Reasons for granting planning permission

This proposal has been assessed against the following documents:
Bromsgrove District Local Plan 2004 (BDLP):

DS2 Green Belt Development Criteria

RAT17 Stabling

SPG5 Agricultural Buildings Design Guide

Bromsgrove District Plan Proposed Submission

BDP4 Green Belt
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Page 146

Page 2 of 5



Agenda Item 7

The Site and Surroundings

The site of the proposed development is to the north west of Newhouse Farm, a
complex comprising a farmhouse, converted outbuildings and an agricultural building
now in industrial use. The proposed site is separate from the main complex and is
accessed separately from Lea End Lane through an area of woodland. The site is
bordered to the north and west by an existing tree line and to the east by an existing
industrial building.

The site has been the subject of enforcement action to secure the termination of
unauthorised industrial uses, the storage of containers and other materials. The
Enforcement Notice was upheld at appeal and the site today still resembles a waste site
but is considerably improved upon the situation when the unauthorised use was in
place. However, a number of containers and parked cars remain.

Proposal
The proposal is for the erection of six new stable blocks (total 20 loose boxes),

construction of ménage (50m x 20m) and associated hardstanding.

Assessment

The key issues in the determination of the application are the impact the proposal would
have on the openness and purpose of the Green Belt at this location; the acceptability
and sustainability of the site for commercial livery purposes and the impact of the
proposal on highway safety.

Green Belt

The consideration of the Green Belt is the starting point. Policy DS2 outlines the types of
development which are acceptable in the Green Belt and which do not conflict with the
purposes of including land within it. The provision of facilities for outdoor sport and
recreation are one of the exceptions to normal GB restraint policies. Policy RAT17
outlines the standards to be applied to the provision of stables and equestrian facilities.
The scheme will consist of 6 stables blocks; the application is accompanied by a
Business Plan and Budget and therefore it is evident that the proposal is not for
personal equestrian use but for commercial letting of the site and stables for the keeping
of horses.

There is no specific policy in the BDLP on the provision of commercial livery facilities
apart from a reference in the explanatory text of policy RAT17 which states that
commercial liveries may not be acceptable in the Green Belt where there would be
excessive traffic movement and extensive new buildings associated with the use.

The NPPF refers to appropriate facilities for outdoor sport and recreation contrasted with
the 'essential’ definition in the BDLP and previous planning policy guidance in PPG2. In
terms of the configuration and design of the stables, | consider these to appropriate in
the context of the NPPF and the stables are sited within the wider context of Newhouse
Farm fulfilling this criterion of policy RAT17. | also note the emphasis within the NPPF of
facilitating all types of urban and rural enterprise to support the economy.

Paragraph 28 of the NPPF states that local and neighbourhood plans should support the
sustainable growth and expansion of business and enterprise in rural areas, both
through conversion of existing buildings and well designed new buildings. Whilst |
consider that sustainable and expansion are contradictions in this statement, the
intention of government is clear and overall the provision of the stables and ménage are

Page 147

Page 3 of 5



Agenda Item 7

appropriate development in the Green Belt in accordance with paragraph 89 of the
NPPF.

The application is accompanied by a Planning Statement and Business Plan. The
comments from the agricultural consultant are noted. It is concluded that the proposed
scheme is economically viable and the diversified enterprise would generate a modest
additional income for the farm holding. There was some concern raised about where the
hay storage would be. There are feed/ tack rooms within each of the proposed blocks as
outlined in the applicants supplementary statement received 17.02.2014.

Whilst it is noted that the previous use of the land for industrial was unauthorised, the
Enforcement Notice required the removal of the containers and cessation of the use but
not the removal of hardstanding. The use of the some of this area for a ménage and
parking/manoeuvring of vehicles and the remainder for a an enclosed paddock is
therefore acceptable and would not give rise to any greater harm to the Green Belt with
the proposed use more in keeping with its rural surroundings. | am satisfied that there is
sufficient land around the site in the ownership of the applicant to enable the horses to
graze.

Highways
The impact of the proposal on the access and on Lea End Lane is relevant and the

original comments from WH have sought a deferral of the application pending further
information in relation to the visibility splay and the level of traffic movements. This has
been received to the satisfaction of WH. Since a DIY livery is proposed, the agricultural
consultant was concerned that there would be additional vehicle movements to that
envisaged in the planning statement and the suggested 80 movements per week was
considered a very conservative estimate. In the supplementary planning statement, the
applicant accepts the higher figure of 80 per day as reliable. There is no objection from
WH on the basis of highway capacity, only the suitability of the visibility splay at the
access in terms of safety. There will be an impact on the GB arising from the vehicle
movements and parking. However, a number of factors mitigate this harm, the site is
screened by woodland and the existing farm buildings from Lea End Lane, there is
existing hardstanding on the site and this type of proposal is supported in the NPPF in
paragraphs 28 and 89. In practical terms, it is also unlikely that all of the stables will be
occupied at the same time. On the basis of the information presented and the
characteristics of the site, | conclude that the overall effect would be satisfactory. There
are wider sustainability implications arising from the travel of the patrons of the site to
this isolated location. However, this is partly a matter of conscious choice on their part
and the lack of clarity in the NPPF of how much emphasis needs to be given to
sustainability and carbon reduction versus the 'expansion of rural business' philosophy.

Consultee responses and conditions

A supplementary planning statement was received on the 17.02.2014 with additional
information in relation to vehicle movements and the impact of the proposal on trees
and drainage to enable these matters to be dealt with avoiding unnecessary conditions.
There is no objection from the Canal and River Trust (no impact on the canal in any
event), no objection from the Drainage Engineer or Tree Officer and sufficient
information has been supplied in relation to these aspects to avoid additional conditions
being applied.

Page 148

Page 4 of 5



Agenda Item 7

In terms of neighbours, there is a no objection response from the adjoining barn
conversions and no objection from Alvechurch PC. Additional consultation was
conducted to include properties further along Lea End Lane and the matters of
increased traffic and impact on the public right of way were raised. The former has been
addressed in the response from WH and in the case of the latter a consultation with
WCC Footpaths Officer raised no objection subject to a condition protecting the right of
way.

Conclusion

The proposal relates to the diversification of activity at Lea End Farm which is supported
by the NPPF. There are potential negative impacts in relation to additional vehicle
movements in the GB and in terms of sustainability. However, more weight is applied to
the factors discussed above which favour the scheme.

Permission should be GRANTED, sftc;

For your information

Appealing the planning conditions

If you feel that the conditions are not acceptable you can appeal to the Secretary of
State through the Planning Inspectorate. This appeal should be made by15th December
2014 unless supported by special circumstances. The appropriate form and further
information on how to appeal can be found at
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/appeals/planningappeals or by contacting the
planning Inspectorate Customer Services Team on 0303 444 5000.

Purchase Notices

If Bromsgrove District Council or the Secretary of State has refused planning permission
or granted it conditionally, the landowner may claim that the land is incapable of
reasonable beneficial use, and for this reason may serve the District Council a purchase
notice requiring them to purchase the land. In certain circumstances, a claim may be
made against Bromsgrove District Council for compensation. Further information about
purchase notices can be found at: http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/8/part/VI

Page 149

Page 5 of 5


http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/appeals/planningappeals
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/8/part/VI

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 2nd October 2017
	5 Tree Preservation Order (11) 2017 - Trees on land adjacent to 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
	Appendix 1 - Copy of Provisonal Order
	Appendix 2 - Copy of Objections BDC TPO (13) 2016
	Appendix 3 - Letter of Objection from Harrison, Clark and Rickerby Solicitors
	Appendix 4 - Report of Objection from Barton Hyett Arboricultural Consultants
	Appendix 5 - Email of Objection from Mr Fell dated 4th August 2017
	Appendix 6 - Messages of Support
	Appendix 7 - Plan showing location of Public Footpath
	Appendix 8 - Copy of TPO Guidance notes
	Appendix 9 - Photographs of trees from local vantage points
	Appendix 10 - TEMPO Assessment
	Appendix 11 - Copy of consent order dated 20 June 2017

	6 2017/00950/FUL - Demolition of existing 2 storey building, The Greyhound (ph), 30 Rock Hill, Bromsgrove, Worcestershire, B61 7LR - Greyhound Inn Developments Ltd
	7 2017/00968/FUL - Erection of 12 stable blocks (total) 34 loose boxes), 12 sheds, 4 storage containers, 1 pole mounted floodlight and CCTV camera, ancillary office and manege - Newhouse Farm, Lea End Lane, Hopwood, Birmingham, Worcestershire, B48 7AX - Mr Philip Michell
	Appendix 1 - 13.0657 Planning Decision Notice - Newhouse Farm


